
Oaklands Road 
Haywards Heath 
West Sussex 
RH16 1SS

Switchboard:  01444 458166

DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1
www.midsussex.gov.uk

Working together for a better Mid Sussex

22 July 2019

PLEASE NOTE START TIME OF MEETING

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of LIQUOR LICENSING COMMITTEE will be held in the Council Chamber at these 

offices on TUESDAY, 30TH JULY, 2019 at 10.00 am when your attendance is requested.

Yours sincerely,

KATHRYN HALL

Chief Executive

A G E N D A

Pages

1.  To receive apologies for absence.

2.  To receive Declaration of Interests from Members in respect of 
any matter on the Agenda.

The procedure the Licensing Panel will follow in 
considering the application is set out in the Licensing Act 
2003, its attendant Regulations and was agreed by the 
Licensing Committee on 2nd February 2005.  The Licensing 
Panel, in accordance with rule 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 decide to exclude the public 
from all or part of the hearing where the Licensing Panel 
considers that it is in the public interest to do so.

3.  Application for a Premises Licence - Licensing Act 2003. 3 - 242

Into The Wild Events Limited, Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly, 
RH19 4QS.



Human Rights Act Implications

Licensing Act 2003

A licensing authority must carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view of 
promoting the licensing objectives.

The Licensing objectives are:-

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder;

(b) public safety;

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and

(d) the protection of children from harm.

In carrying out its licensing functions a licensing authority must also have regard to:-

(a) its licensing statement published under Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (this may be 
viewed on the Mid Sussex District Council website);

and

(b) any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 
(this may be viewed on the Department for Culture, Media and Sport website).

Members are asked to consider the human rights implications for both the licensee who has 
rights under Article 1 of the First Protocol, the Right to Property (which includes the licence):and the 
objectors who have rights under Article 8 to Respect for Private and Family Life, and Article 1 of 
the First Protocol, their right to enjoy peaceful use of their possessions.

To: Members of Liquor Licensing Committee: Councillors 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019



Last updated May 2019 

 Application for a Premises Licence – Licensing Act 2003 

REPORT OF: Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services  
Contact Officer: Paul Thornton, Senior Licensing Officer  

Email: paul.thornton@midsussex.gov.uk Tel: 01444 4774278 
Wards Affected: High Weald  
Key Decision No 
Report To: Liquor Licensing Panel 30th July 2019. 

Purpose Of Report 

1. To provide information in order that the Committee can determine an
application to grant a Premises Licence.

Summary 

2. An application, pursuant to Section 17 Licensing Act 2003, has been made on
behalf of Into the Wild Events Limited for the grant of a Premises Licence at
Chiddinglye Farm, Selsfield Road, West Hoathly, RH19 4QS between 23rd

August 2019 and 26th August 2019. Representations against the grant have
been made by a Responsible Authority and members of the public.

Recommendations 

3. The Committee is asked to determine the application in accordance with the
Licensing Act 2003, MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office Guidance
issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due regard to the
applicant’s submissions and relevant representations.

___________________________________________________________________ 

Background  

4.

4.1 

4.2 

Into the Wild is an outdoor camping, music and arts festival with an estimated

attendance of 2,000 people  scheduled to take place during the weekend of

23rd – 26th August 2019 at Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly ,RH19 4QS. 
Events include live world and folk music; crafts, dance; yoga; tai chi;

meditation; a wide variety of workshops and talks; stalls; and, children's

activities.  The organisers are keen to stress the event as alcohol and drug

free.

The application seeks the following licensable activities;

Friday Saturday Sunday 

Performance of a Play 1300-2200hrs 1300-2200hrs 1300-2200hrs 
Exhibition of a Film 1800-2300 1800-2300 1800-2300 
Live Music 1300-2359 1300-2359 1300-2359 
Recorded Music 1000-2359 1000-2359 1000-2359 
Performance of Dance 1200-2200 1200-2200 1200-2200 
Late Night Refreshment 2300-2359 2300-2359 2300-2359 

4.3 The event was held in 2018 at the same site under the authority of a 
Premises licence that was time limited to the weekend. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 3

Agenda Item 3

mailto:paul.thornton@midsussex.gov.uk


Last updated May 2019 

4.4 Representations 

Representations have been received from the Sussex Police, Mid Sussex 
District Council’s Environmental Protection Team (EP). Mid Sussex District 
Council Licensing Authority and three local residents.   

a. Sussex Police.
Sussex Police has agreed a number of conditions with the applicants (see
background papers for full details). If the Committee is minded to grant
the licence, I respectfully request that these conditions are appended to it.

b. Mid Sussex District Council’s Environmental Protection Team (EP)
A number of conditions (see background papers for full details) .relating to
noise management have been agreed with the applicants. If the
Committee is minded to grant the licence, I respectfully request that these
conditions are appended to it.

c. Mid Sussex District Council Licensing Authority.
(See background papers for full details)  The Licensing Authority has
submitted a representation concerning Public Safety.
It is based upon visits by two Environmental Health Officers to the event
in 2018. In summary it refers to;

1) Contaminated water supply. Insufficient water sampling for the
2018 event.

2) Poor control of Food Outlets, in particular a food concession
managed by the one of the organiser’s family.

3) Health and Safety Management – despite a visit to the 2018 event
where a number of problems were identified, none of them are
addressed in the Event Management Plan (EMP) submitted with
this application. In particular the same staff responsible for the
problems in 2018 appear to be in control again this year.

4) Allegation that alcohol was in fact for sale from a brewery outlet
on the same site.

5) Confidence in competence of the management – Original EMP
similar to the one submitted for the 2018 event. The 2018 EMP
was not followed and this lead to problems.  Management were
found to be evasive, obstructive and reluctant to take positive
action when confronted with problems.   No change in
management team for 2019 raises concerns about their ability to
run the event safely.

6) The applicants have responded (see background papers for full
details). At the time of writing the report, discussions are ongoing
regarding the content of the representation and the response.

d. Three local residents have submitted representations ;

1) Mrs Osman - cites music noise into the evening from artists that
are due again this year. In addition she refers to festival goers
defecating on a public footpath and caravans and tents blocking
public rights of way through the estate.

2) Mr Wight – cites excessive music noise until midnight causing
sleep difficulties.

3) Mr and Mrs Duke – concerned about public nuisance. Although
they were away last they believe a public nuisance will be caused

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 4



Last updated May 2019 

based upon the experiences of neighbours last year. References 
in their representation to events other than Into the Wild MUST be 
ignored by the Committee. Events at Patricks Barn are nothing to 
do with the applicants in this matter.  

4.9 The consultation period took place between 6th June 2019 and 3rd July 
2019. It was correctly advertised at the site during this period and in the 
East Grinstead Courier on 14th June 2019. .  

. 

Policy Context 

5. Determination of Application for a Premises Licence

The Committee must determine the application in accordance with the
Licensing Act 2003 (LA03) , MSDC Licensing Policy and the Home Office
Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003, whilst having due
regard to the applicant’s submissions and relevant representations.

5.1 Section 18 LA03 deals with the determination of the application:

Grant of premises licence

18   Determination of application for premises licence

(1) This section applies where the relevant licensing authority—

(a) receives an application for a premises licence made in accordance
with section 17, and

(b) is satisfied that the applicant has complied with any requirement
imposed on him under subsection (5) of that section.

(2) Subject to subsection (3), the authority must grant the licence in
accordance with the application subject only to—

(a) such conditions as are consistent with the operating schedule
accompanying the application, and

(b) any conditions which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included
in the licence.

(3) Where relevant representations are made, the authority must—

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant
and each person who has made such representations agree that a
hearing is unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps
mentioned in subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

(4) The steps are—

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 5



Last updated May 2019 

(a) to grant the licence subject to—

(i) the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent
as the authority considers [F2appropriate] for the promotion of the
licensing objectives, and

(ii) any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the
licence;

(b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable
activities to which the application relates;

(c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises
supervisor;

(d) to reject the application

(5) For the purposes of subsection (4)(a)(i) the conditions mentioned in
subsection (2)(a) are modified if any of them is altered or omitted or
any new condition is added.

(6) For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means
representations which—

(a) are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on
the promotion of the licensing objectives,

(b) meet the requirements of subsection (7),

(c) if they relate to the identity of the person named in the application
as the proposed premises supervisor, meet the requirements of
subsection (9), and

(d) are not excluded representations by virtue of section 32 (restriction
on making representations following issue of provisional
statement).

(7) The requirements of this subsection are—

(a) that the representations were made by [F3a responsible authority
or other person] within the period prescribed under section
17(5)(c),

(b) that they have not been withdrawn, and

(c) in the case of representations made by [F4a person who is not a
responsible authority] , that they are not, in the opinion of the
relevant licensing authority, frivolous or vexatious.

(8) Where the authority determines for the purposes of subsection (7)(c)
that any representations are frivolous or vexatious, it must notify the
person who made them of the reasons for its determination.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 6



Last updated May 2019 

(9) The requirements of this subsection are that the representations—

(a) were made by a chief officer of police for a police area in which the
premises are situated, and

(b) include a statement that, due to the exceptional circumstances of the
case, he is satisfied that the designation of the person concerned as
the premises supervisor under the premises licence would undermine
the crime prevention objective.

(10) In discharging its duty under subsection (2) or (3)(b), a licensing
authority   may grant a licence under this section subject to different
conditions in respect of—

(a) different parts of the premises concerned;

(b) different licensable activities.

5.2. Relevant Representations – 

The Licensing Act 2003 requires representations to address the four 
licensing objectives which are  

1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. Promotion of Public Safety
3. Prevention of Public Nuisance
4. Prevention of Harm to children and young persons

5.1 A representation is a ‘relevant representation’ if it is about the likely effect of 
the grant of the licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives. The 
objector must establish that such a consequence is a likely effect of a grant - 
(ie more probable than not) 

Other Options Considered 

7. In order to lawfully run this event, it must be conducted under the authority of
a Premises Licence. 

Financial Implications 

8. The final decision made by the Committee in this matter is subject to appeal
in the Magistrates Court by any party to the proceedings. .

Other Material Implications 

11. Section 136 Licensing Act 2003 – A person commits an offence if he carries
on or attempts to carry a licensable activity on or from any premises
otherwise than under and in accordance with an authorisation or he knowingly
allows a licensable activity to be so carried on.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 7



Last updated May 2019 

11.1 A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary 
conviction to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months or to a fine or 
both.   

Background Papers 

Document 

Area map of site 
Application form and plan of premises 
Event Management Plan  

Representations 

Mr Frances Wright 
Mrs Rebecca Osman 
Mr and Mrs Duke 

Representations – Responsible Authorities 

Sussex Police  
Mid Sussex District Council Environmental Protection 
Team (EP)  
Agreed Conditions with Sussex Police  and EP
Mid Sussex District Council Licensing Authority 

Other Documents 

Mid Sussex District Council Emergency Planning 
Manager Event Report for 24-27 August 2018.   
Response to Licensing Authority from Into the Wild Ltd 

Event Management Plan v22 3rd July 2019

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 8



Into the Wild Premises Licence Application
P. Thornton

04/07/2019Date:

Author:Plan of Area Surrounding Festival Site

Scale: 1:7540.15647

Mid Sussex District Council

© Crown copyright and database right. All rights reserved (100021794) 2019,© Crown copyright and database right. All rights reserved (100021794) 2019,© Crown copyright and database right. All rights

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 30 July 2019

9



Part 1 

Serial Number: 

I/We apply for a premises licence under section 17 of (Insert name(s) of applicant) the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant 
licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Name/s: Into the Wild Events Limited 

The Premises 

Postal address of premises or, 
if none, ordnance survey map 
reference or description: 

Chiddinglye  
Selsfield Road  
West Hoathly  
East Grinstead  
West Sussex 

Postcode: RH19 4QS 

Tel (at premises): 

Email: 

Non-domestic rateable value 
of premises. 

£4301 - £33000 

Part 2 

Please state whether you are 
applying for a premises licence 
as: 

a person other than an individual - ii) as a partnership 

Please confirm: I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use 
of the premises for licensable activities 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 10



Other Applicants 

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any 
registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), 
please give the name and address of each party concerned

Name Address Postcode Registered number Description Tel Email 
Huw Williams Limited Company. 

Into the Wild events 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 11



Part 3 

Operating Schedule 

When do you want the 
premises licence to start? 

23/08/2019 

If you wish the licence to be 
valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end? 

26/08/2019 

If 5,000 or more people are 
expected to attend the 
premises at any one time, 
please state the number 
expected to attend. 

Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other 
information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of 
alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies you must include a description of 
where the place will be and its proximity to the premises. 

Description: Into the Wild is a family friendly outdoor camping event featuring: live world 
and folk music; crafts, dance; yoga; tai chi; meditation; a wide variety of 
workshops and talks; stalls; and, children's activities. 
It will be alcohol-free and family orientated. Attendance implies agreement 
not to bring alcohol to the event. 

The main licensable activities would be a marquee hosting dance 
workshops in the day time (10am - 6pm) and world and folk music in the 
evening (7pm - 12 midnight). 
We also have 2 cafe areas that would have live folk and acoustic music 
from 2pm - 11pm. These will have limited amplification, but enough so that 
the customers in the cafe can hear the music above general chatter. 

The site has good access, with hard standing roads and trackways, a 
separate access for emergency vehicles, plus a separate access to the 
main event field for traders and delivery vehicles. 

The proposed parking and camping areas have good natural boundaries, 
with good access points in order to manage the arrival and departure of our 
guests. 

It is our intention that the event is a positive event in the local calendar. We 
have held the event last year and have around Forest Row for the last four 
years and have a lot of support in the wider local community. 

The main entrance to the site is from Selsfield which turns off towards West 
Hoathly from the Ardingly Road. Traffic turns onto Chiddinglye drive which 
has good hard standing and traffic turn left to a parking field, where there 
will be a ticket office and information, so they can process their tickets for 
wristbands as soon as possible. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 12



Activities 

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedule 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 

Provision of regulated entertainment

a) plays

b) films

c) indoor sporting events

d) boxing or wrestling
entertainments

e) live music

f) recorded music

g) performances of dance

h) anything of a similar
description to that falling within
(e), (f) or (g)

Provision of late night 
refreshment

Supply of alcohol

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 13



Plays 

Please indicate the standard days and timings of plays. Provide times using the 24 hour clock.

Monday

Start 

Finish 

Tuesday

Start 

Finish 

Wednesday

Start 

Finish 

Thursday

Start 

Finish 

Friday

Start 13:00 

Finish 22:00 

Saturday

Start 13:00 

Finish 22:00 

Sunday

Start 13:00 

Finish 22:00 

Where will the performance of 
the play take place? Indoors 
may include a tent. 

Indoors and outdoors 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 14



Please state type of activity to 
be authorised, if not already 
stated, and give relevant 
further details, for example 
(but not exclusively) whether 
or not music will be amplified 
or unamplified. 

Plays will not be amplified 

State any seasonal variations 
for performing plays: 
For example (but not 
exclusively) where the activity 
will occur on additional days 
during the summer months. 

Non standard timings. Where 
the premises intends to use 
the premises for the 
performance of a play at 
different times from those 
listed above, please list: 
For example (but not 
exclusively), where you wish 
the activity to go on longer on 
a particular day e.g. Christmas 
Eve. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 15



Films 

Please indicate the standard days and timings of films. Provide times using the 24 hour clock.

Monday

Start 

Finish 

Tuesday

Start 

Finish 

Wednesday

Start 

Finish 

Thursday

Start 

Finish 

Friday

Start 18:00 

Finish 23:00 

Saturday

Start 18:00 

Finish 23:00 

Sunday

Start 18:00 

Finish 23:00 

Where will the exhibition of the 
film take place? Indoors may 
include a tent. 

Outdoors 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 16



  

Please state type of activity to 
be authorised, if not already 
stated, and give relevant 
further details, for example 
(but not exclusively) whether 
or not music will be amplified 
or unamplified. 

Amplified just enough for the audience to hear. These are either 
independent films or children's movies. 

State any seasonal variations 
for the exhibition of the film: 
For example (but not 
exclusively) where the activity 
will occur on additional days 
during the summer months. 

Non standard timings. Where 
the premises intends to use 
the premises for the exhibition 
of the film at different times 
from those listed above, 
please list: 
For example (but not 
exclusively), where you wish 
the activity to go on longer on 
a particular day e.g. Christmas 
Eve. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 17



Live Music 

Please indicate the standard days and timings for live music. Provide times using the 24 hour clock.

Monday

Start 

Finish 

Tuesday

Start 

Finish 

Wednesday

Start 

Finish 

Thursday

Start 

Finish 

Friday

Start 13:00 

Finish 23:59 

Saturday

Start 13:00 

Finish 23:59 

Sunday

Start 13:00 

Finish 23:59 

Where will the performance of 
live music take place? Indoors 
may include a tent. 

Indoors 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 18



Please state type of activity to 
be authorised, if not already 
stated, and give relevant 
further details, for example 
(but not exclusively) whether 
or not music will be amplified 
or unamplified. 

There is one main marquee with live music. This is world music and folk 
music with live musicians. It is amplified enough for the audience to be able 
to enjoy the music, it is not excessive and after 11pm - midnight we bring it 
to a quieter close. Our main audience is families with lots of younger 
children, so we encourage music that suits the non alcoholic family 
ambience. 
There are 2 cafes which will also have talks and folk music, these will be 
amplified just enough for the audience to hear. 

State any seasonal variations 
for performing live music: 
For example (but not 
exclusively) where the activity 
will occur on additional days 
during the summer months. 

Non standard timings. Where 
the premises intends to use 
the premises for the 
performance of live music at 
different times from those 
listed above, please list: 
For example (but not 
exclusively), where you wish 
the activity to go on longer on 
a particular day e.g. Christmas 
Eve. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 19



Recorded Music 

Please indicate the standard days and timings for recorded music. Provide times using the 24 hour clock.

Monday

Start 

Finish 

Tuesday

Start 

Finish 

Wednesday

Start 

Finish 

Thursday

Start 

Finish 

Friday

Start 10:00 

Finish 23:59 

Saturday

Start 10:00 

Finish 23:59 

Sunday

Start 10:00 

Finish 23:59 

Where will the playing of 
recorded music take place? 
Indoors may include a tent. 

Indoors 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 20



Please state type of activity to 
be authorised, if not already 
stated, and give relevant 
further details, for example 
(but not exclusively) whether 
or not music will be amplified 
or unamplified. 

These are mainly dance workshops, such as 5 rhythms or salsa dance for 
example. A workshop leader guides a group of people through a particular 
type of dance or a movement workshop. This is just loud enough for the 
participants to enjoy and hear the music. 

The main tent also plays music between acts, plus the 2 cafes will play 
some recorder music, but not too loud, people will still be able to have a 
conversation. 

State any seasonal variations 
for playing recorded music: 
For example (but not 
exclusively) where the activity 
will occur on additional days 
during the summer months. 

Non standard timings. Where 
the premises intends to use 
the premises for the playing of 
recorded music at different 
times from those listed above, 
please list: 
For example (but not 
exclusively), where you wish 
the activity to go on longer on 
a particular day e.g. Christmas 
Eve. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 21



Performances of dance 

Please indicate the standard days and timings for performances of dance. Provide times using the 24 
hour clock.

Monday

Start 

Finish 

Tuesday

Start 

Finish 

Wednesday

Start 

Finish 

Thursday

Start 

Finish 

Friday

Start 12:00 

Finish 22:00 

Saturday

Start 12:00 

Finish 22:00 

Sunday

Start 12:00 

Finish 22:00 

Where will the performance of 
dance take place? Indoors 
may include a tent. 

Indoors 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 22



Please state type of activity to 
be authorised, if not already 
stated, and give relevant 
further details, for example 
(but not exclusively) whether 
or not music will be amplified 
or unamplified. 

12 Tibetan monks from the Dalai Lamas monastery will be performing 
traditional Tibetan cultural dances. 

State any seasonal variations 
for the performance of dance: 
For example (but not 
exclusively) where the activity 
will occur on additional days 
during the summer months. 

Non standard timings. Where 
the premises intends to use 
the premises for the 
performance of dance at 
different times from those 
listed above, please list: 
For example (but not 
exclusively), where you wish 
the activity to go on longer on 
a particular day e.g. Christmas 
Eve. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 23



Night Refreshment 

Please indicate the standard days and timings for night refreshment. Provide times using the 24 hour 
clock.

Monday

Start 

Finish 

Tuesday

Start 

Finish 

Wednesday

Start 

Finish 

Thursday

Start 

Finish 

Friday

Start 18:00 

Finish 23:59 

Saturday

Start 18:00 

Finish 23:59 

Sunday

Start 18:00 

Finish 23:59 

Where will the provision of late 
night refreshment take place? 
Indoors may include a tent. 

On the premises 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 24



State any seasonal variations : 
For example (but not 
exclusively) where late night 
refreshment is provided on 
additional days during the 
summer months. 

Non standard timings. Where 
the premises intends to use 
the premises for the provision 
of late night refreshment at 
different times from those 
listed above, please list: 
For example (but not 
exclusively), where you wish 
the activity to go on longer on 
a particular day e.g. Christmas 
Eve. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 25



Open Hours 

Hours premises are open 

Please indicate the standard days and timings for premises hours. Provide times using the 24 hour clock.

Monday

Start 

Finish 

Tuesday

Start 

Finish 

Wednesday

Start 

Finish 

Thursday

Start 

Finish 

Friday

Start 09:00 

Finish 23:59 

Saturday

Start 09:00 

Finish 23:59 

Sunday

Start 09:00 

Finish 23:59 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 26



State any seasonal variations : 
For example (but not 
exclusively) where the supply 
of alcohol will occur on 
additional days during the 
summer months. 

Non standard timings. Where 
you intend to use the premises 
to be open at different times 
from those listed above, 
please list: 
For example (but not 
exclusively), where you wish 
the activity to go on longer on 
a particular day e.g. Christmas 
Eve. 

Adult Entertainment 

Please highlight any adult 
entertainment or services, 
activities, or other 
entertainment or matters 
ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to 
concern in respect of children. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 27



Licensing Objectives 

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives

General - all four licensing 
objectives (b,c,d,e): 
Please list here steps you will 
take to promote all four 
licensing objectives together. 

Into the Wild is primarily a family festival of workshops, theatre, dance, 
yoga, traditional crafts, bush crafts with world and folk music. 
We promote the festival as free from alcohol and drugs and this is an 
important part of our ethos. Over the years we have a following of guests 
that overwhelmingly support this ethos. 

Our ethos is to support families to enjoy nature, away from screens and 
video games and we encourage this in a safe and supportive environment. 

We work with a production team, great team of 120 stewards, an 
experienced SIA team, health and safety team, medical professionals, plus 
local contractors who we have been working with for a number of years. 

We have built up a reasonable size following in the local area, running a 
number of events in the past 4 years, both at Emerson college in Forest 
Row and outside festivals in East Sussex just over the county border with 
Wealden council. 
We envision this years festival being in similar size to last years, maybe a 
bit smaller. We estimate about 4000 - 4800 people, with 800 - 1000 of that 
number being children. 
We are keen and fully engaged to work with all the local authorities to 
make the safest, creative and inspirational event possible. 

We do not normally have a problem with drink or drugs, as the festival is 
both held and marketed, both in terms of activities and music to a family 
crowd, plus attracts individuals who don't take drink or take drugs. 
We have found by not having a bar and advertising that we are a alcohol 
free event encourages people who follow these values at our events. 

Into the Wild will present a draft ESMP for the event to the licensing 
authority and the named responsible authorities who constitute the SAG a 
minimum of eight weeks before the date of the event. 

A final ESMP (including specific numbers for SIA registered door staff and 
stewards, their timings and duties), will be presented to all of the 
responsible authorities at least four weeks before the proposed event. 

Into the Wild will comply comply with the Final Event Management 
submitted to and approved by the Licensing Authority (in consultation with 
SAG members) and no changes will be made to it without prior written 
consent of the Licensing Authority. 

The ESMP will form part of the premises licence and the event will be run 
in accordance with the ESMP. 

A copy of the final agreed ESMP will be kept at the control room and will be 
made immediately available to officers of any responsible authority/and or 
members of the SAG upon request. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 28



The prevention of crime and 
disorder: 

Into the Wild will seek to work closely with the local police authority in 
developing robust security measures. The event will ensure good 
communication is maintained between our chosen security contractor and 
the local police authorities. 

We have worked closely with an experienced firm of SIA (Event security 
alliance), over many years, who share many of the same ethos as our 
event. The manager of ESA is happy to lease with the police in relation to 
this premises license to help make the event safe and compliant to all 
recommendations the police may have. His contact number is: 07715 
630267 

Into the Wild are committed to reducing the opportunities for criminal 
behaviour. Measures will be taken to ensure that opportunist criminals and 
organised groups do not have the opportunity to spoil the event for the 
majority of customers. 
Listed below are measures in place to help prevent crime and disorder:  

The event is a ticketed event – allowing control over occupancy. 
All patrons and staff will be fitted with wristbands identifying their capacity 
at the event; i.e. public, staff, adult, child, etc. 
ESA, an experienced and qualified security company has been contracted 
to provide Security Industry Authority (SIA) frontline licensed door 
supervisors to carry out all aspects of the security plan, as defined in this 
document. 

Security checks are in place to ensure persons are authorised to be at 
event. 

Searches may be carried out at entrance to the event, if deemed necessary 
to avoid any criminal activity. 

The event has adopted an effective communication system 
The event has a robust drugs policy in place, details of this are in the 
EMSP. 

Tent theft awareness will be included in the programme. 
Into the Wild has clear terms and conditions of entry, which all ticket 
holders are required to adhere to. This is clearly communicated to 
customers in advance including consequences of non compliance. This 
includes the use of illegal drugs or alcohol. 

We have found having an event without alcohol, significantly reduces the 
number of challenging situations in relation to public disorder. ESA have 
worked with us for many years and are well trained to work with any 
situation that arises in relation to this policy, 
More details of the above policies are contained in our ESMP. 

Public safety: The health, safety and welfare of all those attending (or affected by) the 
event, whether visitors, community or staff, is paramount in the organiser’s 
priorities.  

The event health and safety policy, risk assessments and show stop 
procedures are all documented and all contractors working at the event 
must work within these guidelines. 
Listed below are some specific measures to ensure public safety: 

The event will be fully risk assessed with appropriate control measures 
being put into place. 

The event has contracted an experienced and qualified health and safety 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 29



manager. 

The event will put forward a robust management plan that will prioritise 
event safety. 

The event will seek to have full consultation with the local authority SAG. 

Full medical cover will be provided throughout the event in line with the 
purple guide 2014 edition. 

A welfare area will be provided for those not requiring medical, but are still 
require assistance or observation. 

Evacuation zones and procedures are in place.Near misses will be logged 
and addressed. 

Carbon Monoxide awareness leaflets will be distributed. 

Show stop procedures are in place. 

A traffic management plan for all eventualities, including parking and public 
transport arrangements. 
Full details of the communication system are in the ESMP. 

The prevention of public 
nuisance: 

The organisers will take measures and employ the services of 
professionals in order to prevent a public nuisance. 

These measures include traffic management plans, noise level monitoring, 
waste management and liaising with local residents. 

Measures in place to prevent public nuisance are listed below: 

The events traffic plan is designed to ensure no build-up of event traffic on 
the public roads and to maintain free flowing and safe access at all times. 

The site is designed to discourage patrons from moving freely outside of 
the event perimeters. 

The event will seek to communicate with local residents by providing a 
complaints / enquiries hotline. 

The event has effective procedures in place to react and respond to 
complaints or comments from local residents or other members of the 
public. 

The event will seek to work closely with the local authority EHO/s to 
prevent issues of nuisance; including noise. 

The event will look to work closely with the environmental health 
department to draw up and carry out an appropriate noise management 
plan, compliant with current legislation and any conditions requested by the 
EHO/s 
. 
A noise monitoring team will be in place to monitor and adjust sound levels, 
to ensure compliance with the noise management plan 
Stages and music venues will be arranged within the site, to wherever 
possible, to minimise sound travel. 

The use of sound barriers will be considered, should this be deemed 
necessary by the noise consultant. 
A phone number will be available to local residents in order to contact 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 30



event control to report nuisance. 

The music will be quieter between 11 - 12 midnight on Friday and 
Saturday, although the nature of the music shouldn't be loud at any point. 
On Sunday, it is a very ambient set. 

Most people will be camping and be there for the whole weekend, which 
will minimise noise and traffic over the weekend. 

We will work with local residents to make them aware of any sound checks 
before the event and to ensure that we work together to create an event 
that hopefully causes as little nuisance as possible. 

After one neighbour got in touch with the Landowner after last year 
regarding sound level, we have decided to move the main tent further 
away, hopefully therefore keeping everyone happy. 

The protection of children from 
harm: 

This event is aimed at families so children will attend. Those that do are 
required to be with parents. If a child were to be found alone at the event 
the measures outlined in our child protection document in the EMP. 

None of the performances will be such that they would be felt to be 
unsuitable for young people and children, but parental guidance is advised. 

Measures in place to protect children from harm are listed below: 
The event has a child protection policy 

A lost and found children’s space will be managed in the children’s area 
and run by DBS checked staff. 

Comprehensive lost and found children procedures are in place. All under 
18s must be accompanied by a responsible adult. 

Children aged 11 and under will have a wristband and parents will be 
encouraged to provide the mobile number for their responsible adult onsite 
written on. 

Children aged 17 years and under will have a separately identifiable 
wristband to adults aged 18 years and over. 

We have a professional children's area run by a very experienced company 
called Lewes Youth Theatre (LYT) . They have been working with children 
for many years. Their contact is Phil: info@lytproductions.co.uk 

www.lytproductions.co.uk 

He is more than happy to run through their detailed procedure for working 
with children. 

Right to work 

Right to work 

I have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the 
United Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online 
right to work checking service 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 31



IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT 
IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE 
LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT. 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK 
WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED 
FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT 
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A 
CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO 
SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS 
DISQUALIFIED.  

Signatures 

I understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have 
the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a 
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a 
licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I cease to 
be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15 

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work 
relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her 
proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to work 
check using the Home Office online right to work checking service which 
confirmed their right to work 

Please indicate your 
agreement by entering your 
name 

Huw Williams 

Date 27/05/2019 

Capacity Director 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 32



Submit & Pay 

It is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale under Section 158 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, to make a false statement in, or in connection with, this application

Address for correspondence 
associated with this application 

Postcode:

Tel:

The email address provided below will receive a copy of this completed application form. 

Email:

Payment Amount:

Please read the next pages relating to payment forms and instructions carefully.  
Once payment has been accepted, you will be given a receipt number and a copy of your request will be sent to 
you by email. 
If you don't receive either please contact the Licensing Team on 01444 477419. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 33



Rendezvous A/East

Rendezvous B/West

Car Park
Holding

Live-In

Families

Camping

Festival

Healing

Prod.

Main Entry
Emerg. Entry

Service
Entry

Crew/staff
Camping

Overflow

Healing camping

Public Road Entrance
Selsfield Road
(Class C, WSCC
number 25600307)

Woods

S.S.S.I.

B2028
Ardingly Road

Link Road
(Class Q, WSCC
number 25603815)

Out of Bounds
(water)

Stage

Public Footpaths

Licensable Area

INTO THE WILD
FESTIVAL 2019
CHIDDINGLYE FARM
AREA PLAN
v.15 28/05/2019
info@in2wild.com

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 30 July 2019

34



Rendezvous A/East

Rendezvous B/West

Car Park
Holding

Live-In

Families

Camping

Festival

Healing

Prod.

Main Entry
Emerg. Entry

Service
Entry

Crew/staff
Camping

Overflow

Healing camping

Public Road Entrance
Selsfield Road
(Class C, WSCC
number 25600307)

Woods

S.S.S.I.

B2028
Ardingly Road

Link Road
(Class Q, WSCC
number 25603815)

Out of Bounds
(water)

Stage

Public Footpaths

Licensable Area

INTO THE WILD
FESTIVAL 2019
CHIDDINGLYE FARM
AREA PLAN
v.15 28/05/2019
info@in2wild.com

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 30 July 2019

35



From: planninginfo@midsussex.gov.uk
To: licensing
Subject: Mid Sussex DC - Online Register - Comments for Licensing Application LI/19/0830
Date: 05 June 2019 10:50:04

Licensing Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is
provided below.

Comments were submitted at 10:49 AM on 05 Jun 2019 from Mr Francis Wright.

Application Summary

Address: Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East
Grinstead West Sussex RH19 4QS

Proposal: Premises Licence

Case Officer: Mr Paul Thornton

Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Mr Francis Wright

Address: Garden House, Stonelands Selsfield Road East Grinstead

Comments Details
Commenter
Type: Applicant

Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application

Reasons
for
comment:

- Prevention of Public nuisance

Comments: 10:49 AM on 05 Jun 2019 The Into the Wild Festival was
held at Chiddinglye for the first time last year. At the time,
their website advised that it is not predominantly a music
festival, with noise being no more than be 50dB up to 11pm
and 45dB thereafter. Our experience was very different.

We live at Stonelands, a group of 7 houses located
approximately 400m to the North of the proposed festival
site. Last year we were exposed to 4 days (including set-up
and sound testing) of very loud and intrusive music which I
measured at up to 87dB in front of my house and 66dB
inside the house with windows closed. This included live
music, recorded music and a 'shamanic drum circle' which is
advertised to be coming back this year. The music did not
get any quieter after 11pm, but did stop sometime after
midnight. This made sleep very difficult, particularly for our
three children.

This year their website does not indicate any restrictions on
noise (even though these were ignored in practice last year)
and if the festival goes ahead, we will have to move out of
our house for the duration of the festival as the noise was
unbearable last year.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 36

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
https://pa.midsussex.gov.uk/online-applications/centralDistribution.do?caseType=LicencingApplication&keyVal=PS7FPMKT07C00


From: Bex Osman
To: licensing
Cc: Ben Tuttle
Subject: Into the Wild Events Limited - Licensing Applications - Objection
Date: 10 June 2019 17:41:58
Attachments: 20180827_071217.jpg

20180828_072322.jpg

Dear Mr Thornton,

I am emailing you with specific reasons as to why I am objecting to the numerous
applications in relation to the "Into the Wild" Festival.

1 - The noise from the festival last year was excessive & was a Public Nuisance:
As per my communications during the event last year the noise was beyond reasonable as
the drumming started in the evening of 21st August and continued through to the day after
the event (27th August).
Last year's Event Management Plan specified that the music would decrease after 11pm
and it actually increased, to the point that I was kept awake in my bedroom (which is a fair
distance from the venue, on the other side of our house, through very thick stone walls)
until c.1am on the Saturday night / Sunday morning.
The Drums kept going and ended up giving me such a headache that I had to take
paracetamol... and that is before you consider the noise from the attendees, which could be
heard on top of the drums.
As I have seen the same artists are due to be at this year's festival I am concerned the same
noise levels and disruption will be caused this year.

2 - Defecation
Last year there was one occasion on the evening of 23rd August, when the guests were
arriving that I witnessed a lady "going to the toilet" in broad daylight near the footpath in
the field that goes from Chiddinglye to West Hoathly, and I also on a couple of other
occasions following the event ended up standing in or having my dogs role in human
excrement. I am not sure if this is against the law but I do know I have witnessed people in
towns being arrested for urinating in the street, so I can not see how this is any different.

3 - Public safety:
The caravans and tents were put up in the field through which a footpath goes. The
footpath was not clear and there were numerous tent ropes and other trip hazards in the
way which made it dangerous to walk through, as well as portable bbqs.
There were caravans & equipment near / on the footpath for over a week in total, not only
when the festival was on, as per the attached photos from last years event. These pictures
were taken on Tuesday 28th August 2018.

Hopefully the above demonstrates numerous genuine reasons why the licenses should not
be granted for this event, especially as all of the above are based on past experiences NOT
just concern. 

Finally I can not confirm this as I did not witness this but I was told by sources close to the
event that alcohol was in fact sold on site during the festival.

If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards,

Rebecca Osman

Mrs R Osman
East Manor
Stonelands
Selsfield Road
West Hoathly
East Grinstead
RH19 4QY

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 37

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:t@ttle.co.uk




From: Dave & Sandra Duke
To: licensing
Subject: INTO THE WILD, CHIDDINGLY, W. HOATHLY, 23 - 25 August 2019 LI/19/0830
Date: 18 June 2019 22:30:34

Dear Sir/Madam,
We are Mr David & Mrs Sandra Duke of The Apple Store, Stonelands, West Hoathly, 
RH19 4QY .
Chiddingly, the venue of the proposed "Into the Wild" event is about 400 - 500 yards from 
our home.
We were aware of this event last year but were away visiting relatives for that weekend. 
We have had experience of previous music and party events on many occasions during 
previous years from Patrick's Barn, Chiddingly. Know how loud both music, shouting and 
revelry is on those occasions we had a fair idea of the kind of experience to expect. 
Speaking to our neighbours after last year's "Into the Wild" we were not surprised to learn 
of their very unpleasant experiences, both as to noise and coarse/vulgar behaviour on the 
part of some of the attendees at the event. We were glad that we had been away.
We are concerned that the organizer of the "Into the Wild" event is proposing a repeat. 
This has to be seen in the context of the weddings and other celebratory events regularly 
held at Chiddingly, Please refer to our comments on last years Into the Wild event. Also 
our comment the applications in relation to the Wedding venue (Patrick's Barn) and the 
Tap Room.
The result is continued noise associated with such events which is impossible to escape, 
particularly in warmer weather when we ought at least to be able to open the "Velux" type 
windows in our bedroom. Sitting or eating on our patio, either with friends or just the 2 of 
us has been impossible.
Our quality of life and quiet enjoyment is already spoiled and can only be made worse by 
the proposed events planned in relation to "Into the Wild". The proposed live music up to 
23.59 hours is of particular concern.
Already we have plans to be away for at least part of this year's August Bank Holiday 
weekend to avoid it.
It will be appreciated that we object to the granting of a licence for "Into the Wild" 
Yours faithfully,
Mr & Mrs David and Sandra Duke
email:- 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 38

mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk


From: huw wyn
To: Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk
Cc: licensing; WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk
Subject: Re: ESMP (Representation Into the Wild 2019)
Date: 02 July 2019 15:40:42

Dear all,

Thank you for your response, we are happy to agree fully to all the conditions attached to this licence.

On behalf of Into the Wild,

Kind Regards,

Huw Williams

On 2 Jul 2019, at 15:15, Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk wrote:

Good Day

Re 23rd – 26th August 2019 Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly RH19 4QS

The revised ESMP provided via the link below has been considered and provides far

more useful and concise information. In view of this Sussex Police are able to amend

the content of the representation in line with the new information provided.

I can therefore confirm that subject to the following conditions being attached to the

premises licence Sussex Police are able to resolve the original representation:

1. The Premises Licence Holder shall produce an Event Management Plan (EMP) for

the Licensable activity proposed at the premises. (see attached link)

2. No licensable activities otherwise authorised by this Licence, shall take place unless

the EMP is submitted to the Licensing Authority and the responsible authorities no later

than twenty eight (28) days prior to the event, and no significant risk identified (by Lic.

Authority &/or responsible authority) remains outstanding.

3. Any subsequent alterations to the EMP prior to the event must be agreed by the

Licensing Authority and/or the relevant responsible authority

4. Any deviation from the EMP which takes place during the event must only be

undertaken with the specific authority of the licence holder/event organiser in an

emergency situation and will be notified to the L/authority and the relevant responsible

authority as soon as possible.

If the applicant is able to agree to these conditions this should be confirmed in writing to

this office and licensinglicensing@midsussex.gov.uk

Subject to these conditions being attached to the licence Sussex Police may then be

able to resolve the representation.

Regards

Pauline

Pauline Giddings
Divisional Licensing Officer

Prevention Licensing Team

West Sussex

101 x 581443

01273 404030

(My working days are Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday. Please send any urgent
enquiries outside of those days to ws_licensing_wor@sussex.pnn.police.uk)

From: huw wyn [] 
Sent: 27 June 2019 09:18
To: Giddings Pauline 64321 <Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk> 
Cc: licensing@midsussex.gov.uk; WS_Licensing_WOR
<WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk>; West Sussex Operations

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 39

mailto:Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
tel:01273%20404030
mailto:ws_licensing_wor@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk


<WestSussex.Operations@sussex.pnn.police.uk>;
Paul.Thornton@midsussex.gov.uk; Fleming Andrew CF483
<Andrew.Fleming@sussex.pnn.police.uk>
Subject: Re: Current ESMP (Representation Into the Wild 2019)
Dear Pauline
Good morning.
Thank you for your patience, we have now thoroughly updated our whole ESMP
addressing all the valid points you have raised., plus points from Mid Sussex Council.
From now on, our ESMP will be a dynamic document, modified according to the advice
received from qualified authorities including the Police, Licensing Authority, Mid Sussex
District Council, and others.

We read through the online purple guide and have updated and made the document more
user friendly as a manual for running our event. I hope this shows in the new document.

Here is the link:
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj
3z-S6s/edit?usp=sharing
Thank you for your time and advice, it has certainly helped us to make the relevant
changes that will help our events become even better. Our team are thoroughly dedicated
to creating positive, healthy and safe events, we hope this is clear in the ESMP .
Please feel free to call me, if you want any clarifications on anything.
My mobile number is 07415 202280
Kind Regards,
Huw Williams
Director:
www.in2wild.com

On 11 Jun 2019, at 14:36,
Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk wrote:
Good Day,
Thank you for the copy of the ESMP for Into The Wild.
While I am aware that alcohol is not intended to be a factor at this
event there are never the less a number of concern for Sussex Police
with regard the detail of the ESMP.
Clearly a lot of work has gone into compiling the document however it
is still considered to lack detail, specific to this event. I have liaised
with my colleague Insp Fleming who has assessed relevant parts of
the Plan and has raised a broad range of concerns.
These include , but are not restricted to: the lack of contingency
planning ( evacuation of the camp site to points A/B is identified but
what if these areas are not accessible); disproportionate prioritising ,
the guidance for lost children in the document does not feature until
page 73, while CBRN features at page31 (at a family event lost
children may be considered a more likely scenario than chemical
..nuclear contamination); it says ‘Lost children shall be reported to
police as missing after 10 minutes’ ( it does not indicate whether this
is since the responsible adult realised the child was missing, or since
reported to staff). The drugs policy mentions detaining persons by
force but there is no mention of this being dealt with by members of
SIA trained door supervisors, nor what the policy is regarding the

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 40

mailto:WestSussex.Operations@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Paul.Thornton@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:Andrew.Fleming@sussex.pnn.police.uk
https://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=11436&d=-PuU3YUbWCLS8je6avhjELfFB-TvsqaLE4DJSNEzmw&u=https%3a%2f%2fdocs%2egoogle%2ecom%2fdocument%2fd%2f1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s%2fedit%3fusp%3dsharing
https://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=11436&d=-PuU3YUbWCLS8je6avhjELfFB-TvsqaLE4DJSNEzmw&u=https%3a%2f%2fdocs%2egoogle%2ecom%2fdocument%2fd%2f1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s%2fedit%3fusp%3dsharing
tel:07415%20202280
http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=11436&d=-PuU3YUbWCLS8je6avhjELfFB-TvsqaLE9CdTd5imA&u=http%3a%2f%2fwww%2ein2wild%2ecom
mailto:Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk


secure seizure & storage of any substances seized nor recording
details nor corroboration/Body Worn Video of persons taking
possession of the substance. The name of the SIA company was not
evident. Conflict management is mentioned however this something
which SIA not stewards should be managing. This is not how it reads
within this document. That all cars shall be searched underneath is
considered to be overly ambitious aim for this event.
The command structure for this event is unclear and the chain of
command for decision making not evident; indeed much of the
document is not easily accessible particularly for emergency
situations.
It is considered that a simpler document, tailored for this specific
event, with closer consideration to the new HSE ‘Purple Guide’ would
produce a more meaningful document. This should be more
accessible to the staff working to deliver a safe event and to members
of the emergency services who may be called upon to support it.
I hope this feedback will assist not merely in the specific points
identified in this email but by revisiting the document & giving
consideration to the detail & the streamlining of the information and
its format.
Regards
Pauline Giddings
Divisional Licensing Officer

Prevention Licensing Team

West Sussex

101 x 581443

01273 404030

(My working days are Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday. Please send
any urgent enquiries outside of those days
tows_licensing_wor@sussex.pnn.police.uk)

From: huw wyn [ 
Sent: 05 June 2019 16:33
To: Giddings Pauline 64321 <Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk> 
Cc: licensing@midsussex.gov.uk; WS_Licensing_WOR
<WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk>; West Sussex 
Operations <WestSussex.Operations@sussex.pnn.police.uk>;
Paul.Thornton@midsussex.gov.uk; John Warburton
<>; Into The Wild <info@in2wild.com>; Lisa Gordon <l>
Subject: Re: Current ESMP (Representation Into the Wild 2019) Dear 
All,
Attached to this email is the current updated ESMP for Into the Wild 
festival at Chiddinglye, August 2019.
If there is anything else you require, please let us know.
The following index points are the specific areas that were of concern of 
Sussex Police in regard to the ESMP.
The map included is the current map.
The following page numbers address specific points:

Response to issues (e.g. "logbook"): Page 14
"No Alcohol" Policy outline: Page 15

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 41

tel:01273%20404030
mailto:ws_licensing_wor@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Pauline.Giddings@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:WS_Licensing_WOR@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:WestSussex.Operations@sussex.pnn.police.uk
mailto:Paul.Thornton@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:john@johnwarburton.net
mailto:info@in2wild.com
mailto:lisag@gbggproductions.com


The Licensing Objectives: Page 15
Full Drug And Alcohol Policy: Page 60

Here is a link to the current ESMP:
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12X 
xbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s/edit?usp=sharing
Thank you for your time,
Regards,
Huw Williams
Tel: 
You can report crime and incidents online at

https://www.sussex.police.uk/report-online

We want to know your views - see what’s new and give us your feedback and 
suggestions at www.sussex.police.uk

If you have received this message in error, please contact the sender as soon 
as possible - you may not copy it, or make use of any information contained in it 
for any purpose, or disclose its contents to any other person. Messages sent 
and received by Sussex Police are not private and may be the subject of 
monitoring.

You can report crime and incidents online at

https://www.sussex.police.uk/report-online

We want to know your views - see what�s new and give us your feedback and suggestions at

www.sussex.police.uk

If you have received this message in error, please contact the sender as soon as possible -

you may not copy it, or make use of any information contained in it for any purpose, or disclose

its contents to any other person. Messages sent and received by Sussex Police are not private

and may be the subject of monitoring.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 42

https://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=11436&d=-PuU3YUbWCLS8je6avhjELfFB-TvsqaLE4DJSNEzmw&u=https%3a%2f%2fdocs%2egoogle%2ecom%2fdocument%2fd%2f1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s%2fedit%3fusp%3dsharing
https://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=11436&d=-PuU3YUbWCLS8je6avhjELfFB-TvsqaLE4DJSNEzmw&u=https%3a%2f%2fdocs%2egoogle%2ecom%2fdocument%2fd%2f1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s%2fedit%3fusp%3dsharing
https://www.sussex.police.uk/report-online
http://www.sussex.police.uk/
https://www.sussex.police.uk/report-online
http://www.sussex.police.uk/


From: Oliver Benson
To: licensing
Cc: huw wyn
Subject: FW: LI/19/0830 Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East Grinstead West Sussex RH19 4QS

SR/19/1879
Date: 27 June 2019 09:24:33
Attachments: image001.jpg

Dear Licensing,
Based on the updated event management plan, specifically appendix P, and the agreement of
the condition below Environmental Protection will be looking to withdraw the representation to
the event.
For reference we have agreed a condition along the following wording, but appreciate this will
also need the consideration of the licensing team in terms of wording and enforceability:
“The Event Management Plan shall form part of the Premises Licence, and the event will be run
in strict accordance with the plan. No changes will be made to it without prior written consent of
the Licensing Authority.”
Happy to discuss.
Many thanks,
Oliver
Oliver Benson BSc (Hons), MCIEH

Contaminated Land and Environmental Protection Officer

Environmental Health

Room 101, The West Wing

Mid Sussex District Council

Oaklands Road

Haywards Heath

RH16 1SS

Tel: +44 (0)1444 477059

Email: oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk

Please Note: I am away from the office on Tuesdays.
MSDClogo

From: huw wyn [mailto:dejahu@me.com] 
Sent: 27 June 2019 09:11
To: Oliver Benson
Subject: Re: LI/19/0830 Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East Grinstead West Sussex
RH19 4QS SR/19/1879
Hi Oliver,
Thank you for your response.
We have updated our ESMP accordingly.
We are very happy to agree to all your recommendations, and will be happy to help should your team
wish to come and monitor the sound.
Here is a link to our live ESMP document.
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s/edit?
usp=sharing
If there is anything else you require, please let me know.
Kind regards,
Huw Williams

On 26 Jun 2019, at 15:45, Oliver Benson <Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 43

mailto:Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:dejahu@me.com
mailto:oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733693590&sdata=I1jGRHDNk0Q%2BsnH0O3KJxjCW0TD9c0U1mqEejym93Us%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdocs.google.com%2Fdocument%2Fd%2F1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s%2Fedit%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733693590&sdata=rdcYH9ePad5XkdZvlTTyTC%2Fv3%2FLF5SLlNKtiJrhkwEc%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdocs.google.com%2Fdocument%2Fd%2F1vdxoawMUBOJoHBgA1Nn7bq12Xxbelj3cKRHyj3z-S6s%2Fedit%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733693590&sdata=rdcYH9ePad5XkdZvlTTyTC%2Fv3%2FLF5SLlNKtiJrhkwEc%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk



Hi Huw,

While I’m happy with the majority of this, there are contradictions under both

measurement specifications and during the festival.
Specifically these relate to

“MNL expressed as an LAeq should not exceed 65dB(A) over a 15 minute period”
“In the absence of specific guidance from Mid Sussex District Council on the C-
weighted noise levels acceptable in the 63Hz and 125Hz bands, we refer to guidance
from Sevenoaks District Council when licensing a festival ("Neverworld") at Wilderness
Farm: 75dBC at peak times, 70dBC at other times. (The document does not use a
reference level or weighting, but I presume it's C-weighted because we're considering
lower frequencies). These figures for low frequences are at a 2km distance from the
main stage.”
These should be adjusted to adopt what has been said earlir on in the plan:

“We use other Local Authority guidance for these levels: at 1m from the facade of noise
sensitive premises, the Sound Pressure Level (Z-weighted) in the 63Hz and 125Hz
third-octave bands must not exceed 71dB”

“The recommended limit for events held between 0900 and 2300 for a venue used for
four or more days per annum is that the Music Noise Level measured at the edge of a
residential property must not exceed the background noise level by more than 15dBA
over a 15 minute period.”
Provided this can be agreed, and submitted in a updated event management plan, I

would be happy to agree a condition along the following lines that would allow me to

withdraw the representation from our:

“The Event Management Plan shall form part of the Premises Licence, and the event

will be run in strict accordance with the plan. No changes will be made to it without prior

written consent of the Licensing Authority.”

Please be aware we may carry out our own monitoring during the event.

Happy to discuss.

Kind regards,

Oliver

Oliver Benson BSc (Hons), MCIEH

Contaminated Land and Environmental Protection Officer

Environmental Health

Room 101, The West Wing

Mid Sussex District Council

Oaklands Road

Haywards Heath

RH16 1SS

Tel: +44 (0)1444 477059

Email: oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk

Please Note: I am away from the office on Tuesdays.

<image001.jpg>

From: huw wyn [mailto:dejahu@me.com] 
Sent: 26 June 2019 08:43
To: Oliver Benson
Subject: Re: LI/19/0830 Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East Grinstead West Sussex
RH19 4QS SR/19/1879
Hi Oliver,
Good morning.
We are totally in agreement with your recommendation and have made some adjustments in order to
make sure these are adhered to.
Here are some notes that are now in our new updated ESMP.
Into the Wild intends to reach the noise criteria generally accepted at UK venues agreed with their
respective licensing authorities, and the Noise Council’s Code of Practice on Environmental Noise
Control at Concerts (1995).

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 44

tel:+44%201444%20477059
mailto:oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733703580&sdata=m0qLLfTh7pyHvVEeKhvZwvaIn1W68FAsTqJeI2%2FmIGg%3D&reserved=0
mailto:dejahu@me.com


The recommended limit for events held between 0900 and 2300 for a venue used for four or more days
per annum is that the Music Noise Level measured at the edge of a residential property must not exceed
the background noise level by more than 15dBA over a 15 minute period.
Because Chiddinglye Farm hosts weddings and other events during the year, we believe it fits into the
“four or more” events per annum category.

Measurements are to be taken 1m from the facade of any noise sensitive premises.

The code also states that events continuing after 2300 should be inaudible within noise-sensitive
premises with windows open for ventilation.
The code’s notes say that an acceptable form of control is to allow music to be “just audible” outside
noise-sensitive premises.
Additionally, we are able to measure and control sound output in one-third octave bands. Although
noise levels for these bands are currently without formal recommendations for the UK, we commit to
conducting C-weighted tests during the festival’s operation, and adjust the frequency bands at the stage
sound control position appropriately.

We use other Local Authority guidance for these levels: at 1m from the facade of noise sensitive
premises, the Sound Pressure Level (Z-weighted) in the 63Hz and 125Hz third-octave bands must not
exceed 71dB
STAFFING
Into The Wild now employs a dedicated team member for noise monitoring and control, supported by
one of the Event Producers, who is a qualified graduate in sound recording and a professional sound and
record producer.
PRE-FESTIVAL MEASUREMENTS
We shall submit the exact locations in the surrounding community at which L90 and, later, festival
sound measurements will be taken on a date at least three weeks before festival build-out commences,
to be notified to Mid Sussex District Council. We will be guided in these by the locations of reports that
were made in 2018, and by our own notes of other nearby settlements. We welcome additional locations
specified by the Licensing Authority.
MEASUREMENT SPECIFICATIONS
We have taken steps to acknowledge the concerns both about the number of times the readings are
taken, and the accurate measurement of the L90 at a number of points.
In a site visit, whose date will be notified to Environmental Health, we will complete ambient noise
level measurements using A- and C- weighting, though we will generally consider the A-weighted
measurement more relevant to our needs. Measurement will be integrated over a minimum 15-minute
period in each location.
We aim to meet or exceed the Noise Council's guidelines for environmental noise for sites that are used
for live performance between one and three days a year at a rural venue, which are a little less stringent
for a three-day festival than the +15dBA over ambient noise we quoted earlier.
"Days annually: 1 to 3. Venue type: Other Urban and Rural Venues. Noise level: the MNL expressed as
an LAeq should not exceed 65dB(A) over a 15 minute period"
Nevertheless, if Mid Sussex District Council would prefer us to adhere to the more stringent regulation
for venues used more frequently for musical performance, I believe the festival's combination of folk
and world music will permit such levels to be achieved, without disappointing the audience or artistes.
MEASURING EQUIPMENT
When measuring ambient noise before the festival dates, we will use a meter capable of A-weighting
and C-weighting, but not a third-octave analyser.
On festival days, a one-third octave analyser will be in use, hired to us by a firm that will supply
calibration certificates.
DURING THE FESTIVAL
Because we have dedicated staff for noise monitoring, their only task during rehearsals and
performances, and for some time after, will be to tour the agreed measuring points, and any other places
that seem appropriate, to take readings.
The readings will include A-weighted measurements, and also measurements in the frequency bands
that cause the most irritation, namely those centred at 125Hz and 63Hz. Whilst these frequency bands
do not contribute much to A-weighted measurements, we will be able to use these measurements to

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 45



instruct the sound controller to lower those frequency bands if their prominence is excessive or likely to
cause irritation. This is in addition to the requirement for general noise to be limited as above.
In the absence of specific guidance from Mid Sussex District Council on the C-weighted noise levels
acceptable in the 63Hz and 125Hz bands, we refer to guidance from Sevenoaks District Council when
licensing a festival ("Neverworld") at Wilderness Farm: 75dBC at peak times, 70dBC at other times.
(The document does not use a reference level or weighting, but I presume it's C-weighted because we're
considering lower frequencies). These figures for low frequences are at a 2km distance from the main
stage.
MAIN TENT LEVELS
Main tent levels will always be within safe limits for hearing exposure, as detailed in our ESMP, with
crowd control to move people away from loudspeakers, and protect vulnerable children.
The absolute level in the Main Tent is secondary in importance to the measured noise that will be
measured at neighbours' locations.
Hope this is helpful,
Huw

On 25 Jun 2019, at 14:47, Oliver Benson <Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:
Hi Huw,
Thanks very much for your quick response.
I’m happy to review what they come back with, but once per hour while bands are on would be
recommended as need to ensure its at level that residents cannot hear at all.
I look forward to the response to the rest of the comments.
Many thanks,
Oliver
Oliver Benson BSc (Hons), MCIEH

Contaminated Land and Environmental Protection Officer

Environmental Health

Room 101, The West Wing

Mid Sussex District Council

Oaklands Road

Haywards Heath

RH16 1SS

Tel: +44 (0)1444 477059

Email: oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk

Please Note: I am away from the office on Tuesdays.

<image001.jpg>

From: huw wyn [mailto:d] 
Sent: 25 June 2019 11:14
To: Oliver Benson
Subject: Re: LI/19/0830 Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East Grinstead West Sussex 
RH19 4QS SR/19/1879
HI Oliver,
We have now sourced a dedicated noise monitoring team, who will be taking sound levels throughout 
the day.
I will get a suggested timetable for this, unless you have one in mind?
We normally go on until midnight, although the sound does go down after 11, we have always finished 
at midnight, the bands between 11 - 12 are quieter than up to 11.
As for the rest of your questions, I have passed this onto John to answer as I am not a sound expert. 
He is at his other job today, but will get back by tomorrow.
Best wishes,
Huw

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 46

mailto:Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk
tel:+44%201444%20477059
mailto:oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733713580&sdata=bed7d87Ybyf4fV0NNicl9LukymT2GOtEEyTynAoMvmw%3D&reserved=0
mailto:dejahu@me.com


On 25 Jun 2019, at 09:53, Oliver Benson <Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:
Hi Huw,
Thank you for passing this on.
The measures taken seem appropriate.
My concern reading the noise levels form last year is that they aren’t frequently taken. Is there a
process for deciding when noise reading should be taken to ensure noise levels are being
complied with. My other concern is that there still seem to be quiet high music levels past 23:00.
Am I right in thinking all music should finish at 23:00?
In terms of monitoring for this year, and ensuring noise levels are a maximum of 15dB above the
L90 at the nearest resident, has the L90 been established or will this be done during sound
checks? Has it been established what levels this will / may allow within the main music tent and
whether that will be sufficient for the bands playing?
As JW has stated, it is low frequency noise that will travel the furthest. Will 1/3 Octave bands
also be measured during the event, and what level are these likely to achieve at residents?
Many thanks for sending this through, and I look forward to hearing from you regarding the
comments above.
Kind regards,
Oliver
Oliver Benson BSc (Hons), MCIEH

Contaminated Land and Environmental Protection Officer

Environmental Health

Room 101, The West Wing

Mid Sussex District Council

Oaklands Road

Haywards Heath

RH16 1SS

Tel: +44 (0)1444 477059

Email: oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk

Please Note: I am away from the office on Tuesdays.

<image001.jpg>

From: huw wyn [mailto:d
Sent: 25 June 2019 09:24
To: Oliver Benson
Subject: Re: LI/19/0830 Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East Grinstead West Sussex 
RH19 4QS SR/19/1879
Hi Oliver,
Hope you are well.
We have a number of strategies for keeping the sound levels to the councils recommended levels.
1. We have moved the main music marquee, further away from the nearest neighbours.
2. We make sure there is no drumming on site after 10pm.
3. We don’t have any electronic music after 10pm. (We do have some in the day time for dance
workshops).
4. We schedule bands, so that the ones with more bass and are louder finish earlier.
5. Nearly all our music is live and much of it folk and world music.
I have attached the sound levels from last year. With a message from our production manager.
I hope this help to clarify that we take our impact on both the environment and local people seriously.
Our event is not primarily a music festival but a well being festival with many children. This means
many go to bed quite early, so we deliberately make sure we are very aware of our sound levels, as even
our own audience would be complaining.
We are updating the ESMP now to reflect all the recommendations from all the authorities. There is
now a whole section of the ESMP dedicated to Noise policy, plus a dedicated noise monitoring team,
who have the authority to control the level of the stage sound and its frequency response. This is

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 47

mailto:Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk
tel:+44%201444%20477059
mailto:oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733713580&sdata=bed7d87Ybyf4fV0NNicl9LukymT2GOtEEyTynAoMvmw%3D&reserved=0
mailto:dejahu@me.com


referenced in Appendix P of the new ESMP. We will send this tomorrow evening.
I hope this helps with your decision.
Best wishes,
Huw
Hello Huw!
Here are the noise meter readings from our Health and Safety Officer for the 2018 festival.
All are measured in dBA, and were averages of at least 4 minutes. Remember that the dBA standard rolls off the
frequency response below 1kHz, and in the area of low frequencies, below 128Hz, it is a minimum of -15dB
down in sensitivity. These are the frequencies that propagate further. I have enclosed a curve to illustrate this.
Please see attachment.
with best wishes,
JW
<image002.jpg>

On 20 Jun 2019, at 11:31, Oliver Benson <Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear Mr William’s,

Apologies this is only just reaching you.

I believed representations were passed on via the licensing team, but I was mistaken.

As you can see below we have put in a representation to the proposed event.

While I appreciate that within the event management plan you have spoken about the

issues last year and looked to address them, we have still not been provided with the

levels recorded at last year’s event.

I am also unsure given the scale of the event how a level of no higher than 15dBA

above background is going to be achieved maintained at the nearest residents.

If we can look at the levels from last year and be shown how the proposed levels will be

achieved for this year, then we will hopefully be able to look to withdraw our

representation .

Happy to discuss.

Kind regards,

Oliver

Oliver Benson BSc (Hons), MCIEH

Contaminated Land and Environmental Protection Officer

Environmental Health

Room 101, The West Wing

Mid Sussex District Council

Oaklands Road

Haywards Heath

RH16 1SS

Tel: +44 (0)1444 477059

Email: oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk

Please Note: I am away from the office on Tuesdays.

<image001.jpg>

From: Oliver Benson 
Sent: 10 June 2019 13:49
To: licensing
Cc: Paul Thornton
Subject: LI/19/0830 Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East Grinstead West Sussex
RH19 4QS SR/19/1879
Dear Licensing,
I am objecting to this application on behalf of EP.
We had 4 complaints relating to the levels of music and people noise throughout the same event

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 48

mailto:Oliver.Benson@midsussex.gov.uk
tel:+44%201444%20477059
mailto:oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733723579&sdata=%2Bkw8GYiztd4cHrgJ1uo9LKS4NjJ%2F2Udfa0y5JGWelqU%3D&reserved=0


last year.
With regards to music noise, specifically it was alleged that the music noise levels were loud all
day and then went up at 11pm when they were due to go down to inaudibility.
We went back to the organisers on the 29 August 2018 regarding the complaints, and we were
informed they would be looked into and that we would be provided with the sound levels that
were recorded during the event as agreed as part of their noise management plan. Further
information has not been received to date.
As such we are concerned that the proposed event is likely to cause a public nuisance and are
therefore objecting to the application.
Kind regards,
Oliver
Oliver Benson BSc (Hons), MCIEH

Contaminated Land and Environmental Protection Officer

Environmental Health

Room 101, The West Wing

Mid Sussex District Council

Oaklands Road

Haywards Heath

RH16 1SS

Tel: +44 (0)1444 477059

Email: oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk

Please Note: I am away from the office on Tuesdays.

<image001.jpg>
The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information

Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally exempt from disclosure, we cannot

guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of this email to a third party making a request for

information about the subject matter of this email.

This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and

used by the named addressees. If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure, copying, alteration

or forwarding of this email and its attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this email in error please

notify the sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and remove this email and its

attachments from your system.

The views expressed within this email and any attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid

Sussex District Council. We have taken precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but

we advise you to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any attachments. Except

where required by law, we shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or liability of any kind suffered in

connection with this email and any attachments, or which may result from reliance on the contents of this

email and any attachments.

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 49

tel:+44%201444%20477059
mailto:oliver.benson@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=02%7C01%7Clicensing%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C7feec37ecf214c73656208d6fad8e0ee%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C1%7C0%7C636972206733723579&sdata=%2Bkw8GYiztd4cHrgJ1uo9LKS4NjJ%2F2Udfa0y5JGWelqU%3D&reserved=0
tel:+44%201444%20458%20166


 

 

 

 

Summary of conditions agreed  

Between 

 Into the Wild Ltd 

Sussex Police  

Mid Sussex District Council Environmental protection Team 

 

1.  The Premises Licence Holder shall produce an Event Management Plan (EMP) for 
      the Licensable activity proposed at the premises 
 
2.  No licensable activities otherwise authorised by this Licence, shall take place unless 

the EMP is submitted to the Licensing Authority and the responsible authorities no 
later than twenty eight (28) days prior to the event. 
 

3.  Any subsequent alterations to the EMP prior to the event must be agreed by the 
Licensing Authority and/or the relevant responsible authority 
 

4.  Any deviation from the EMP which takes place during the event must only be 
undertaken with the specific authority of the licence holder/event organiser in an 
emergency situation and will be notified to the L/authority and the relevant 
responsible authority as soon as possible. 
 
 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 50



From: Michael Bateman
To: licensing
Subject: LI/19/0830: Chiddinglye Farm Selsfield Road West Hoathly East Grinstead West Sussex RH19 4QS
Date: 17 June 2019 14:01:46
Attachments: Into the Wild Representation.docx

Appendix A.docx
image001.jpg

Dear Sir/Madam

 

Please find attached a written representation from the licensing authority objecting to

the Into the Wild event.

 

 

Kind Regards,

 

Michael Bateman

Licensing, Food and Safety Team Leader

Environmental Health

Tel: +44 (0) 1444 477295

michael.bateman@midsussex.gov.uk

www.midsussex.gov.uk

 

 
MSDClogo

 

‘Working together for a better Mid Sussex’

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 51

mailto:Michael.Bateman@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:michael.bateman@midsussex.gov.uk
http://www.midsussex.gov.uk/
http://www.midsussex.gov.uk/

Into the Wild Representation



The licensing authority makes a representation on the application for the event Into the Wild, objecting due to concerns that the licensing objective, Public Safety, will not be achieved. This representation is based on V15 of the Event Management Plan provided. The licensing authority makes the following points in support of its objection.



1. Water management on site

On Page 56, it states, “Other than the water supply that the landowner has made available via above-ground inert plastic pipes, there is to be no other supply.” On page 67, under Food and Drink, it states, “All water supplied by Into the Wild’s infrastructure is drinking water, and is tested by our delegated water suppliers. The records of these tests are kept.”



The Event Management Plan, page 54, under The Environment, states that “Areas of natural water on site, although fenced off, will be sampled, and the samples sent away to be tested for harmful chemicals or bacteria. Sample testing has been completed and results deemed satisfactory by the festival’s Water Engineer.”



Similar assertions were made in the Event Management Plan for 2018, yet a food business was found to be using a private water supply when officers visited the site. This is not addressed within the Event Management Plan and this phrasing would indicate that the water may again be used by attendees. The assertion that sample testing has been completed and results deemed satisfactory is confusing and misleading. A private water supply cannot be deemed satisfactory from limited sampling. It is unclear why this water is being sampled at all if it is not to be used and fenced off. When spring water was sampled on site at the previous event it was found to be unsatisfactory. 



Random sampling of private water is not sufficient to determine its safeness. If it is not in compliance with the Private Water Supply regulations, then it cannot be encouraged for use by a member of the public.



2. Food Safety management

The Event Management Plan, under Food Hygiene, page 27, states, “Traders will be contacted and instructed to comply with these points before the beginning of Into The Wild. Trader compliance must be checked by the festival's Health and Safety Officer before a stand can be permitted to open.” On page 63, under Food and Drink, it states, “Briefly, all food vendors will be checked long before the event for compliance with requirements for local authority registration, insurance, and gas/LPLG certification. Food safety inspections will be carried out on-site before the festival opens to the public.”



The Event Management Plan 2018, page 53, stated the same, “Briefly, all food vendors will be checked long before the event for compliance with requirements for local authority registration, insurance, and gas/LPLG certification. Food safety inspections will be carried out on-site before the festival opens to the public.”



Senior Environmental Health Officers attended site and found an illegally operating food business, which was operated by the event organiser – Huw Williams – own family. Details of this business were not provided prior to the event. When initially approached by the officers they ran away. Upon returning later, the business was found to be operating again with multiple contraventions of food safety law identified. This causes significant concern. Was this business checked by the Health and Safety Officer as per the Event Management Plan? Were they allowed to operate without being registered as a food business? Why did the event organiser and Health and Safety Officer allow this to occur in contravention of the Event Management Plan?



The Senior Environmental Health Officers also identified a food business – Rainbow Café – using a private water supply. No details of this food business could be found in the pre-supplied information. Was this business checked by the Health and Safety Officer as per the Event Management Plan? Were they allowed to operate without being registered as a food business? Did the Health and Safety officer identify that a food business was using an unsafe water supply?



The same assertions are made in this Event Management Plan that was made prior to the previous event, yet either they did not occur or they were not carried out by a competent person. This raises concerns that the same issues will occur again this year. No part of the Event Management Plan for 2019 addresses the issues identified at the previous event and how they will be corrected. There is no information provided on what checks will be completed or how this will be recorded to demonstrate that the checks have been completed, or what the level of competence of the Health and Safety Officer undertaking these checks is?



3. Health and Safety management

Within the application, page 20-21, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will promote the licensing objective of public safety, the applicant states that, “The event has contracted an experienced and qualified health and safety manager.” In the Event Management Plan this is identified as Steve Howard on page 15.



This is the same health and safety manager as last year. What is the experience and qualifications of Steve Howard to make him the competent person for health and safety on site? What action did he take last year? There is no mention of the issues that occurred last year or how event safety will be improved to ensure the same issues do not occur again this year. The Event Management Plan states for Health & Safety, page 21, “See Appendix: Risk Assessments and Fire Risk Assessments.” These have not been provided.



4. Working with the Local Authority

Within the application, page 19, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will promote the four licensing objectives, it is advised that they are “… keen and fully engaged to work with all the local authorities to make the safest, creative and inspirational event possible.”



The Event Management Plan, page 39, under Water Crisis, advises that, “In the event of significant water shortage, additional supplies will be imported by Into The Wild from commercial sources which we have already put on stand-by, and whose procedures the Event Manager and Event Producers are already familiar with.”



Despite similar assertions in the Event Management Plan 2018, this was not found to be the case when the event was held last year. Two Senior Environmental Health Officers, who had to attend the event last year, found management to be obstructive and evasive, even in the face of what may have been a serious outbreak incident.



Officers found a reluctance to source safe drinking water for members of the public due to the cost implication to the event organisers of doing so. Whilst on site, when requested, management was not able to provide the water sampling test results or schematics for the temporary water supply. Following the event a Senior Environmental Officer attempted through multiple requests to gather information relating to the schematics of the temporary water supply and information collected from those members of the public who presented with signs of gastro-intestinal illness. This information was never fully provided.



Recommendations following the previous event were for provision of full details and explanation, including schematics and plans, and water testing complying with BS8551 to be provided. This has not been addressed in the Event Management Plan.



There are significant concerns that the Event Management Plan is insufficient in addressing the issues that occurred last year, that it was not followed last year, and that the same issues may exist this year. 



5. Alcohol on site

Within the application, page 19, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will promote the four licensing objectives, the event is promoted “… as free from alcohol and drugs … We do not normally have a problem with drink or drugs …” In the Event Management Plan page 10, Type of Event, it is stated that it is, “A key point is that the event is entirely alcohol-free …” On page 60, under Drug and Alcohol Policy, it is stated, “Into the Wild is specifically alcohol free …” On page 63 under Food and Drink, it states, “As an alcohol-free event there will be no bars selling alcohol. Some of the food vendors will be selling non-alcoholic drinks, both hot and cold.” On page 15, under alcohol sales, “There is to be no alcohol on site, neither brought-in nor for sale.”



It has been alleged by residents to the licensing authority that alcohol was being sold to visitors from the Missing Link brewery, just meters outside the venue. The applicant does not address this and it is a contradiction that the event is promoted as being alcohol free whilst alcohol is being sold just off site by a different business. Although technically alcohol is not being provided by the event organisers, public safety cannot be adequately promoted by ignoring the fact that alcohol is freely available for attendees at the event, to be consumed by walking off site a short distance and then back onto site.



6. Confidence in Competence of Management

When reviewing the Event Management Plan in 2018, it was considered that positive steps were put in place to manage the event safely. The Event Management Plan for the 2019 event is very similar to the 2018 plan. The management structure appears to be unchanged. 



Where one of the event organisers own family is allowed to operate an illegal food business, where when in a situation where e coli is found to be present in the site’s water supply, management were found to be obstructive, evasive and reticent to take action to provide safe drinking water for members of the public, and where there is no change in the event management for the event this year, the licensing authority has fundamental concerns for public safety at this event. The Event Management Plan was not followed last year so why would we have any confidence it would be followed this year.



What these issues represent is a serious concern that the event will not be managed in practise how it is described on paper. The Event Management Plan was found to be clearly not followed at the previous event and there is no identification in the material provided how the issues that occurred last year will be prevented from occurring this year. This is supported by the Mid Sussex District Council Event Report, attached as Appendix A. There are grounds to conclude that the licensing objectives will not be promoted and therefore an objection is made by the licensing authority.

Page 3 of 3




















‘Into the Wild’ 

24-27th August 2018



MSDC Event Report 

























Author: Andrew Snadden MSc, Emergency Planning Manager. 



Introduction



‘Into the Wild’ was a family festival that took place between the 23rd and 27th August 2018 in Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly. It was attended by approximately 4-5,000 people and was delivered by the ‘In2theWild’ Event Management Team. The festival consisted of music, woodland walks, spiritual workshops, activities for children, and promoted a strict no alcohol policy. 



Safety Advisory Group 



On Wednesday 18th July, the event was reviewed by the Mid Sussex Safety Advisory Group (SAG) in conjunction with the ‘In2theWild’ Event Management Team, following submission of their event documentation.  



The Event Safety Plan that was provided contained all the necessary information, including site layout, fire safety information, water provision, emergency protocols, and vendor information. Additionally, when requested to expand on certain arrangements by members of the SAG, the ‘In2thewild’ Management Team duly complied. The minutes from the SAG meeting can be found in Appendix A. 



Site Visit 



On Thursday 23rd August, a pre-opening site visit was conducted by the MSDC Emergency Planning Manager (EPM) and a Local Authority Incident Liaison Officer (ILO) at the invitation of the event organisers. This invite was extended to other members of the Mid Sussex SAG; however, due to other commitments they were unable to attend. This situation was less than ideal, but it will be rectified for future events. 



Initial observations of the site were good, with nothing appearing to be a cause for concern. The only point that was raised was concerning the bowing of the main entertainment tent due to an accumulation of rain water; however, this was resolved before the event commenced. In addition to the main tent, the workshop areas, vendors and camping areas were checked. With regards to vendor checks, the EPM and ILO had limited expertise in this subject; therefore, the checks were only cursory. 



Water Contamination

Day 1

At 17:55hrs on Friday 24th August, the EPM received a call from Nick Poole from Prestek Services, who was responsible for the provision of water at the event. Nick advised the EPM that a second water sample had been taken and had returned from the lab indicating a large presence of Ecoli (highest score of 12 ‘echo’) in the system (see Appendix B). The EPM enquired whether the event management team were putting their water contingency plan into place. Nick advised the EPM that there was a water tanker on standby and requested support from MSDC. 



Prior to attending the scene, the EPM informed South East Coast Ambulance and Public Health England of the situation. Attempts were also made to contact an MSDC EHO; however, this initially proved unsuccessful because the unit does not have an Out of Hours facility. Consequently, it was requested that mutual aid be explored via ESCC/Wealden DC, although this also proved unsuccessful. 



On arrival on scene, the EPM met with the event management team, although the event organiser, Huw Williams, was not present. The team appeared to be apprehensive about making decisions such as whether to shut the water off and communicate the issue to the festival goers, despite being allegedly empowered by Huw. There were also suggestions that the water could be boiled to protect against bugs. However, the EPM liaised with the duty PHE consultant and agreed that it did not seem appropriate to keep the water on and advise people to boil water due to the risk that this might not take place. In addition to this, there was concern for the 800 children and elderly on-site that could become ill if the proper control measures were not implemented. Therefore, the EPM advised the event management team that they should consider shutting the water system off and moving to bottled water until the issue could be fully resolved, as per their Event Safety Plan. 



Following some internal calls, an MSDC EHO, Eve Turgut, was contacted. Eve advised the EPM that vendors should cease drawing the water, dispose of their stores and sterilise their tanks before refilling. The vendors were not informed by the event team until 23:00hrs; however, the water had been shut off at 21:30hrs. In addition to the vendors being informed, the EPM and PHE consultant decided that the event management team should perform warning and informing actions amongst the festival goers about the contamination and advise them to report to the on-site medical team if they began displaying systems of E.coli poisoning. The rationale behind this decision was to ensure that vulnerable people received early medical intervention if symptoms were displayed rather than wait due to the belief that it may be standard bug. A copy of the contamination notice that was handed out to everyone on site by the event stewards can be found in Appendix C. Before leaving the scene, the EPM was advised that Nick Poole and his team would conduct a full chlorine system flush, and that the water tanker would arrive the following morning. 



A point worth noting was the reaction of Huw Williams when he attended the event management tent and learnt of the actions being taken. Huw and his brother appeared frustrated that the water had been shut off and that bottled water was being requested. His brother also began asking whether the Council would be paying for the emergency provision of water and what actions were being taken to establish how widespread the water contamination was. The EPM advised them in no uncertain terms that the Council was only there in an advisory capacity and to ensure that the festival goers welfare was considered at all times. It was also explained that the Council would not be held liable for any decisions undertaken by the event management team or land owner. 



Day 2 

At 02:45hrs on Saturday 25th August, the EPM was contacted by Nick Poole who stated that the water tanker that was on standby for the event was unlikely to be available before 11:00hrs that day, if at all. The EPM advised Nick that Huw would need to consider alternative water provision options due people requiring water after waking up and to mitigate the risk of dehydration should anyone begin displaying the symptoms of E.coli poisoning. If this was not possible, Huw and the event management team were advised to consider the ongoing viability of the event. 



At 04:45hrs, the EPM was informed that the water tanker was unavailable; however, Water Direct had agreed to deliver a suitable amount of bottled water. 



At 08:30hrs, the EPM was informed that there had been 5 cases of diarrhoea and vomiting reported. This information was passed to Eve Turgut, PHE and SECAMB, who all stated that warning & informing about hygiene was of particular importance. At 11:25hrs, the EPM attended the event with Glen Wilkinson (back up ILO), and EHOs, Klara Boarder and Julia Jarvis. On arrival, they met with the event management team/Kent Medical Services (On-site medical team) and convened an emergency meeting to discuss the situation. 



Within an hour of arriving on scene the cases of diarrhoea and vomiting had doubled (10), which meant that it had crossed the threshold for PHE’s definition on an ‘outbreak’. These cases were subsequently investigated by the EHOs in conjunction with Kent Medical Services. On initial observation, it appeared that there was a link to food that had been consumed from one of the vendors, although further investigation revealed that this link was tenuous. As a consequence of the increase in sickness cases being reported, the importance of providing sufficient water to prevent dehydration was impressed on Huw. At 12:50hrs, he authorised water to be provided by Water Aid for the duration of the event. 



Rainbow Café 

During checks of the vendors to ensure they were compliant with food hygiene legislation, it was discovered that the  ‘Rainbow Café’ had been using water sourced from an unknown source on site and were refusing to use bottled water due to environmental concerns around the use of plastics. Consequently, a sample of their water supply was taken and tested, and they were asked to take the EHOs to the source which turned out to be an overflow spring. The staff at the Rainbow Café were instructed to immediately cease using the water and to use bottled water or risk being shut down. It has since been established that the water sample that was tested, returned a result of 36 E.coli, indicating that it was highly contaminated (see Appendix D). 





On-Site Fires 

On Saturday 25th August there were two fires on-site, both of which were attended by West Sussex Fire & Rescue Service. The first of these two incidents occurred at 14:30hrs when a solar panel system malfunctioned and started a fire in a stack of plastic wrapped hay bales, producing a toxic flume and blocking the access road. There were no injuries. 



The second fire occurred in the evening within the event team campsite and involved a camper van becoming engulfed in flames. Similar to the first fire, this did not cause any injuries; however, this could have been more serious due to the proximity of the van to other tents and vehicles in the area. 



Additional Issues

In addition to the aforementioned, the following issues were also encountered. 

· Huw William’s daughter and partner were selling food without a license or food hygiene certification. Huw was told that this needed to cease.

· The Event Management Team lacked co-ordination and were under the impression that they were empowered to make decisions on Huw’s behalf; however, Huw did not appear to be aware or comfortable with this. 

· Traffic management in relation to access and egress was poorly controlled and led to vehicles travelling in opposite directions on a single track lane, which could have caused collisions. 



Debrief

A debrief was held on the 8th November and attended by representatives from MSDC, WSCC, the landowner and the ‘In2 the Wild’ Event Management Team. A copy of the report and its subsequent recommendations can be found in Appendix E. 




Appendix A

SAG Minutes





















Notes of the Mid Sussex Safety Advisory Group Meeting

Date: 18/07/18

Event: ‘Into the Wild’



Attendees:

Andrew Snadden: MSDC (Chair)                John Webster: Prestek Services

Huw Wyn: Event Organiser                         Natalie Mandry: WSCC

Lisa Gordon: Event Organiser                     Hope Blandamer: WSCC

John Walberton: Event Organiser                Michael Bateman: MSDC

Nick Poole: Prestek Services

Edmund Earl of Limerick: Land owner

		Introductions 



		

The chair welcomed those present and invited introductions. Additionally, provided apologies for those unable to attend. 





		Event Organiser’s Brief 



		

The chair introduced the event and asked the organisers to brief those present on its content. 



Huw Wyn summarised the event; 



‘Into the Wild’ will be a family festival consisting of world music, dance, craft and therapies taking place at Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly, between the 24th and 27th August. There is an expected attendance of 2000, although it is unlikely this figure will be met. 820 of those attending are expected to be children. 



There will be a ‘no alcohol’ policy at the event, which will be communicated to attendees on purchase of tickets, on the event website and when they arrive. 



The event build will take place between Friday 17th and Thursday 23rd August, with the event dismantle taking place between Tuesday 28th and Friday 31st. There will be no vehicle movements during the event itself, with all deliveries being made during the build phase.  



Huw Wyn provided the group with an overview of the site map, which included Ingress and Egress routes, emergency access, camping and parking locations, and the entertainment footprint.





		Risk Management 



		

Natalie Mandry enquired whether grass would be cut short prior to the event due to the current risk of wildfires. Edmund confirmed that the land would be ready for the event, including grass cutting. 



The organisers were asked questions regarding their adverse weather arrangements, with particular focus on heatwaves. Huw Wyn advised the group that free water would be provided for the event in ‘water pillows’ and that additional water provision would be sought from a confirmed commercial provider in the event of a shortage. The latter point was raised as a potential concern due to it being difficult for commercial providers to provide instant responses .Therefore, the group suggested that other contingencies should also be considered. Huw Wyn and the other organisers took this point on board and stated that they would ensure there was bottled water available too. 



Nick Poole advised the group that the Met Office system, Hazard Manager, would be monitored before and during the event, and that appropriate action would be taken if adverse weather such as storms were expected. 



The group enquired about the event’s wind speed limits and the protocols for dealing with this. Huw Wyn replied that the maximum limit was 36mph for the 3 stages on site. Further details about the protocols could be found in the updated plan. 



John Walberton and Lisa Gordon advised the group about the on-site firefighting capabilities, which included extinguishers, firebreaks, fire blankets and sand buckets. Huw Wyn added that the current firefighting capability was going to be increased following discussions. 



The group advised the organisers that a site-visit by West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service should be requested.





		Crowd and Traffic Management 



		

Huw Wyn advised the group that there will be 130 trained volunteer stewards, 2 steward managers, 4 steward supervisors and 15 SIA security staff. A small number of those would provide overnight cover. Additionally, there will be a ‘Lost Kids Team’ consisting of 6 DBS staff’. 



Due to demographic, disorder is not expected. Searches of people or vehicles will be conducted if suspicious behaviour is displayed. The group advised the organisers to consider a search ratio, in conjunction with their security provider, to enforce their no alcohol/drugs policy.



To prevent congestion on the road, vehicles will be brought onto site and queued in an empty field before directed to park. This will be safely facilitated by stewards.



All stewards and SIA Security staff will receive briefings before the event.  



		Medical Provision 



		

The medical provision for the event was discussed and is as follows;



1x Ambulance

1x Rapid Response Vehicle

1x Paramedic

1x First Aider

1x Medical tent 



The group enquired what hours the medical provision would cover and were informed that it would be 24 hourly from 1700hrs Thursday 23rd August until 1700hrs on Monday 27th August. 



The group requested that the organisers contact the local hospitals to ensure they were aware of the event and its medical provisions. 





		Welfare and Sanitation 



		

The group enquired about the lost children policy and advised the organisers that police should be contacted within 15 minutes of a child being reported missing. Huw Wyn provided an overview of the lost child protocol, including the radio procedure and how found children would be supported by DBS checked staff before being reunited with parents. 



The importance of additional water provision was raised again due to heatwave concerns. Edmund advised the group that standpipes were also available on site and would be flushed and tested. Nick Poole confirmed that non-essential water usage would be stopped in the event of a water shortage.



Michael Bateman enquired whether vendors would have separate hand washing facilities to avoid cross contamination and to comply with hygiene regulation. Huw Wyn confirmed that this would be enforced. 



Hope Blandamer enquired whether sun protection would be provided by the event and medical team in the event of a heatwave. Huw Wyn confirmed that this would be considered. 



Huw Wyn enquired whether the group would be supportive if a small contingent camped at the site the night before the event to reduce numbers during ingress. The group supported this proposal. 





		Partner Comments 



		

Natalie Mandry enquired whether there would be cigarette disposal areas and was informed that this would be the case. 



The chair enquired whether there would be petrol or diesel generators on-site. Huw Wyn replied that only diesel generators would be used, with an electrician available to provide 24hour a day support. 



The group enquired whether the local community had been informed of the event. Edmund and Huw Wyn confirmed that this had taken place and that engagement was ongoing. Additionally, they advised the group that the nearest property was unlikely to hear the event due to the topography of the landscape. 



The group requested that future versions of the site-map include the RVP. The event organisers confirmed that this would be updated. 



The event organisers advised the group that the event plan would be updated in line with the comments made at the meeting and that updated versions would be available online. Link will be shared post-meeting 



A site visit will take place at 1300hrs on Thurs 23/08.














Appendix B

Highest Failed Test Result 








Appendix C

Contamination Notice 










Appendix D

Rainbow Café Water Sample







1 | Page



Appendix E

Debrief Report



		

		STRUCTURED DEBRIEF REPORT 



		Debrief commissioned by:

		Mid Sussex District Council 



		Event:

		Into the Wild 



		Date of Event:

		24-27th August, Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly. 





		Date of Debrief:

		8th November 2018



		Debrief Location:

		Mid Sussex District Council, Haywards Heath 



		Debrief Team:

		Dave Nelson (facilitator)/ Andrew Snadden (scribe)



		Debrief Participants:

		Chris Scott (WSCC), Edmund Limerick (landowner), Sylvia Limerick (landowner), Steve Howard (event team), Lisa Gordon (event team), Huw Williams (event team), Tash Lentner (BSUH), Glen Wilkinson (Mid Sussex DC), Andrew Snadden (Mid Sussex DC) 





		Debrief Summary: 

The debrief was concerned with the ‘Into the Wild’ festival that took place between 24-27th August and the water contamination/fires that occurred during the event.



		

ITEM

		IDENTIFIED BY

		REC. No.

		Comments



		AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT



		



		Appropriate attendance at SAG

		4

		

		6,9



		Time between the SAG and event was too short. Documents need sharing at the earliest opportunity. 

		1

		1

		5,6,9



		Footpath routes needed to be identified earlier

		4

		

		5,6



		



		Vendor checks should have been conducted before the event opened.

		5

		2

		8,9 



		Traffic Control was not effective and could have led to a collision 

		9

		3

		6,8



		More consideration needs to be given to access/egress because the first fire essentially blocked the only viable road. 

		4

		

		5,6



		Event team Gold (strategic) commander should have co-ordinated the communications to the emergency services during the second fire. 

		4

		4

		5,6,9



		



		There was a lack of command structure, which was highlighted when the incidents occurred.

		9

		4

		4,5,6,8 



		Water set up and testing. Suitable contingencies required. 

		6

		5

		4,5



		Emergency vehicle lights not to be used on site by anyone other than the emergency services. 

		9

		

		1,7,8



		



		Areas of good practise



		



		Event Safety Plan was very detailed

		1

		

		4,5,6,9



		Event organisers were open to the SAG’s feedback and implemented it into their plan accordingly 

		1

		

		9



		Event team worked very hard under pressure to keep the event going 

		9

		

		4,5,6,8



		

		

		

		



		



		

		

		

		





		
No.

		RECOMMENDATIONS

		OWNER

		COMMENTS



		1

		Share event documentation earlier 

		Event Team 

		



		2

		Appropriate attendance at pre-event site visit

		SAG 

		



		3

		Devise a robust Traffic Management Plan (TMP) and ensure it is delivered

		Event Team

		



		4

		 Agree a pre-identified command structure 

		Event Team 

		



		5

		Create ‘aide memoires’ for the event team  

		Event Team

		



		6

		Prohibit fires near vehicles 

		Event Team 

		



		7

		Establish chosen water company’s Business Continuity/contingency arrangements 

		Event Team

		



		8

		Engage independent water testing consultants

		Event Team

		



		9

		Participate in a command and control exercise 

		Event Team/SAG

		



		10

		Share Joint Decision Model (JDM) with Event Team

		SAG Chair

		



		11

		Ensure a suitable Co-ordination Centre is set up in the Event Liaison Team Tent 

		Event Team

		



		12

		Better monitoring of food vendors

		Event Team 

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		







image3.jpeg



image4.tmp



image1.png



image2.tmp






Page 1 of 3 
 

Into the Wild Representation 
 
The licensing authority makes a representation on the application for the event Into the Wild, 
objecting due to concerns that the licensing objective, Public Safety, will not be achieved. 
This representation is based on V15 of the Event Management Plan provided. The licensing 
authority makes the following points in support of its objection. 
 
1. Water management on site 

On Page 56, it states, “Other than the water supply that the landowner has made 
available via above-ground inert plastic pipes, there is to be no other supply.” On page 
67, under Food and Drink, it states, “All water supplied by Into the Wild’s infrastructure is 
drinking water, and is tested by our delegated water suppliers. The records of these tests 
are kept.” 
 
The Event Management Plan, page 54, under The Environment, states that “Areas of 
natural water on site, although fenced off, will be sampled, and the samples sent away to 
be tested for harmful chemicals or bacteria. Sample testing has been completed and 
results deemed satisfactory by the festival’s Water Engineer.” 
 
Similar assertions were made in the Event Management Plan for 2018, yet a food 
business was found to be using a private water supply when officers visited the site. This 
is not addressed within the Event Management Plan and this phrasing would indicate 
that the water may again be used by attendees. The assertion that sample testing has 
been completed and results deemed satisfactory is confusing and misleading. A private 
water supply cannot be deemed satisfactory from limited sampling. It is unclear why this 
water is being sampled at all if it is not to be used and fenced off. When spring water was 
sampled on site at the previous event it was found to be unsatisfactory.  
 
Random sampling of private water is not sufficient to determine its safeness. If it is not in 
compliance with the Private Water Supply regulations, then it cannot be encouraged for 
use by a member of the public. 

 
2. Food Safety management 

The Event Management Plan, under Food Hygiene, page 27, states, “Traders will be 
contacted and instructed to comply with these points before the beginning of Into The 
Wild. Trader compliance must be checked by the festival's Health and Safety Officer 
before a stand can be permitted to open.” On page 63, under Food and Drink, it states, 
“Briefly, all food vendors will be checked long before the event for compliance with 
requirements for local authority registration, insurance, and gas/LPLG certification. Food 
safety inspections will be carried out on-site before the festival opens to the public.” 
 
The Event Management Plan 2018, page 53, stated the same, “Briefly, all food vendors 
will be checked long before the event for compliance with requirements for local authority 
registration, insurance, and gas/LPLG certification. Food safety inspections will be 
carried out on-site before the festival opens to the public.” 
 
Senior Environmental Health Officers attended site and found an illegally operating food 
business, which was operated by the event organiser – Huw Williams – own family. 
Details of this business were not provided prior to the event. When initially approached 
by the officers they ran away. Upon returning later, the business was found to be 
operating again with multiple contraventions of food safety law identified. This causes 
significant concern. Was this business checked by the Health and Safety Officer as per 
the Event Management Plan? Were they allowed to operate without being registered as 
a food business? Why did the event organiser and Health and Safety Officer allow this to 
occur in contravention of the Event Management Plan? 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 52



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
The Senior Environmental Health Officers also identified a food business – Rainbow 
Café – using a private water supply. No details of this food business could be found in 
the pre-supplied information. Was this business checked by the Health and Safety 
Officer as per the Event Management Plan? Were they allowed to operate without being 
registered as a food business? Did the Health and Safety officer identify that a food 
business was using an unsafe water supply? 
 
The same assertions are made in this Event Management Plan that was made prior to 
the previous event, yet either they did not occur or they were not carried out by a 
competent person. This raises concerns that the same issues will occur again this year. 
No part of the Event Management Plan for 2019 addresses the issues identified at the 
previous event and how they will be corrected. There is no information provided on what 
checks will be completed or how this will be recorded to demonstrate that the checks 
have been completed, or what the level of competence of the Health and Safety Officer 
undertaking these checks is? 
 

3. Health and Safety management 
Within the application, page 20-21, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will 
promote the licensing objective of public safety, the applicant states that, “The event has 
contracted an experienced and qualified health and safety manager.” In the Event 
Management Plan this is identified as Steve Howard on page 15. 

 
This is the same health and safety manager as last year. What is the experience and 
qualifications of Steve Howard to make him the competent person for health and safety 
on site? What action did he take last year? There is no mention of the issues that 
occurred last year or how event safety will be improved to ensure the same issues do not 
occur again this year. The Event Management Plan states for Health & Safety, page 21, 
“See Appendix: Risk Assessments and Fire Risk Assessments.” These have not been 
provided. 

 
4. Working with the Local Authority 

Within the application, page 19, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will 
promote the four licensing objectives, it is advised that they are “… keen and fully 
engaged to work with all the local authorities to make the safest, creative and 
inspirational event possible.” 
 
The Event Management Plan, page 39, under Water Crisis, advises that, “In the event of 
significant water shortage, additional supplies will be imported by Into The Wild from 
commercial sources which we have already put on stand-by, and whose procedures the 
Event Manager and Event Producers are already familiar with.” 
 
Despite similar assertions in the Event Management Plan 2018, this was not found to be 
the case when the event was held last year. Two Senior Environmental Health Officers, 
who had to attend the event last year, found management to be obstructive and evasive, 
even in the face of what may have been a serious outbreak incident. 
 
Officers found a reluctance to source safe drinking water for members of the public due 
to the cost implication to the event organisers of doing so. Whilst on site, when 
requested, management was not able to provide the water sampling test results or 
schematics for the temporary water supply. Following the event a Senior Environmental 
Officer attempted through multiple requests to gather information relating to the 
schematics of the temporary water supply and information collected from those members 
of the public who presented with signs of gastro-intestinal illness. This information was 
never fully provided. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 53



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Recommendations following the previous event were for provision of full details and 
explanation, including schematics and plans, and water testing complying with BS8551 
to be provided. This has not been addressed in the Event Management Plan. 
 
There are significant concerns that the Event Management Plan is insufficient in 
addressing the issues that occurred last year, that it was not followed last year, and that 
the same issues may exist this year.  
 

5. Alcohol on site 
Within the application, page 19, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will 
promote the four licensing objectives, the event is promoted “… as free from alcohol and 
drugs … We do not normally have a problem with drink or drugs …” In the Event 
Management Plan page 10, Type of Event, it is stated that it is, “A key point is that the 
event is entirely alcohol-free …” On page 60, under Drug and Alcohol Policy, it is stated, 
“Into the Wild is specifically alcohol free …” On page 63 under Food and Drink, it states, 
“As an alcohol-free event there will be no bars selling alcohol. Some of the food vendors 
will be selling non-alcoholic drinks, both hot and cold.” On page 15, under alcohol sales, 
“There is to be no alcohol on site, neither brought-in nor for sale.” 
 
It has been alleged by residents to the licensing authority that alcohol was being sold to 
visitors from the Missing Link brewery, just meters outside the venue. The applicant does 
not address this and it is a contradiction that the event is promoted as being alcohol free 
whilst alcohol is being sold just off site by a different business. Although technically 
alcohol is not being provided by the event organisers, public safety cannot be adequately 
promoted by ignoring the fact that alcohol is freely available for attendees at the event, to 
be consumed by walking off site a short distance and then back onto site. 
 

6. Confidence in Competence of Management 
When reviewing the Event Management Plan in 2018, it was considered that positive 
steps were put in place to manage the event safely. The Event Management Plan for the 
2019 event is very similar to the 2018 plan. The management structure appears to be 
unchanged.  
 
Where one of the event organisers own family is allowed to operate an illegal food 
business, where when in a situation where e coli is found to be present in the site’s water 
supply, management were found to be obstructive, evasive and reticent to take action to 
provide safe drinking water for members of the public, and where there is no change in 
the event management for the event this year, the licensing authority has fundamental 
concerns for public safety at this event. The Event Management Plan was not followed 
last year so why would we have any confidence it would be followed this year. 

 
What these issues represent is a serious concern that the event will not be managed in 
practise how it is described on paper. The Event Management Plan was found to be clearly 
not followed at the previous event and there is no identification in the material provided how 
the issues that occurred last year will be prevented from occurring this year. This is 
supported by the Mid Sussex District Council Event Report, attached as Appendix A. There 
are grounds to conclude that the licensing objectives will not be promoted and therefore an 
objection is made by the licensing authority. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 54



1 | P a g e

‘Into the Wild’ 
24-27th August 2018

MSDC Event Report 

Author: Andrew Snadden MSc, Emergency Planning Manager. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 55



2 | P a g e

Introduction 

‘Into the Wild’ was a family festival that took place between the 23rd and 27th August 

2018 in Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly. It was attended by approximately 4-5,000 

people and was delivered by the ‘In2theWild’ Event Management Team. The festival 

consisted of music, woodland walks, spiritual workshops, activities for children, and 

promoted a strict no alcohol policy.  

Safety Advisory Group 

On Wednesday 18th July, the event was reviewed by the Mid Sussex Safety 

Advisory Group (SAG) in conjunction with the ‘In2theWild’ Event Management Team, 

following submission of their event documentation.   

The Event Safety Plan that was provided contained all the necessary information, 

including site layout, fire safety information, water provision, emergency protocols, 

and vendor information. Additionally, when requested to expand on certain 

arrangements by members of the SAG, the ‘In2thewild’ Management Team duly 

complied. The minutes from the SAG meeting can be found in Appendix A.  

Site Visit 

On Thursday 23rd August, a pre-opening site visit was conducted by the MSDC 

Emergency Planning Manager (EPM) and a Local Authority Incident Liaison Officer 

(ILO) at the invitation of the event organisers. This invite was extended to other 

members of the Mid Sussex SAG; however, due to other commitments they were 

unable to attend. This situation was less than ideal, but it will be rectified for future 

events.  

Initial observations of the site were good, with nothing appearing to be a cause for 

concern. The only point that was raised was concerning the bowing of the main 

entertainment tent due to an accumulation of rain water; however, this was resolved 

before the event commenced. In addition to the main tent, the workshop areas, 

vendors and camping areas were checked. With regards to vendor checks, the EPM 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 56



3 | P a g e

and ILO had limited expertise in this subject; therefore, the checks were only 

cursory.  

Water Contamination 
Day 1 
At 17:55hrs on Friday 24th August, the EPM received a call from Nick Poole from 

Prestek Services, who was responsible for the provision of water at the event. Nick 

advised the EPM that a second water sample had been taken and had returned from 

the lab indicating a large presence of Ecoli (highest score of 12 ‘echo’) in the system 

(see Appendix B). The EPM enquired whether the event management team were 

putting their water contingency plan into place. Nick advised the EPM that there was 

a water tanker on standby and requested support from MSDC.  

Prior to attending the scene, the EPM informed South East Coast Ambulance and 

Public Health England of the situation. Attempts were also made to contact an 

MSDC EHO; however, this initially proved unsuccessful because the unit does not 

have an Out of Hours facility. Consequently, it was requested that mutual aid be 

explored via ESCC/Wealden DC, although this also proved unsuccessful.  

On arrival on scene, the EPM met with the event management team, although the 

event organiser, Huw Williams, was not present. The team appeared to be 

apprehensive about making decisions such as whether to shut the water off and 

communicate the issue to the festival goers, despite being allegedly empowered by 

Huw. There were also suggestions that the water could be boiled to protect against 

bugs. However, the EPM liaised with the duty PHE consultant and agreed that it did 

not seem appropriate to keep the water on and advise people to boil water due to the 

risk that this might not take place. In addition to this, there was concern for the 800 

children and elderly on-site that could become ill if the proper control measures were 

not implemented. Therefore, the EPM advised the event management team that they 

should consider shutting the water system off and moving to bottled water until the 

issue could be fully resolved, as per their Event Safety Plan.  

Following some internal calls, an MSDC EHO, Eve Turgut, was contacted. Eve 

advised the EPM that vendors should cease drawing the water, dispose of their 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 57



4 | P a g e

stores and sterilise their tanks before refilling. The vendors were not informed by the 

event team until 23:00hrs; however, the water had been shut off at 21:30hrs. In 

addition to the vendors being informed, the EPM and PHE consultant decided that 

the event management team should perform warning and informing actions amongst 

the festival goers about the contamination and advise them to report to the on-site 

medical team if they began displaying systems of E.coli poisoning. The rationale 

behind this decision was to ensure that vulnerable people received early medical 

intervention if symptoms were displayed rather than wait due to the belief that it may 

be standard bug. A copy of the contamination notice that was handed out to 

everyone on site by the event stewards can be found in Appendix C. Before leaving 

the scene, the EPM was advised that Nick Poole and his team would conduct a full 

chlorine system flush, and that the water tanker would arrive the following morning.  

A point worth noting was the reaction of Huw Williams when he attended the event 

management tent and learnt of the actions being taken. Huw and his brother 

appeared frustrated that the water had been shut off and that bottled water was 

being requested. His brother also began asking whether the Council would be paying 

for the emergency provision of water and what actions were being taken to establish 

how widespread the water contamination was. The EPM advised them in no 

uncertain terms that the Council was only there in an advisory capacity and to 

ensure that the festival goers welfare was considered at all times. It was also 

explained that the Council would not be held liable for any decisions undertaken by 

the event management team or land owner.  

Day 2 
At 02:45hrs on Saturday 25th August, the EPM was contacted by Nick Poole who 

stated that the water tanker that was on standby for the event was unlikely to be 

available before 11:00hrs that day, if at all. The EPM advised Nick that Huw would 

need to consider alternative water provision options due people requiring water after 

waking up and to mitigate the risk of dehydration should anyone begin displaying the 

symptoms of E.coli poisoning. If this was not possible, Huw and the event 

management team were advised to consider the ongoing viability of the event.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 58



5 | P a g e

At 04:45hrs, the EPM was informed that the water tanker was unavailable; however, 

Water Direct had agreed to deliver a suitable amount of bottled water.  

At 08:30hrs, the EPM was informed that there had been 5 cases of diarrhoea and 

vomiting reported. This information was passed to Eve Turgut, PHE and SECAMB, 

who all stated that warning & informing about hygiene was of particular importance. 

At 11:25hrs, the EPM attended the event with Glen Wilkinson (back up ILO), and 

EHOs, Klara Boarder and Julia Jarvis. On arrival, they met with the event 

management team/Kent Medical Services (On-site medical team) and convened an 

emergency meeting to discuss the situation.  

Within an hour of arriving on scene the cases of diarrhoea and vomiting had doubled 

(10), which meant that it had crossed the threshold for PHE’s definition on an 

‘outbreak’. These cases were subsequently investigated by the EHOs in conjunction 

with Kent Medical Services. On initial observation, it appeared that there was a link 

to food that had been consumed from one of the vendors, although further 

investigation revealed that this link was tenuous. As a consequence of the increase 

in sickness cases being reported, the importance of providing sufficient water to 

prevent dehydration was impressed on Huw. At 12:50hrs, he authorised water to be 

provided by Water Aid for the duration of the event.  

Rainbow Café 
During checks of the vendors to ensure they were compliant with food hygiene 

legislation, it was discovered that the  ‘Rainbow Café’ had been using water sourced 

from an unknown source on site and were refusing to use bottled water due to 

environmental concerns around the use of plastics. Consequently, a sample of their 

water supply was taken and tested, and they were asked to take the EHOs to the 

source which turned out to be an overflow spring. The staff at the Rainbow Café 

were instructed to immediately cease using the water and to use bottled water or risk 

being shut down. It has since been established that the water sample that was 

tested, returned a result of 36 E.coli, indicating that it was highly contaminated (see 

Appendix D).  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 59



6 | P a g e

On-Site Fires 
On Saturday 25th August there were two fires on-site, both of which were attended 

by West Sussex Fire & Rescue Service. The first of these two incidents occurred at 

14:30hrs when a solar panel system malfunctioned and started a fire in a stack of 

plastic wrapped hay bales, producing a toxic flume and blocking the access road. 

There were no injuries.  

The second fire occurred in the evening within the event team campsite and involved 

a camper van becoming engulfed in flames. Similar to the first fire, this did not cause 

any injuries; however, this could have been more serious due to the proximity of the 

van to other tents and vehicles in the area.  

Additional Issues 
In addition to the aforementioned, the following issues were also encountered. 

• Huw William’s daughter and partner were selling food without a license or

food hygiene certification. Huw was told that this needed to cease.

• The Event Management Team lacked co-ordination and were under the

impression that they were empowered to make decisions on Huw’s behalf;

however, Huw did not appear to be aware or comfortable with this.

• Traffic management in relation to access and egress was poorly controlled

and led to vehicles travelling in opposite directions on a single track lane,

which could have caused collisions.

Debrief 
A debrief was held on the 8th November and attended by representatives from 

MSDC, WSCC, the landowner and the ‘In2 the Wild’ Event Management Team. A 

copy of the report and its subsequent recommendations can be found in Appendix E.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 60



7 | P a g e

Appendix A 
SAG Minutes 

Notes of the Mid Sussex Safety Advisory Group Meeting 
Date: 18/07/18 

Event: ‘Into the Wild’ 

Attendees: 
Andrew Snadden: MSDC (Chair)         John Webster: Prestek Services 

Huw Wyn: Event Organiser        Natalie Mandry: WSCC 

Lisa Gordon: Event Organiser         Hope Blandamer: WSCC 

John Walberton: Event Organiser        Michael Bateman: MSDC 

Nick Poole: Prestek Services 

Edmund Earl of Limerick: Land owner 

Introductions 

The chair welcomed those present and invited introductions. Additionally, provided 
apologies for those unable to attend.  

Event Organiser’s Brief 

The chair introduced the event and asked the organisers to brief those present on 
its content.  

Huw Wyn summarised the event; 

‘Into the Wild’ will be a family festival consisting of world music, dance, craft and 
therapies taking place at Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly, between the 24th and 
27th August. There is an expected attendance of 2000, although it is unlikely this 
figure will be met. 820 of those attending are expected to be children.  

There will be a ‘no alcohol’ policy at the event, which will be communicated to 
attendees on purchase of tickets, on the event website and when they arrive.  

The event build will take place between Friday 17th and Thursday 23rd August, with 
the event dismantle taking place between Tuesday 28th and Friday 31st. There will 
be no vehicle movements during the event itself, with all deliveries being made 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 61



8 | P a g e

during the build phase.  

Huw Wyn provided the group with an overview of the site map, which included 
Ingress and Egress routes, emergency access, camping and parking locations, 
and the entertainment footprint. 

Risk Management 

Natalie Mandry enquired whether grass would be cut short prior to the event due 
to the current risk of wildfires. Edmund confirmed that the land would be ready for 
the event, including grass cutting.  

The organisers were asked questions regarding their adverse weather 
arrangements, with particular focus on heatwaves. Huw Wyn advised the group 
that free water would be provided for the event in ‘water pillows’ and that additional 
water provision would be sought from a confirmed commercial provider in the 
event of a shortage. The latter point was raised as a potential concern due to it 
being difficult for commercial providers to provide instant responses .Therefore, 
the group suggested that other contingencies should also be considered. Huw 
Wyn and the other organisers took this point on board and stated that they would 
ensure there was bottled water available too.  

Nick Poole advised the group that the Met Office system, Hazard Manager, would 
be monitored before and during the event, and that appropriate action would be 
taken if adverse weather such as storms were expected.  

The group enquired about the event’s wind speed limits and the protocols for 
dealing with this. Huw Wyn replied that the maximum limit was 36mph for the 3 
stages on site. Further details about the protocols could be found in the updated 
plan.  

John Walberton and Lisa Gordon advised the group about the on-site firefighting 
capabilities, which included extinguishers, firebreaks, fire blankets and sand 
buckets. Huw Wyn added that the current firefighting capability was going to be 
increased following discussions.  

The group advised the organisers that a site-visit by West Sussex Fire and Rescue 
Service should be requested. 

Crowd and Traffic Management 

Huw Wyn advised the group that there will be 130 trained volunteer stewards, 2 
steward managers, 4 steward supervisors and 15 SIA security staff. A small 
number of those would provide overnight cover. Additionally, there will be a ‘Lost 
Kids Team’ consisting of 6 DBS staff’.  

Due to demographic, disorder is not expected. Searches of people or vehicles will 
be conducted if suspicious behaviour is displayed. The group advised the 
organisers to consider a search ratio, in conjunction with their security provider, to 
enforce their no alcohol/drugs policy. 

To prevent congestion on the road, vehicles will be brought onto site and queued 
in an empty field before directed to park. This will be safely facilitated by stewards. 

All stewards and SIA Security staff will receive briefings before the event. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 62



9 | P a g e

Medical Provision 

The medical provision for the event was discussed and is as follows; 

1x Ambulance 
1x Rapid Response Vehicle 
1x Paramedic 
1x First Aider 
1x Medical tent 

The group enquired what hours the medical provision would cover and were 
informed that it would be 24 hourly from 1700hrs Thursday 23rd August until 
1700hrs on Monday 27th August. 

The group requested that the organisers contact the local hospitals to ensure they 
were aware of the event and its medical provisions. 

Welfare and Sanitation 

The group enquired about the lost children policy and advised the organisers that 
police should be contacted within 15 minutes of a child being reported missing. 
Huw Wyn provided an overview of the lost child protocol, including the radio 
procedure and how found children would be supported by DBS checked staff 
before being reunited with parents. 

The importance of additional water provision was raised again due to heatwave 
concerns. Edmund advised the group that standpipes were also available on site 
and would be flushed and tested. Nick Poole confirmed that non-essential water 
usage would be stopped in the event of a water shortage. 

Michael Bateman enquired whether vendors would have separate hand washing 
facilities to avoid cross contamination and to comply with hygiene regulation. Huw 
Wyn confirmed that this would be enforced. 

Hope Blandamer enquired whether sun protection would be provided by the event 
and medical team in the event of a heatwave. Huw Wyn confirmed that this would 
be considered. 

Huw Wyn enquired whether the group would be supportive if a small contingent 
camped at the site the night before the event to reduce numbers during ingress. 
The group supported this proposal. 

Partner Comments 

Natalie Mandry enquired whether there would be cigarette disposal areas and was 
informed that this would be the case. 

The chair enquired whether there would be petrol or diesel generators on-site. 
Huw Wyn replied that only diesel generators would be used, with an electrician 
available to provide 24hour a day support. 

The group enquired whether the local community had been informed of the event. 
Edmund and Huw Wyn confirmed that this had taken place and that engagement 
was ongoing. Additionally, they advised the group that the nearest property was 
unlikely to hear the event due to the topography of the landscape. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 63



10 | P a g e

The group requested that future versions of the site-map include the RVP. The 
event organisers confirmed that this would be updated. 

The event organisers advised the group that the event plan would be updated in 
line with the comments made at the meeting and that updated versions would be 
available online. Link will be shared post-meeting 

A site visit will take place at 1300hrs on Thurs 23/08. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 64



11 | P a g e

Appendix B 
Highest Failed Test Result 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 65



12 | P a g e

Appendix C 
Contamination Notice 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 66



13 | P a g e

Appendix D 
Rainbow Café Water Sample 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 67



14 | P a g e

Appendix E 
Debrief Report 

STRUCTURED DEBRIEF REPORT 

Debrief commissioned by: Mid Sussex District Council 

Event: Into the Wild 

Date of Event: 24-27th August, Chiddinglye Farm, West Hoathly.

Date of Debrief: 8th November 2018 

Debrief Location: Mid Sussex District Council, Haywards Heath 

Debrief Team: Dave Nelson (facilitator)/ Andrew Snadden (scribe) 

Debrief Participants: 
Chris Scott (WSCC), Edmund Limerick (landowner), Sylvia Limerick (landowner), Steve Howard 
(event team), Lisa Gordon (event team), Huw Williams (event team), Tash Lentner (BSUH), Glen 
Wilkinson (Mid Sussex DC), Andrew Snadden (Mid Sussex DC) 

Debrief Summary: 
The debrief was concerned with the ‘Into the Wild’ festival that took place between 24-27th August and the water 
contamination/fires that occurred during the event. 

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 30 July 2019

68



15 | P a g e

ITEM IDENTIFIED BY REC. No. Comments 

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 

Appropriate attendance at SAG 4 6,9 
Time between the SAG and event was too short. Documents need 
sharing at the earliest opportunity. 1 1 5,6,9 

Footpath routes needed to be identified earlier 4 5,6 

Vendor checks should have been conducted before the event opened. 5 2 8,9 
Traffic Control was not effective and could have led to a collision 9 3 6,8 
More consideration needs to be given to access/egress because the first 
fire essentially blocked the only viable road. 4 5,6 

Event team Gold (strategic) commander should have co-ordinated the 
communications to the emergency services during the second fire. 4 4 5,6,9 

There was a lack of command structure, which was highlighted when the 
incidents occurred. 9 4 4,5,6,8 

Water set up and testing. Suitable contingencies required. 6 5 4,5 
Emergency vehicle lights not to be used on site by anyone other than the 
emergency services. 9 1,7,8 

Areas of good practise 

Event Safety Plan was very detailed 1 4,5,6,9 

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 30 July 2019

69



16 | P a g e

Event organisers were open to the SAG’s feedback and implemented it 
into their plan accordingly 1 9 

Event team worked very hard under pressure to keep the event going 9 4,5,6,8 

No. RECOMMENDATIONS OWNER COMMENTS 

1 Share event documentation earlier Event Team 
2 Appropriate attendance at pre-event site visit SAG 
3 Devise a robust Traffic Management Plan (TMP) and ensure it is delivered Event Team 
4  Agree a pre-identified command structure Event Team 
5 Create ‘aide memoires’ for the event team  Event Team 
6 Prohibit fires near vehicles Event Team 
7 Establish chosen water company’s Business Continuity/contingency arrangements Event Team 
8 Engage independent water testing consultants Event Team 
9 Participate in a command and control exercise Event Team/SAG 
10 Share Joint Decision Model (JDM) with Event Team SAG Chair 
11 Ensure a suitable Co-ordination Centre is set up in the Event Liaison Team Tent Event Team 
12 Better monitoring of food vendors Event Team 

Liquor Licensing C
om

m
ittee - 30 July 2019

70



Dear Michael, 
 
Thank you for your representations regarding Into the Wild Festival 2019.  It has been very 
helpful and insightful in updating our ESMP to make sure the event can run to its highest 
potential. We highly value the expertise of our partners in public services to create a safe 
event. 
 
Thank you for sending over the document ‘Appendix A’, which has been paramount to this 
updated ESMP. In retrospect, it would have been useful to receive a copy of this earlier to 
incorporate the recommendations and advice in the earlier drafts of our ESMP. Many 
thanks for your patience in reading this second submission.  
 
We have extensively updated the ESMP to directly address each point raised. I will also 
attempt to clarify our response to each point in this email. Thank you for your time. 
 
 
Page 1 of 3  
 
Into the Wild Representation  
The licensing authority makes a representation on the application for the event Into the Wild, 
objecting due to concerns that the licensing objective, Public Safety, will not be achieved. This 
representation is based on V15 of the Event Management Plan provided. The licensing authority 
makes the following points in support of its objection.  
 
1. Water management on site  
 
On Page 56, it states, “Other than the water supply that the landowner has made available via 
above-ground inert plastic pipes, there is to be no other supply.” On page 67, under Food and Drink, 
it states, “All water supplied by Into the Wild’s infrastructure is drinking water, and is tested by our 
delegated water suppliers. The records of these tests are kept.”  
 
The Event Management Plan, page 54, under The Environment, states that “Areas of natural water 
on site, although fenced off, will be sampled, and the samples sent away to be tested for harmful 
chemicals or bacteria. Sample testing has been completed and results deemed satisfactory by the 
festival’s Water Engineer.”  
 
Similar assertions were made in the Event Management Plan for 2018, yet a food business was 
found to be using a private water supply when officers visited the site. This is not addressed within 
the Event Management Plan and this phrasing would indicate that the water may again be used by 
attendees. The assertion that sample testing has been completed and results deemed satisfactory 
is confusing and misleading. A private water supply cannot be deemed satisfactory from limited 
sampling. It is unclear why this water is being sampled at all if it is not to be used and fenced off. 
When spring water was sampled on site at the previous event it was found to be unsatisfactory.  
Random sampling of private water is not sufficient to determine its safeness. If it is not in 
compliance with the Private Water Supply regulations, then it cannot be encouraged for use by a 
member of the public.  
 
 
Response  
 
The provision of water was sub-contracted to Prestek Services Ltd, their on-site team led by Nick 
Poole.  As experts in the provision of water to events, we relied on them to supply, fit and ensure that the 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 71



water system was fit for human consumption, as well as optimised for safety and efficiency. When fitted 
prior to the event, test results for water running from the fitted system were clear and water was safe for 
human consumption.  
 
The food and beverage business that chose to use a private water supply, which comes under the name 
“Rainbow café” in the Appendix A report, trades under the name Community Cafe. Community Cafe held a 
five-star rating from Wealden Council. In the context of the water issues on site, the Community Cafe took 
it upon themselves to source a spring from the woodlands and use this water for part of their washing up 
process. This was despite being provided suitable water from our Into the Wild management. Community 
Cafe did this without any discussion with our management team regarding the suitability of the spring 
water. Their sourcing of this spring water came to light when visited by Health and Safety Officers. On 
inspection, it was found that some of the Community Cafe staff had the mistaken belief that the spring 
water would be “purer”. Community Cafe were strictly informed that the spring water was not suitable for 
use and then later spot-checked checked for using the clean bottled water provided. Into the Wild has 
chosen to no longer work with this café due to this very dangerous and potentially harmful malpractice. 
  
We are now using a different water contractor, Liquiline Ltd, to provide water services to the 
event. Liquiline have significant experience working at large outdoor events and are very well-resourced 
and respected within the industry sector. We have experience working with this company at our spring 
event, which gives us confidence in their professionalism and experience. Please see their 48-page 
document titled ‘Water Plan for the Summer Festival’ which details the health, safety and welfare policies. 
This also includes a map of the infrastructural plans. 
 
All water supplies other than the infrastructure managed by Liquiline will be strictly out of bound 
and use. This will be managed on-site by erecting herace fencing around natural water. Attached to 
the herace fencing around the natural water will read a sign stating that the water is not suitable for 
human consumption; the specific language of this will be advised by our Health and Safety team. 
Spot-checks of the heraced fenced water site will be made by the SIA team to ensure no tampering.  
 
Our Food and Beverage HSO, Nick Saxon, will be in communication with all food and beverage 
providers prior to the event to specify the source of their water (managed by Liquiline). Saxon will 
clearly state that all natural water on site is unsuitable for use and food and beverage providers 
cannot bring any unbottled water onto site. This information stated by Saxon, will then be followed 
by providing with a ‘water guidelines’ fact sheet supplied to each vendor to discuss with their staff 
and display for their staff in their outlet kitchen.  
 
 
 
2. Food Safety management  
 
The Event Management Plan, under Food Hygiene, page 27, states, “Traders will be contacted and 
instructed to comply with these points before the beginning of Into The Wild. Trader compliance 
must be checked by the festival's Health and Safety Officer before a stand can be permitted to 
open.” On page 63, under Food and Drink, it states, “Briefly, all food vendors will be checked long 
before the event for compliance with requirements for local authority registration, insurance, and 
gas/LPLG certification. Food safety inspections will be carried out on-site before the festival opens 
to the public.”  
 
Senior Environmental Health Officers attended site and found an illegally operating food business, 
which was operated by the event organiser – Huw Williams – own family. Details of this business 
were not provided prior to the event. When initially approached by the officers they ran away. Upon 
returning later, the business was found to be operating again with multiple contraventions of food 
safety law identified. This causes significant concern.  
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 72



Was this business checked by the Health and Safety Officer as per the Event Management Plan? 
Were they allowed to operate without being registered as a food business? Why did the event 
organiser and Health and Safety Officer allow this to occur in contravention of the Event 
Management Plan? Page 2 of 3  
 
The Senior Environmental Health Officers also identified a food business – Rainbow Café – using a 
private water supply. No details of this food business could be found in the pre-supplied 
information. Was this business checked by the Health and Safety Officer as per the Event 
Management Plan? Were they allowed to operate without being registered as a food business? Did 
the Health and Safety officer identify that a food business was using an unsafe water supply? 
 
The same assertions are made in this Event Management Plan that was made prior to the previous 
event, yet either they did not occur or they were not carried out by a competent person. This raises 
concerns that the same issues will occur again this year. No part of the Event Management Plan for 
2019 addresses the issues identified at the previous event and how they will be corrected. There is 
no information provided on what checks will be completed or how this will be recorded to 
demonstrate that the checks have been completed, or what the level of competence of the Health 
and Safety Officer undertaking these checks is?  
 
 
Response 
 
'Family Member Food Trader':  Huw Williams was advised by Environmental Health at Wealden Council 
previously that his family member could run a food vending service as a ‘trial’ before gaining a full license, 
offering food samples for a fee, especially as it was deemed low-risk. 
 
After a preliminary inspection by a H & S crew member, the family member food trader was told on several 
occasions that they should not start to trade until such time that the HSO had visited.  However, the family 
food trader chose to ignore that instruction.  When the HSO visited, he found them trading and made the 
position very clear both to them and the event organiser. He insisted that they remove their signage and 
trading ceased totally from that point.  
 
The HSO did perform his duties in a professional manner and the family food trader will not again attempt 
to trade at this event. In retrospect, allowing this ‘family food trader’ on ‘trial’ was a mistake and never 
again will an unregistered food trader be allowed to setup on site or trade. The Health & Safety Officer did 
not allow any unregistered food businesses to operate. 
 
‘The Rainbow Café’, trading name ‘Community Cafe’, is a local registered food business awarded a 5-star 
rating by Wealdon Council on 24 January 2018.  They appear on the spreadsheet originally sent to Michael 
Bateman and their service in providing crew food was noted in the comments. When initially inspected by 
our H & S staff prior to the start of the event, they met all the required standards. This included 
transporting water from provided water source in clean 25 litre containers when the water supply was 
interrupted during setup. When the EHOs came on to site it allowed the HSO some breathing space to 
deal with other issues safe in the knowledge that he could trust them to flag up any problems.  When the 
issue was reported it was immediately dealt with. We do not reasonably expect a food trader who has 
satisfied their Local Authority that they are competent enough to hold a 5 star rating to be so irresponsible 
as to use untreated spring water in their outlet for any purpose. Concerns regarding their unsafe use of 
private water is addressed more fully in the previous section.  
 
 
Concerns with competency  
There are normally at least 4 people on the Health & Safety team.  At this event we were let down at the 
last minute by 2 people, leaving a team of 2 plus willing helpers.  This was flagged as an issue in our 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 73



internal debrief and is being addressed by the recruitment team. We are now expanding our team, 
including more specialised roles (e.g. Food and Beverage HSO), creating a senior HSO role to oversee the 
larger team and ensuring a diversation of experience amongst team members.  
 
We have recruited a qualified EHO, Nick Saxon, who will take the role of Food and Beverage HSO. This has 
been put into place to address the issues experienced last year addressed above. Saxon has liaised with 
Bateman regarding the checks, record keeping and his suitability for this role. 
 
We are also in the process of hiring a Senior HSO officer who will lead the team. Are are in discussions with 
Adrian Bristow, a leading health and safety specialised in large-scale outdoor event with Sygma Safety and 
Events (Safety Geeks). Bristow has been Production and Event Managing for 30 years and an associate for 
Sygma Safety and Events for 15 years. (Winners of National Outdoor Events Association Best Practice 
Award 2012). Bristow’s qualifications and industry training includes: 

• NEBOSH General Certificate (National Examination Board for Occupational Safety and Health), 
Distinction. 

o Cabinet Office Emergency Planning College, Easingwold  
o Crowd & Event Safety Management  
o Temporary Demountable Structures  
o Fire Risk Assessment and Management for Events and Sports  

• Personal Licence Holder BHCC 2104/00938/LAPER  
• Sygma Safety & Events: BS7909 Code of Practice for Temporary Electrical Systems and Related 

Purposes  
• Special Structures Lab: Examining Large Portable Structures 
• Dean Training: Traffic Marshal/Banksman  
• Safety Passport Association/PSA Safety Passport Registered Trainer 
• Production Services Association (PSA) Member  
• PSA Stagesafe Safety Awareness Course  
• BA(Hons) – 3D Design & Craftsmanship  

 
We are also creating a ‘backup list’ of suitable HSOs in case that we are let down last minute again. In 
creating this list, we are drawing on our relationships with other large outdoor event organisers to source 
recommended candidates.  
 
The HSO senior team leader will be coordinating a timeline of planning and briefing of the HSO team in 
preparation of the event. This team will work very closely during the event, with a clear supervisory 
structure led by the Senior HSO team leader. The Senior HSO team leader will be close contact with 
management team more broadly, in the various sectors including Site Management, Production, the 
Director, etc. 
 
 
3. Health and Safety management  
 
Within the application, page 20-21, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will promote the 
licensing objective of public safety, the applicant states that, “The event has contracted an 
experienced and qualified health and safety manager.” In the Event Management Plan this is 
identified as Steve Howard on page 15.  
This is the same health and safety manager as last year. What is the experience and qualifications of 
Steve Howard to make him the competent person for health and safety on site? What action did he 
take last year? There is no mention of the issues that occurred last year or how event safety will be 
improved to ensure the same issues do not occur again this year. The Event Management Plan 
states for Health & Safety, page 21, “See Appendix: Risk Assessments and Fire Risk Assessments.” 
These have not been provided.  
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 74

http://www.safetygeeks.co.uk/


Response 
 
Given the issues occurring at the event last year, we are now restructuring out Health and Safety team in 
response, please see above. 
We plan to keep Howard in a role, as part of a larger team Health and Safety team in which he will not have 
senior authority. Howard’s qualifications are in management (Level 4 NVQ, PRINCE2) and general Health 
& Safety. He is currently studying for his NEBOSH certificate and is qualified as a Unison Safety Rep. These 
skills and his existing experience make him a useful asset as part of a larger team with further qualifications 
and diversity of experience. He knows the organisational infrastructure and site well, which will make him 
a good team member for incoming, more senior members. 
 
Please see “Appendix: Risk Assessments and Fire Risk Assessments” in the updated Event 
Management Plan.  
 
 
 
4. Working with the Local Authority  
 
Within the application, page 19, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will promote the four 
licensing objectives, it is advised that they are “… keen and fully engaged to work with all the local 
authorities to make the safest, creative and inspirational event possible.”  
 
The Event Management Plan, page 39, under Water Crisis, advises that, “In the event of significant 
water shortage, additional supplies will be imported by Into The Wild from commercial sources 
which we have already put on stand-by, and whose procedures the Event Manager and Event 
Producers are already familiar with.”  
 
Despite similar assertions in the Event Management Plan 2018, this was not found to be the case 
when the event was held last year. Two Senior Environmental Health Officers, who had to attend 
the event last year, found management to be obstructive and evasive, even in the face of what may 
have been a serious outbreak incident. Officers found a reluctance to source safe drinking water for 
members of the public due to the cost implication to the event organisers of doing so. Whilst on 
site, when requested, management was not able to provide the water sampling test results or 
schematics for the temporary water supply.  
 
 
Response 
 
In responding to these concerns, it would be useful to paste the following quote from Appendix A: 
“A point worth noting was the reaction of Huw Williams when he attended the event management 
tent and learnt of the actions being taken. Huw and his brother appeared frustrated that the water 
had been shut off and that bottled water was being requested. His brother also began asking 
whether the Council would be paying for the emergency provision of water and what actions were 
being taken to establish how widespread the water contamination was. The EPM advised them in 
no uncertain terms that the Council was only there in an advisory capacity and to ensure that the 
festival goers welfare was considered at all times. It was also explained that the Council would not 
be held liable for any decisions undertaken by the event management team or land owner.” 
 
Our team have a good relationship with Andrew Snadden and found the EHO team incredibly 
helpful during the crisis we experienced with the water. Our team is keen and fully engaged to work 
with all the local authorities to make the safest, creative and inspirational event possible. We 
recognize that the engagement is fundamental to running a safe, healthy and successful event and 
appreciate their ongoing input. 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 75



A key issue was the role of Nick Poole of Prestek Water Services, who had contacted the Council 
and coordinated the EHO on site. He made this contact independently, bypassing the established 
lines of responsibility and the management team. The management team were unaware of this 
issue until the EHO were on route. When Williams was called to the meeting with the EHO, it was 
therefore the first that he learnt of this issue and the presence of the EHO on site. This independent 
bypassing of all established systems of operation and extreme lack of communication by Poole in 
such a serious situation was alarming to Williams. 
 
Williams arrived at the Production Tent, followed by a friend who was visiting the festival with his 
children. Given that William’s doesn’t have a brother, this may be the person who was assumed to 
be his brother. When this festival guest began to ask questions regarding the situation (e.g. finances 
and liability), Williams asked him to leave, explaining that he was not part of the team, was not 
aware of the situation and being unhelpful. Williams explicitly states that finance was not his 
priority at this point and that his priority was the health and safety of the public. Williams agreed 
without hesitation to every recommendation that was suggested by the council officers. To clarify, 
the person the report was pointing to of being obstructive was nothing to do with the festival 
management.   
 
Williams followed the recommendations immediately and actioned the order of over 30,000 litres of 
clean water. Our team worked tirelessly and successfully to ensure all guests and traders on site had 
clean drinking water all weekend. Not one person went without water. 
 
Nick Poole of Prestek services blamed the source of the water problem on the mains supply, 
contacting South East Water. South East Water responded by testing the local village and 
surrounding area. The testing was shown to be clear and the water was turned back again on 
Sunday after an ‘all clear’. We continue to remain concerned as Into the Wild has not been provided 
any test results of water samples at any point. Despite ongoing requests, we have still not received 
any test results from the water company, who are actively withholding these results. This raised 
serious concerns about the sevices of Prestek, which we have addressed by sourcing a new, very 
reputable water company, Liquiline (as detailed above). Liquiline has vast experience working with 
outdoor events, including ones much larger than our’s. Working with them on one event already 
showed that they are professional and provide an excellent service. We had no problem at our 
spring event with any water issues. 
 
Bateman explained that following the event, a Senior Environmental Officer attempted through 
multiple requests to gather information relating to the schematics of the temporary water supply 
and information collected from those members of the public who presented with signs of gastro-
intestinal illness. This information was never fully provided. Into the Wild  
are following this up with the Kent Event Medical services who we employed at our event.  I have 
emailed Karl Capon, manager and he has assured me one of his team will be providing this 
information by next week. His email is karl.capon@outlook.com and Phone number if you need to 
contact him: 07511 830653. 
 
On receipt of the first set of test results showing e-coli, during the event, Poole made the initial call to 
MSDC and became the main liaison point with Andrew Snadden, providing him with the same information 
that he provided to the Event Management Team. Despite repeated requests both to Poole and to Prestek 
Head Office, we have been refused access to either a schematic diagram or the complete set of test results 
so that we can pinpoint the source of the contamination and take appropriate action.  
 
 
5. Alcohol on site  
 
Within the application, page 19, where steps are laid out on how the applicant will promote the four 
licensing objectives, the event is promoted “… as free from alcohol and drugs … We do not normally 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 76

mailto:karl.capon@outlook.com


have a problem with drink or drugs …” In the Event Management Plan page 10, Type of Event, it is 
stated that it is, “A key point is that the event is entirely alcohol-free …” On page 60, under Drug 
and Alcohol Policy, it is stated, “Into the Wild is specifically alcohol free …” On page 63 under Food 
and Drink, it states, “As an alcohol-free event there will be no bars selling alcohol. Some of the food 
vendors will be selling non-alcoholic drinks, both hot and cold.” On page 15, under alcohol sales, 
“There is to be no alcohol on site, neither brought-in nor for sale.”  
It has been alleged by residents to the licensing authority that alcohol was being sold to visitors 
from the Missing Link brewery, just meters outside the venue. The applicant does not address this 
and it is a contradiction that the event is promoted as being alcohol free whilst alcohol is being sold 
just off site by a different business. Although technically alcohol is not being provided by the event 
organisers, public safety cannot be adequately promoted by ignoring the fact that alcohol is freely 
available for attendees at the event, to be consumed by walking off site a short distance and then 
back onto site.  
 
We have never and will never sell alcohol. This is a false statement, confirmed by both the 
landowner, Edmund Limerick, and the brewery manager. The brewery was closed all weekend. We 
are happy to provide a letter from the Brewery manager to confirm this. A no alcohol policy it an 
integral part of our ethics, vision and guest expectations.  
 
 
6. Confidence in Competence of Management  
 
When reviewing the Event Management Plan in 2018, it was considered that positive steps were put 
in place to manage the event safely. The Event Management Plan for the 2019 event is very similar 
to the 2018 plan. The management structure appears to be unchanged.  
Where one of the event organisers own family is allowed to operate an illegal food business, where 
when in a situation where e coli is found to be present in the site’s water supply, management were 
found to be obstructive, evasive and reticent to take action to provide safe drinking water for 
members of the public, and where there is no change in the event management for the event this 
year, the licensing authority has fundamental concerns for public safety at this event. The Event 
Management Plan was not followed last year so why would we have any confidence it would be 
followed this year.  
 
 
What these issues represent is a serious concern that the event will not be managed in practise how 
it is described on paper. The Event Management Plan was found to be clearly not followed at the 
previous event and there is no identification in the material provided how the issues that occurred 
last year will be prevented from occurring this year. This is supported by the Mid Sussex District 
Council Event Report, attached as Appendix A. There are grounds to conclude that the licensing 
objectives will not be promoted and therefore an objection is made by the licensing authority. 
 
We have now extensively updated the ESMP addressing all the issues addressed. We will always 
promote the licensing objectives to create a safe and healthy event.  
 
I feel that we did everything we could have done to create a safe event in quite extraordinary 
circumstances. There were some mistakes made (food stall) and much to learn from. We have taken 
the recommendations seriously, including expanding our HOS team (as detailed above) and 
changing the water supplier,  
 
I have been running events for the last ten years and had numerous visits by Wealden council, which 
have always been positive. I feel we have made the appropriate changes and will be working our 
hardest to make sure we create our best event yet. We are always willing to learn and grow and do 
the best we can and really appreciate your advice and experience. The reason we create these 
events is to create a positive wellbeing experience, for hundreds of children to have fun and gain a 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 77



deeper relationship to the natural world. Unlike many other festivals we do not allow drinks and 
drugs, therefore not creating an environment where it is dangerous and people can die though 
illegal drug taking and many of the other challenges that come with that type of event. I spent 
many years working at large events like Glastonbury and Womad, so know full well what can go 
wrong. I feel that last year’s water situation was unprecedented in creating a constant emergency 
situation that was very serious but also a deep learning curve for us all. 
 
We just ran our spring event near Cowden with our new teams on board and ran perfect without any 
problems. This was in many ways a trial for the Summer Festival. We also know many things can 
happen, so are not complacent. I am responsible for this event and am fully aware how many people 
rely on it, are employed by it, but ultimately come to have a wonderful time in nature and with 
friends. Most of all I am responsible for making sure people are safe and go away feeling better than 
when they arrived and we as a team will do everything and dedicated to make a successful event on 
every level. 
 
Overall, I felt we had a good working relationship with the Council and the emergency services both 
before, during and after last year’s event.  When we attended the debrief with the council, it 
seemed to go well. There was no sense that the festival would be opposed in future and there was a 
sense that we managed well under the circumstances and worked well as a team. I acknowledge 
there were some mistakes made, partly due to the unprecedented crises with the water supply and 
partly due to some unsound advice. I believe as a team, we have now removed the problems you 
have named in your report and will be able to provide a safe, healthy and successful event. 
 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 78



1 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Into the Wild Summer Festival 2019 

Event Safety and Management Plan 

23rd – 26th August 2019 

Chiddinglye Farm 

Selsfield Road 

West Hoathly 

East Grinstead 

West Sussex 

RH19 4QS 

TQ 3511 3278 

 

 
  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 79



2 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Document Control 

v22 Updates to Health and Safety Advisor policy, camping fire safety policy,  
 caterers’ hygiene policies, animal exclusion policy, and others 
v21 Licensing Authority and other Responsible Authorities conditions 
v20 Wristband Colour Code (Appendix T) and UAV Policy (Appendix U) 
v19 Stewards’ pre-festival guidance added for reference: Appendix S 
v18 Add Met Office guidance about Heat Alerts and Fire Severity Index 
v17 Complete rewrite ended, June 27 2019, incorporating restructure and updates 
v16 Complete rewrite in progress, June 2019, for clarity and brevity 
v15 Input by Sussex Police into precision of how to achieve licensing objectives 
v14 Revision of water supply and other infrastructure, other updates 
v13 Addition of Business Continuity outline, Feb 2019 
v12 Accident procedures, director’s declaration, lost property, 18 August 2018 
v11 Principal Officers’ table revised, map revised, SSSI details, 14 August 2018 
V10 Severe weather revisions including danger from dry land 
V9 Revise Principal Officers’ table, add more accurate maps 
V8 Further revision 
V7  Revision pass, alteration of some suppliers 
V6 Addition of new forms of threat, revision of risk assessments 
V5 Corrections, 12th June 2018 
V4 Further revision 11th June 2018 
V3 Third revision, 8th June 2018 
V2 Collation of several documents separately edited, 1st June 2018 
V1 Initial submission, 17th May 2018  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 80



3 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

 

INTRODUCTION 11 
Statutory Conditions 11 

EVENT SAFETY POLICY 12 
Health and Safety Team 12 
Health and Safety Advisor Policy 12 
Contractor Safety Policy 13 
Daily Briefing 14 
Festival Logbook 14 

Types of Log Books 14 
Security of Log Book Data 15 
Accident Reporting 15 

EMERGENCY PLAN 15 

CHAIN OF COMMAND 16 

KEY EMERGENCY CONTACTS 17 

KEY CONTACTS 18 

CAPACITY AND DEMOGRAPHIC 20 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 20 

SAFEGUARDING OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 21 

COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 21 

WATER SUPPLY 21 

CROWD MANAGEMENT 21 

VENUE AND SITE DESIGN 22 

MANAGEMENT OF MOVEMENT 22 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 22 
SANITATION 23 
FIRE SAFETY 23 
Active Weather Awareness 23 
Medical and First-Aid Management 23 
Food Hygiene 24 

INCIDENT AND EMERGENCY PLANNING 24 

WELFARE AND INFORMATION 24 

PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 25 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 81



4 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

THE ENVIRONMENT 25 
Impact Assessment 25 

Main Areas 25 
Site of Special Scientific Interest 26 

STRUCTURES 27 
Tents and Stages 27 

ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION AND LIGHTING 28 
Safety 28 
Generation 28 
Inspection 28 
Public Lighting 28 
Barriers and Fencing 29 

FOOD AND DRINK 29 
Water 29 

AMUSEMENTS, ATTRACTIONS, RIDES AND PROMOTIONAL DISPLAYS 30 

SOUND: NOISE AND VIBRATION 30 

SPECIAL EFFECTS, FIREWORKS AND PYROTECHNICS 30 

TRANSPORT MANAGEMENT 30 
Overview 31 

CAMPING 31 
Fire Safety Policy 31 
Clearance of Animals Policy 32 
Waste Management 32 

WELFARE AND INFORMATION 33 

PERFORMERS 33 

TV AND MEDIA 33 

UNMANNED AERIAL VEHICLES 33 

PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE 34 

DECLARATION 34 

APPENDIX A — EVENT OVERVIEW 36 
Demographic and Capacity 36 
Event Location 36 
Licensing Authority 36 
Type of Event 37 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 82



5 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Set-up and Take-down 37 
Opening and Running Times 37 
Licenseable Activities 37 

APPENDIX B — MAPPING 39 
General Site Layout 39 

APPENDIX C — COMMUNICATION 40 
Pre-Event External Communication 40 
Pre-Event Communication with Caterers 40 
External Communication during the Festival 40 
In-Event Communication 41 

Public Communication During Event 41 
Radios 41 
Radio Procedure 42 

APPENDIX D — SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 44 
LOST CHILDREN POLICY 44 
Into The Wild Child Protection Principles 49 
Children’s Area Opening Times 50 
Children’s Area Staffing 50 
Children’s Area Policies 50 
Ride Equipment for Children 52 
Photography of Children 52 

APPENDIX E — WELFARE POLICY 53 
Medical Cover 53 

Local Hospitals 55 
Major Trauma 55 
Walk-in NHS Treatment 55 
Air Ambulance 56 
Protection from the Sun 56 

Facilities for People with Access Requirements 56 
Dog Policy 57 
Lost Property 57 
Terms and Conditions 57 
Steward and Security Responsibilities 57 

Steward and Security Organisation 58 
Steward Numbers 58 
Steward Operation 58 
Steward Briefing 59 

Security 59 
Personnel 59 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 83



6 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Security Objectives 59 
Festival Interaction with Security 60 

APPENDIX F — 
CROWD MANAGEMENT 60 

Ticket Sales 60 
Admission Control 61 
Cancellation of Event in Advance 61 
Event Full (Sold Out) 61 
Ingress and Egress Monitoring 61 
Contingency Planning 62 

APPENDIX G —  
STEWARDS’ BRIEFING 62 

General Instructions 62 
Conflict Management 63 

APPENDIX H —  
LICENSING OBJECTIVES 64 

Activities and Timings 64 

The Licensing Objectives 64 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 65 
Protection of Children from Harm 65 
Public Safety 65 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 66 

No Alcohol 66 

APPENDIX I — 
RISK ASSESSMENT 67 

Interpretation 67 
General Risks 67 
Fire Risk Assessments 70 

APPENDIX J —  
EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 71 

Overview 71 
Emergency Liaison Team 72 

Overnight Crewing 72 
Communicating An Incident 72 
Location of Incident 72 
Incident Classification 72 
Emergency Full Evacuation Procedure 74 
Other Evacuation Procedures 75 

Evacuation of a Structure 75 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 84



7 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Non-Urgent Evacuation of the Whole Site 75 
Informing People with Hearing Impairment 76 

Calling Emergency Services 76 
Event Manager and Incident Room 77 
Liaison with Emergency Services 77 

Sussex Police 77 
West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service 77 
The NHS 77 
Mid Sussex District Council 78 

Post Incident Medical Debriefing 78 
Fires 78 
Ground Fire 79 
Structural Collapse of a Public Space 79 
Major Threat Policy 79 

Vehicular Attacks 80 
Severe Threat Procedure 80 

Suspicious Item 81 
Outbreak of Food Poisoning on Site 81 
Windy Weather 81 
Wet Weather 82 
Hot Weather 82 
Water Crisis 84 
Dry Weather 84 
Electrical Storm 85 
Chemical, Biological, Radiological or Nuclear Contamination 86 
Assumption Of Control Form 87 

APPENDIX K — WATER SUPPLY 88 
Introduction 88 
Into The Wild Water Commitment 88 
Contingency 89 
Contractor’s Water Plan 90 
Commitments from Caterers 126 
Banned Supplies 126 

APPENDIX L — FOOD SAFETY 127 
General 127 
Before Set-Up 127 
On-Site 128 
Rules for Food Areas 128 
Temperature Control 129 
Staff Training 129 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 85



8 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Miscellaneous Safety Rules 129 
Fire Safety in Catering Areas 130 
Caterers Scheduled 130 

Fu-Fabulous Food 130 
Into the Wild Café 131 
Bread for Life Pizzeria 131 
The Peckish Peacock 131 
The Bhangra Bus Café 131 
Lunched out Lizards Chai Tent 131 
Oscar’s Kitchen 132 
Vudu Food 132 
Outer Regions Cafe 132 
Carlito’s Burritos 132 
Easy Jose Coffee Roasters 133 
Whirled Espresso 133 
Thai Angle Cafe 133 

APPENDIX M —  
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 134 

General 134 
Drug and Alcohol Policy 135 
Search Policy 135 
Eviction Policy 136 
Dealing with Criminal Behaviour 136 

APPENDIX N — MOVEMENT 138 
Safety Policy 138 
Emergency Entry 138 
Public and Staff Entrances and Exits 139 
Control Points 139 
Preventing Unauthorised Entry 139 
Arrival Management 139 
Live-in Vehicles 140 
Main Arena 140 
Wet Weather 140 
Crew Vehicles 140 
On-site Vehicular Movement Rules 141 
Vehicles during Set-Up and Take-Down 141 
Unusual Access 141 
Public Footpath Protocol 142 

APPENDIX O —  
ACCIDENT REPORTING 143 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 86



9 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Accidents At Work 143 
How To Report 144 

APPENDIX P — NOISE POLICY 145 
The Programme 145 
Noise Abatement Team 145 
Measuring Equipment 146 
Preparation 146 
Noise Limits 146 
Pre-event Tests 147 
System Design 147 
During The Festival 147 

APPENDIX Q —  
SANITARY PROVISION 149 

Toilets 149 
Showers 149 

APPENDIX R —  
FIRE SAFETY POLICY 150 

Fire Points and Fire Extinguishers 150 
Camp Fires 151 
Fireworks 151 
Fire Pit 151 
Fire Safety Checks 151 

APPENDIX S —  
WELFARE GUIDELINES 153 

Introduction 153 
Outline 153 
Safety First 153 
Lifting 153 
Teamwork 155 
Be Prepared 156 
What to bring 156 
On arrival 156 
Liaison 157 
Things to remember: 157 
Helping people 157 
Things to remember: 158 
Giving First Aid 159 
Fire 159 
Festival End 159 

APPENDIX T —  
WRISTBAND SYSTEM 160 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 87



10 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Colour Codes 160 

APPENDIX U — 
U.A.V. (DRONES) 161 

Policy 161 
If a UAV is sighted 161 
If a UAV pilot is identified 161 
Roles of Safety, Security and Medical Personnel 162 
Event Production – Roles and Responsibility 163 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 88



11 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

INTRODUCTION 
This Event Safety and Management Plan provides an overview of all considerations and many of the detailed 
plans required to stage Into The Wild, as a safe event, that meets the Licensing Objectives, and provides 
cultural, artistic and therapeutic excellence for all involved in the festival. 

This document is kept in electronic form, and edit permissions are strictly regulated to the core Into The Wild 
management team. The primary reference of this document is intended to be on-line. A printed copy is kept at 
Event Control for use in contingencies. 

Statutory Conditions 

1. The Event Management Plan shall form part of the Premises Licence, and the event will be run in 
strict accordance with the plan. No changes will be made to it without prior written consent of the 
Licensing Authority. 

2. This is the Event Management Plan referred to in the Conditions attached by Mid Sussex District 
Council to its Premises Licence. 

3. This ESMP must be agreed with the Licensing Authority and other responsible authorities (Sussex 
Police, West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service, and others) no fewer than twenty-eight (28) days prior 
to the commencement of licensable activities, and provided that no significant risk identified by the 
Licensing Authority and other responsible authorities remains outstanding. 

4. Any subsequent alterations to this ESMP prior to the commencement of licensable activities must be 
agreed by Mid Sussex District Council and other responsible authorities. 

5. Any deviation from this ESMP that take place within the duration of licensable activities must only 
be undertaken with the specific authority of Into The Wild Festivals Limited and/or the relevant 
responsible authority. 

There is an up-to-date index at the head of this document: but additional facts and policies on any subject may 
be found using a word search. We particularly acknowledge the Events Industry Forum for its substantial 
assistance in giving form to the precautions and processes we take. 

All core organisers are very experienced in public events, coming as they do from the professions of successful 
and safe festival organisation, production of large entertainment events, and filmed media productions 
involving many cast and crew. 

All staff are taught their roles in the context of their responsibility to maintain the Licensing Objectives, 
whether or not the event is open to the public at a particular time: 

● the prevention of crime and disorder 
● public safety 
● the prevention of public nuisance 
● the protection of children from harm. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 89

https://pa.midsussex.gov.uk/online-applications/caseDetails.do?action=dispatch&keyVal=PS7FPMKT07C00&caseType=LicencingApplication
https://pa.midsussex.gov.uk/online-applications/caseDetails.do?action=dispatch&keyVal=PS7FPMKT07C00&caseType=LicencingApplication


12 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

EVENT SAFETY POLICY 
Into The Wild is designed from the outset to allow all attendees to enjoy the festival and all its activities in a 
safe environment, and in safe ways. From the highest level, both in the creation of this plan and in all briefings 
and instructions given to crew, performers and guests, health and safety is the first priority. 

To ensure certain delivery of this policy, two independent and experienced Health and Safety Advisors are 
contracted to the festival, and they are leaders of a team of personnel whose only duties are to work on the 
Health and Safety Team. From the top down, management welcome their unbiased instructions and advice at 
all times in the planning process and the event itself.  

Both advisors’ roles are indicated in the Command Structure diagram, and their contact details are included in 
the Key Personnel list. 

Our policy is also to work to ensure good cohesion with all local authorities including the licencing authority 
(Mid Sussex District Council), Sussex Police, West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service, SECAmb and our own 
contracted medical, fire prevention and security services. 

Any feedback will always be seen as constructive, and acted upon. 

Health and Safety Team 

It is the festival’s policy to give Health and Safety Advisor Adrian Bristow full advisory oversight of all 
operational aspects of Into The Wild. He leads a team having primary responsibility to advise on for all health 
and safety on site—advice which the Festival Director agrees to take action upon. 

His team, as shown in the Chain of Command diagram, contains as its section leaders: 

● A Health and Safety Assistant 
● A Chief Medical Officer (Karl Capon) 
● A Catering Health and Safety Advisor (Nicholas Mason) 
● A Head of Water (Phil Myers, Liquiline) 
● A Head of Waste Management (Mason Smith) 
● A Head of Noise Monitoring and Control (John Boarder) 

Mr. Bristow’s experience and qualifications are outlined in emails with the Licensing Authority. 

Health and Safety Advisor Policy 

Adrian Bristow will give practical, sensible advice to the company using his experience of best practice in the 
arts and events industry and similar activities, and will liaise closely with management team, particularly the 
Event and Production Managers and reporting to the Event Director. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 90

https://www.liquiline.co.uk/


13 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

He will advise on establishing workable systems for managing health and safety throughout the operations to 
prevent accidents or injury and ensure compliance with legislation.  Suitable systems for risk management and 
event safety planning, prioritising the most significant risks, will be developed with the organisers in 
consultation with the management, suppliers, workers and collaborators.  

He will assess safety documentation from contractors, participants and artists. He will maintain an overview of 
the health and safety throughout the overall event process and liaise with local authorities and agencies as 
required.  

Systems will be developed and implemented to monitor how organisations and contractors involved are 
complying with their risk assessments and safe systems of work. Safety checks will take place around the site 
to monitor event staff, contractors, participants and artist activities.  Lists of safety checks will be developed by 
the Health and Safety Advisor, and carried out and recorded as appropriate.  

The team led by Adrian Bristow will advise on monitoring, auditing and reviewing health and safety 
procedures for the project and will report directly to the Event Director on health and safety matters. 

The Health and Safety Advisor will be responsible for checking that accidents are properly recorded in the 
accident book and reacting to issues as necessary, as well as investigation of accidents and incidents and any 
reporting required under R.I.D.D.O.R. 

Should any absence be necessary through sickness, Adrian Bristow agrees that suitable qualified and 
experienced cover will be arranged through professional networks, and no festival activity will take place 
without a suitably qualified and experienced Health and Safety Advisor being in place. All cover will be 
notified to the Licensing Authority with as much notice as possible. 

Contractor Safety Policy 

We ensure all contractors acknowledge compliance with key areas of this ESMP including our Risk 
Assessments, safety policies, and festival rules including no alcohol. 

We examine all contractors to ensure compliance with the HSE’s guide, “Using Contractors”. Key areas we 
check are: 

● Compliance with the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2007 
● Their recent health and safety performance 
● Risk assessments for this, and other recent, jobs 
● Qualifications, skills and experience for this job 
● Health and safety information and training for their workers 
● Employers’ Liability Compulsory Insurance, where applicable 

They will be appraised of the leading members of the Into The Wild team, who will check their work, and give 
advice. 

The following appendices are relevant to Into The Wild’s Event Safety Policy, and must be shared with staff 
and contractors: 

● Appendix I — Risk Assessments 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 91



14 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● Appendix J — Emergency Response 
● Appendix L — Caterers and Food Safety 
● Appendix M — Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
● Appendix N — Management of Transport 
● Appendix O — Accident Reporting 
● Appendix R — Fire Safety Policy 

Because the event is fully ticketed using a wristband system, issued from a central office, we always know 
which members of contractors’ teams are on-site, in addition to the festival’s own staff and attendees. 

Daily Briefing 

All Festival Officers highlighted in blue in the table of Key Organisational Contacts will be present each 
morning at 0800 sharp for a Safety and Incident briefing in the Production Office. This meeting will be run 
according to the agenda below. The Health and Safety Officer, Adrian Bristow, will chair the briefing. Each 
meeting will be logged by the duty Production Manager. 

Its agenda is as follows: 

1. Apologies for absences 
2. Matters arising from the record of the previous meeting (if any) 
3. Matters arising from logged incidents 
4. Review of medical and safety incidents 
5. Health and Safety Report 
6. Site Manager’s Report 
7. Waste Management Report 
8. Stewards’ Report (including camp-site observations) 
9. Production Manager’s Report 
10. Public Health and Weather warnings issued by authorities in the last 24 hours 
11. List of build-out work to be carried out that day, and extra safety measures to be applied 
12. Any other business 

Festival Logbook 

Types of Log Books 

In the Production Office, a digital Festival Logbook is kept by the Event Production Manager on duty. The log 
contains the following information: 

● time of incident 
● location of incident 
● personnel involved (including contact details) 
● description 
● immediate action taken 
● resolved/not resolved. 

Into The Wild habitually retains these logs, revises them, and uses them to inform its future practice.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 92



15 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

The log is added to whenever the Production Manager becomes aware of an incident or a query. Resolutions of 
problems recorded earlier are also entered. The log is kept digitally and securely in the festival’s “cloud” 
storage, ensuring its integrity even in the event of an on-site system or power failure. It can be accessed through 
conventional computers and mobile clients. 

At separate locations, other log books are kept: in the Lost Children area, of all approaches and incidents; in the 
First Aid area, the team keeps its own logs; and a Lost And Found area keeps its logs to help our guests. 

Security of Log Book Data 

The log books will inevitably contain personal data, and are always kept in encrypted form. If the logs are 
printed at any point, the papers must not be left for people to see, and must be stored securely when unattended. 

Accident Reporting 

In addition to our own log-books, reviewed for the improvement of health and safety at the festival, Into The 
Wild is committed to reporting accidents to the required authorities as the law sets out. 

Our accident reporting policy is stated in Appendix O — Accident Reporting. 

EMERGENCY PLAN 

In the event of an emergency being declared, please see Appendix J — Emergency Plan 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 93



16 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

CHAIN OF COMMAND 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 94



17 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

KEY EMERGENCY CONTACTS 
The following primary contacts are key emergency service liaison points at Into The Wild. They are all 
instructed never to silence, or switch off, their mobile telephones. Additionally, the main public telephone 
number, 07--- ------ is kept with a key member of staff at all times. 

ADRIAN BRISTOW, HEALTH AND SAFETY OFFICER, IS GOLD 
COMMAND ON-SITE 

● ADRIAN BRISTOW, Health & Safety Officer, 07--- ------ 
● LISA SCOTT GORDON, Event Producer, 07952 811016 
● JOHN WARBURTON, Event Co-Producer and radio supervisor,  

 07964 588487 
● HUW WILLIAMS, Event Director, 07415 202280 
● RAMSAY JAMES, Head of Crew, 07769 171767 
● EDMUND LIMERICK, Landowner, 07852 942991  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 95



18 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

KEY CONTACTS 
 
Role Person Responsibilities Contact 

Event Director Huw Williams Event organizer and 
promoter. Primary 
responsibility for the event 

dejahu@me.com info@in2wild.com  
07415 202280 

Land Owner Edmund Limerick Land management  Edmund Limerick 
07852 942991 

Health & Safety Adrian Bristow Risk assessment, legal 
compliance, all event H&S 
and inspections. 

07--- ------ 

Security Gawain Boal Security 07715 630267 
Event Safety Alliance 
Kings Hill 
Cock Mill Lane 
East Pennard 
Shepton Mallet 
Somerset  BA4 6TR 

Chief Steward Fiona Morley Steward and security 
manager 

07748 747456 
fififlowergirl@outlook.com 

Site Manager Ramsay James All event infrastructure. 
Toilets and wash facilities. 
Waste clearance and 
recycling. 

07769 171767 
ramsay@substantialfilms.co.uk 

Head of Crew John Jenn Crew direction 07460 069465 

Inner Arena Crew Tinna Gunn Management of crew on 
main festival site 

07507 366930 

Medical Coordinator Karl Capon Responsible for on site first 
aid team 

Kent Event Medical Services Ltd  
Karl Capon  
Managing director  
Edenbridge office 
Office: 01732 300 394 
Office Mobile 07537916468 
Personal Mobile: 07511830653 

Water Management Phil Myers Water and sewage phil@liquiline.co.uk 
07825147595 

Administrator Lisa Scott Gordon  Finance and Documents lisag@gbggproductions.com 
07952 811016 
info@in2wild.com 
01273 782278 

Head of Information Fiona Morley Internal and external 07748 747456 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 96



19 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

communications 

Production John Warburton 
and 
Lisa Scott Gordon 

Production and Festival 
Managers 

john@johnwarburton.net 
07964 588487 
lisag@gbggproductions.com 
07952 811016 
info@in2wild.com 
01273 782278 

Electrical Safety Niall Rhodes  
N. R. Electric 

Safety sign-off of all 
installations, and hour-to-
hour running of generation 

07506 508381 

Artist/Stages Sam Welbourne Sound mixing, performing 
artist management 

07421 067723 

Waste Manager Mason Smith Organisation of waste 
clearance and recycling 

info@in2wild.com 

Box Office Lena Bailey 
 

Operation of tickets 
and wristbands 

07940 148951 
07775 521800 

Children’s Area Phil Rose Safety of children 
and activities 

info@lytproductions.co.uk 
07774 868840 

Workshops Lara Klein-Barge Management of workshops 
and people 

07816 225347 

Wellbeing Leticia Parmer Management of well-being 
area and people 

07956 155105 

Stalls Manager Brian Macaron Co-ordination of traders and 
stalls 

07522 919425 

Decor Crew Ania Abramowska 
Claudia Burnett 
Layla May 

Decor management 
including safety 

07731 903902 
 
07951 529127 
07834 721847 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 97



20 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

CAPACITY AND DEMOGRAPHIC 
The full Capacity and Demographic analysis is contained in the Event Overview, Appendix A. 

We expect up to 4,999 persons on site at any one time as a maximum, which we estimate will consist of 3999 
members of the public, and up to  999 staff, performers, volunteers and therapists/teachers. Our on-site count is 
readily available through the ticketing and wristband system, kept on servers with redundancy built-in in case 
of failure. 

Based on previous attendance, the event and safety management team expects the majority of attendees to be 
aged between 5 and 60. A large proportion is from Sussex and other Home Counties south of London, though 
many have already indicated intention to visit from much further afield.  

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 
Into The Wild has applied for a Premises Licence, which is regulated by the licencing authority: 

Mid Sussex District Council 
Oaklands 
Oaklands Road 
Haywards Heath 
West Sussex 
RH16 1SS  
Tel: 01444 458166 
Email: enquiries@midsussex.gov.uk 

Into The Wild intends to carry out the following licensable activities: 

● The provision of regulated entertainment 
● The provision of entertainment facilities 
● The provision of late-night refreshment. 

Full details of all licensable activities are included in Appendix H — Licensable Activities. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 98

mailto:enquiries@midsussex.gov.uk


21 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

SAFEGUARDING OF CHILDREN 
AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

Into The Wild considers the safeguarding of all its attendees as a primary concern. We have a carefully 
considered set of policies and regulations for the safeguarding of children and young people who attend the 
festival. 

Full details of this policy are in Appendix D — Safeguarding Children and Young People. 

COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 
Communication is paramount to safety at Into The Wild. We brief our festival guests, staff and performers 
beforehand via email (a condition of ticket sale) and their social media accounts where details are given. On 
site, we operate a professional and strict radio policy, in addition to a well-rehearsed team producing visual 
communication items such as posters and leaflets. 

Appendix C contains the full Communications Plan. 

WATER SUPPLY 
Into The Wild has arranged with a previously-reliable supplier the provision of an appropriate quantity of 
wholesome water, originating from the public mains and supplied through a professionally set-up network. The 
water supply is to be regularly and appropriately tested, with all results shared with the Licencing Authority as 
they arrive. 

Our water supply contact, who will appoint crew to be on-site at all times, is Phil Myers, phil@liquiline.co.uk, 
tel: 07825 147595.  

Appendix K contains the full Water Management Plan including a Risk Assessment. 

CROWD MANAGEMENT 
Our full Crowd Management policy is stated in Appendix F — Crowd Management. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 99

mailto:phil@liquiline.co.uk


22 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

The event is fully ticketed, with wristbands employed to allow all staff to detect intruders. 

The festival is not a music festival with one central attraction (though the music is provided), so attendees are 
generally dispersed across the site, with the exception of up to 499 persons permitted inside the large main 
stage marquee. 

Four assembly points are provided in case of emergency, all signposted appropriately and all near, but not on, 
public rights of way leading out of the site. 

VENUE AND SITE DESIGN 
In Appendix B — Mapping, we show an overview of the entire site. Additionally, Appendix K — Water 
Supply shows an overview of the contractor’s water distribution network especially installed for Into The Wild. 

The entire site has a strict 5mph speed limit. 

MANAGEMENT OF MOVEMENT 
Into The Wild has a policy of separating people and traffic, once festival attendees have departed from their 
vehicles. This policy involves use of separate pathways for vehicles and persons on foot, fire lanes, and traffic 
management managed by trained stewards. 

Our Management of Movement Policy is detailed in Appendix N. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
Into The Wild puts the safety and wellbeing of all attendees as its top priority.  

A full risk assessment has been written, included in Appendix A — Risk Assessments. This will be 
dynamically updated by the Health and Safety Team throughout build-out, the festival itself, and take-down. 

The qualified Health and Safety Officer has total authority to take all measures he sees fit as build-out, 
the festival itself, and take-down take place. All festival management including the Festival Director will 
follow his advice and directions. 

The Health and Safety Officer has a team reporting directly to him, including a Deputy HSO, the Head of 
Water, the Chief Medical Officer, the leader of the Waste Management Team, the full-time Catering Inspector 
and the Noise Management Officer. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 100



23 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

In addition to our Event Safety Policy, outlined at the top of this Event Safety and Management Plan, there are 
particular areas that are dealt with below. 

SANITATION 

Lavatories and showers to modern sustainable standards have been organised, along with their maintenance and 
clearing. 

See Appendix Q: Sanitary Provision. 

FIRE SAFETY 

Only fires authorised and prepared by the Into The Wild festival are permitted. There is a strict rule preventing 
all other fires. 

Our full Fire Safety Policy is in Appendix R — Fire Safety Policy 

Active Weather Awareness 

Event Producer John Warburton is responsible for examining weather forecasts on a frequent basis. He is 
professionally employed by a commercial radio company as a weather forecaster covering the area where Into 
The Wild is held, among other duties. Very local forecasts are provided by websites including Metcheck, 
whose weather modelling (the GFX model) is a blend of several other popular weather models, and was 
observed to be successful in predicting the weather for Into The Wild in 2018 and Beltane in 2019. Other 
models we will refer to include the UK Met Office’s own forecasting models.  

We look for particular problems: 

● High winds 
● Severe rainfall 
● Electrical storms 
● Severe heat 

Detailed protocols for all these problems are listed in Appendix J — Emergency Response Plan 

Medical and First-Aid Management 

Our on-site medical crew offers 24-hour coverage from Thursday 22 August to Monday 26 August. Full details 
are in Appendix E — Welfare Policy. 

Outside these times, including during build-out and take-down, the Health and Safety Officer is a first point of 
call. Several hospitals and a major trauma centre are available for off-site treatment, as detailed in Appendix E. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 101



24 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Food Hygiene 

Appropriate food hygiene among stallholders, supported by Into The Wild’s water and sanitation teams, is a 
vital part of ensuring the safety of all attendees. 

Our full policy regarding food hygiene is stated in Appendix L — Caterers and Food Safety. 

INCIDENT AND EMERGENCY 
PLANNING 

An Emergency Liaison Team has been established, headed by the Health and Safety Officer.  

It directs festival staff, and liaises with the public services, according to our detailed policies shown in 
Appendix J — Emergency Response Plan. 

WELFARE AND INFORMATION 
Welfare includes: 

● Medical Cover 
● Stewarding 
● Formal Security 

Welfare is delivered primarily through the team of Stewards and the staff of the Children’s Area, who will 
often be a first point-of-contact for the public. 

The main place to go to, or contact, for general information connected to Welfare is the Information Tent, 
which can be contacted on its own radio channel. 

Medical concerns should be raised with the First Aid Team, who have their own radio channel. 

Security concerns can be forwarded to the Head of Security, on their own channel. 

Any other concerns can be raised with Head of Health and Safety, or Production Management, as appropriate. 

Our full Welfare Policy is given in Appendix E — Welfare Policy. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 102



25 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

PREVENTION OF CRIME AND 
DISORDER 

This is a licensing objective, and Into The Wild trains all its personnel to be aware of the need to detect any 
possible disorder or crime at an early stage.  

We have a Crime and Disorder Prevention Policy — please see Appendix M. 

THE ENVIRONMENT 
Into The Wild takes seriously the well-being of the natural environment in which the festival is held. We co-
operate fully with the landowner, who knows the site impeccably, and are very conscious of how to care for the 
Site of Special Scientific Interest which covers part of his land, and is a particular attraction for some attendees 
seeking peace in a woodland area. 

Staff, including leading management, will inspect the whole site area before build-out commences. Inspection 
criteria will include checking for the presence of dangerous structures or artefacts of farming either above or on 
the ground. Any unwanted structures will be made safe or removed. 

Areas of natural water on site, although fenced off and completely out-of-bounds, will be sampled, and the 
samples sent away to be tested so we can be informed of the exact dangers within. 

We are well aware that all naturally-occuring water on this site is likely to have an unacceptable level of 
contamination which will change nearly hourly, depending on the temperature, sunlight and exposure to animal 
waste. After sample results are obtained, signage prohibiting festival attendees from using this water will 
include a warning of the contaminates present. 

On-site clean-up is part and parcel of each steward’s responsibility. 

Impact Assessment 

Main Areas 

After liaising with the Landowner, we have been informed that the policies of care which Into The Wild has 
adopted are sufficient for the main part of the festival’s land. These are detailed under “Waste Management”. 

The land is arable, on good quality soil, which the landowner is confident will regrow strongly in any areas 
where vehicles have driven repeatedly, or there has been substantial footfall. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 103



26 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Site of Special Scientific Interest 

There is, clearly marked on our Site Map, a Site of Special Scientific Interest. This covers part of the area of 
our Woodland Cafe and Activities, and must be safeguarded in the following manner, as specified by Natural 
England in its notification for “Wakehurst and Chiddingly Woods” dated 1954 and 1987. 

We will not use the area just outside the Woodland Cafe and Activities, to the south. This is because it contains 
extensive exposures of sandrock, a nationally rare habitat. It is deemed to be the richest sandrock community in 
the country, supporting a unique flora. It is the locality of an uncommon cranefly, and also has a diverse 
breeding community of woodland birds. 

Within the cafe area, the warm, moist micro-climate allows plants to flourish which are more typically 
restricted to the west of the country. The streams have been dammed to form a series of ponds with marginal 
vegetation which contribute to the value of the site for birds. 

The landowner’s own management processes must be left untouched by Into The Wild. He has informed the 
festival that other activities he manages on the SSSI have safeguarded the unique habitat there, and will be 
sufficient if left unchanged. 

Of the 28 operations named as likely to be harmful to the SSSI, the following are relevant to Into The Wild and 
must be avoided. 

● The release into the site of any wild, feral or domestic animal, plant or seed 
● The killing or removal of any wild animal, including pest control 
● Construction, removal or destruction of roads, tracks, walls, fences, hardstands, banks, ditches or other 

earthworks, or the laying, maintenance or removal of pipelines and cables, above or below ground 
● Storage of materials, on or against sandstone rock features or other features of interest 
● Erection of permanent or temporary structures, or the undertaking of engineering works including 

drilling 
● Use of vehicles or craft likely to damage or disturb features of interest 
● Recreational or other activities likely to damage or disturb features of interest. 

We note that the Landowner’s own “Outward Bound” courses are, in his opinion, safe to operate in this area 
and, he has informed us, do not cause damage or disturbance to features of interest. Into The Wild must cause 
equal or less impact than these other activities. 

● Within the SSSI, we do not permit cafe furniture that is anchored into the ground. We have a strict, 
daily “clear all rubbish” policy.  

● Waste food shall not be left on the ground at any time, including during serving hours. 
● Other than the water supply that the landowner has made available via above-ground inert plastic pipes, 

there is to be no other supply.  
● All waste fluid must be collected in the cafe’s own containers, and never dumped in any watercourse or 

pond. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 104



27 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

STRUCTURES 
Tents and Stages 

The following large structures will be used by Into the Wild. Each must be inspected and signed-off by Head of 
Health and Safety. Additionally, a record must be kept of the design wind speed of each structure. We use these 
records when assessing any changes necessary to festival organisation if inclement weather is forecast. 

Structure Size Use Owner 

Marquee – White 80 x 70 foot Main Venue www.meerkatmarquees.co.uk 07751 
876052 

4 x Marquees 53 x 30 foot Workshops Triban tents www.triban.org 

3 “Mongolian Yurts” (large 
yurt) 33 feet Workshops Into the Wild 

Tipi 30 feet Workshops Into the Wild 

Army Tent 1 30 feet Workshops Into the Wild 

Army Tent 2 30 feet Workshops Into The Wild 

2 Tipis 30 feet Workshops 

Hearthworks Ltd 
Spring Cottage,  
Warminster, 
North Wootton 
Shepton Mallet  
BA4 4AJ  
www.hearthworks.co.uk 

Stage 6m x 4m Main stage www.meerkatmarquees.co.uk 

Many other structures are put in place by stallholders and members of the general public. Each is subject to 
inspection by the Head of Health and Safety. 

While the structures are in use, Into The Wild’s Health and Safety Team are instructed to inspect them regularly 
for deterioration and arrange for remedial works, or require the structure to be removed. These checks will be 
logged by the Head of Health and Safety. 

Additions made of solid material, such as noticeboards and banners, beyond those made of laminated paper, 
must be inspected by a competent member of the Health and Safety team, and such inspections are part of their 
regular work. 

All structures used by caterers are subject to additional requirements for the reason of food safety. These are 
detailed in Appendix L — Caterers and Food Safety. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 105

http://www.meerkatmarquees.co.uk/
http://www.triban.org/
http://www.hearthworks.co.uk/
http://www.meerkatmarquees.co.uk/


28 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION 
AND LIGHTING 

Safety 

An effective earthing system must be used and tested for every electricity generating facility where voltages 
greater than 24v will be in use. 

Generation 

Four 40 kW generators using Diesel motors will be hired from:  

James Marquee Hire,  
Station Road, 
Hellingly, 
Hailsham, 
BN27 4EU 
http://jamesmarquees.com 
Tel: 01323 449944 

Into the Wild encourages traders to use solar power supplied by themselves. 

We understand that power is being supplied from this set of generators: 

1 x 20k 
1 x 30k for water 
1 x 10k 

The electrical contractor has a well-rehearsed schedule of maintenance, which includes checks for fuel leaks 
and electrical safety. 

Inspection 

In all cases, all electrical appliances on site will be inspected by a certified outdoor electrician: Niall Rhodes 
07506 508381 

Public Lighting 

The major thoroughfares on-site, the lavatories and the water standpipes will be lit minimally but effectively at 
night, bearing in mind that the camping areas are full of guests who will wish to sleep peacefully in darkness, 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 106



29 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

yet are shielded only by the covering of their tents. It is the aim of Into the Wild to use renewable energy and 
LEDs for this lighting. 

Barriers and Fencing 

We will have safe Heras fencing around any generators, any open water, or anything deemed a potential hazard. 
We will pay particular attention to the management of these fences, for we are aware of the potential for 
disruption if the electrically-powered water pumps are interfered with; and the danger to individuals who may 
tamper with generators. 

FOOD AND DRINK 
The safety and wellbeing of all festival attendees is paramount at all times. Into The Wild has strict 
environmental health checks by a newly appointed professional officer in place, before arrival, during set-up, 
and during the festival, to ensure compliance with all applicable laws and best practices. 

A strict policy of compliance with Local Authority regulations regarding food safety is required of all caterers, 
no matter what level of service they are offering festival attendees. 

There will be no exceptions whatsoever to this rule. The safety of festival attendees is paramount at all times. 

Into The Wild has contracted a specialist Environmental Health Officer, Nick Saxon. Mr. Saxon is also 
employed as a food safety inspector and auditor with Lambeth Borough Council in London, and is 
professionally responsible for auditing and recording food safety and compliance with current food hygiene 
legislation across his borough. 

Our Food and Drink Policy, together with a list of caterers already booked, is given in Appendix L - Caterers 
and Food Safety / Environmental Health. 

Water 

All publicly available water will be wholesome, and tested and maintained in accordance with BS 8551. It will 
be supplied through a network constructed especially for this purpose by our contractor, Liquiline, supervised 
by their officer Phil Myers, phil@liquiline.co.uk, tel: 07825 147595. 

A full description of our water system, and applicable testing and other regulations, is in Appendix K — Water. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 107



30 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

AMUSEMENTS, ATTRACTIONS, 
RIDES AND PROMOTIONAL 

DISPLAYS 
Into The Wild does not provide any such forms of entertainment. 

SOUND: NOISE AND VIBRATION 
Into The Wild is a well-being, cultural, family-oriented festival. Performance being an integral part of culture, 
there is a formal and informal programme of performances including poetry, folk dance from many cultures, 
and music. Some of this music will be modestly amplified to allow up to 499 to join together in its enjoyment. 

A Premises Licence has been applied for, to permit musical performance between 1300 and 2359 each day. 

Into The Wild employs a dedicated noise monitoring and abatement team, led by John Boarder, who have the 
authority to instruct, and require compliance with, all their requirements to keep external noise within limits 
agreed with Mid Sussex District Council, and to protect the health and safety of attendees.  

Our Noise Policy may be viewed in Appendix P — Noise Policy  

SPECIAL EFFECTS, FIREWORKS 
AND PYROTECHNICS 

None of these are in use at Into The Wild. We do not permit their use within camping areas, a policy which is 
given to guests as part of their pre-festival information. 

TRANSPORT MANAGEMENT 
Our full Transport Management and Movement policy is in Appendix N — Management of Movement 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 108



31 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Overview 
The site has an event-wide 5mph speed limit, widely and prominently signposted. 

Based on previous events, we shall allow space for a maximum of 1500 cars and 300 live- in vehicles. Most of 
these can be expected to arrive between 10:00 and 21:00 on Friday 23 August. For additional cost, “Early 
Arrival” passes permit arrival on Thursday evening, with exact times to be communicated to attendees. 

At all other times traffic flow can be expected to be relatively light. Egress by the public is, from our 
experience, over a longer period, from Sunday afternoon 25 August till Monday afternoon 26 August, so rate of 
traffic flow out will be lower than during the arrival phase. 

Traders and crew vehicles will arrive from Monday 19 August. Set up of arrival and parking areas is to be 
complete by 12:00 on Thursday 22 August, and the main site is to be complete and ready by 20:00 Thursday 22 
August 

Day tickets will be available for Sunday 25 August, so there will be some extra cars for the car park on Sunday 
morning. Based on previous experience, we do not expect many such tickets to be sold. 

Our objective is to maintain a safe, smooth flow of traffic throughout. Long queues will be prevented from 
building up at any point. Sufficient numbers of stewards will be on duty at peak times Friday to ensure that 
arrivals are processed efficiently and cars are parked as soon as they arrive. 

During the event, all vehicles will travel at 5mph maximum when using access lanes or roads through the site 
itself. The stewards will enforce this. We will have dedicated traffic stewards on various points on Chiddinglye 
drives throughout the vent to ensure free flowing traffic, and to deal with any breakdowns, if any should occur 
on the road. We also have access to four wheel drive vehicles, should we need to tow vehicles off any main 
access points. 

CAMPING 
The main camping area will be in the two large fields through the gate immediately to the south of the car park 
and live-in vehicle area. Extra camping space will also be available for crew around the perimeter of the main 
event field itself. There is plenty of space in all these fields and they are reasonably level. 

Fire Safety Policy 

The general Into The Wild Fire Safety Policy applies to camping areas. This is to be found in Appendix R — 
Fire Safety Policy. 

We give advice to all festival attendees to pitch tents distinctly separate from one another, to prevent the spread 
of fire between pitches. 

There is a strict No Campfires policy. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 109



32 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

All tent areas are accessible via a series of clearly marked 5 metre fire lanes, laid out by festival crew before 
any members of the public are due to arrive. Many signed Fire Points are provided including approved 
extinguishers, sand buckets and fire bells, throughout the camp sites. All Fire Points appear on official festival 
maps. 

The campsite will be regularly patrolled by stewards and security to ensure fire lanes are clear, that there are no 
campfires, and to provide a deterrence against theft, especially overnight. 

Clearance of Animals Policy 

Because Chiddinglye Farm is a working farm, Into The Wild commits to the following policy regarding land 
that is to be used for the festival, whether camping or for activities: 

All animals will be formally excluded from all festival land for a minimum of four weeks before 
commencement of activities. This means that the land must be clear of animals by July 25th. 

Into The Wild’s management will ensure the landowner knows this policy and communicates it to his staff. The 
festival will confirm with the landowner before or on this time that clearance has taken place. 

Waste Management 

A strong “keep tidy” ethic will be emphasized in communication with festival guests, traders, teachers and 
artists before the event. 

We provide, free of charge, strong bin-bags to festival guests on arrival. 

On site, many bins will be provided for several categories of waste including named categories of recyclable 
rubbish. 

Rubbish bins and rubbish on site during the event will be managed by Into The Wild’s Waste Management 
Officer.  

Skips are hired for removing all rubbish at the end, and bin bags will be provided free of charge to all festival 
goers on arrival. The skips will be provided by: 

Light Bros. Ltd 
Greystone Quarry,  
Southerham,  
Lewes  
BN8 6JN  
Tel: 01273 486848  
http://www.lightbros.co.uk/ 

Recyclable waste will be removed from site at the end of the event by JunkClear of East Grinstead. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 110



33 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Grey water from traders will be taken off-site by them, for private disposal. Any trader observed disposing of 
grey water inappropriately will be forbidden from trading until the Festival Manager is satisfied that proper 
means to dispose grey water have been instituted. 

WELFARE AND INFORMATION 
There will be a central Information Tent in the main arena field with well-informed staff on duty throughout the 
event. This will feature a detailed map of the event and up to date information regarding workshops, 
performances and other activities. A programme is available to all attending when they arrive. 

Into The Wild has a full Welfare and Information Policy, in Appendix E — Welfare Policy 

PERFORMERS 
All performers will have been booked directly by Huw Williams, the Event Manager. All necessary 
information and travel info will have been provided by Huw and he will act as artist liaison on the day. 

TV AND MEDIA 
Reasonable requests regarding media coverage during the festival will be forwarded to the Event Manager, 
Huw Williams. Any media crew on-site must have their accreditation checked, and will be expected to obey all 
reasonable directions given to them by authorised stewards. They are required to act in a safe and respectable 
manner at all times. 

The festival location is private land, and media representatives will be informed that our festival guests have a 
reasonable expectation of privacy on private ground.  

UNMANNED AERIAL VEHICLES 
All personnel, including contracted photographers and members of the public, are completely prohibited from 
using Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (‘Drones’) for any purpose. 

Into The Wild has a safety policy regarding the measures our staff must take if use of a UAV is detected. 

Our UAV policy is in Appendix U — Unmanned Aerial Vehicles 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 111



34 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

 

PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE 
Event Insurance Services Ltd 
Event House 
20A Headlands Business Park 
Ringwood 
BH24 3PB 

DECLARATION 
The Event Director and the leading staff of Into The Wild understand that the Health and Safety at Work Act 
1974 places duties of care on us as employers, promoters, organisers and designers. 

We undertake to ensure the health, safety and welfare of our employees, volunteers, sub-contractors and 
general public attending Into The Wild. To this end we will ensure compliance with all legal requirements laid 
out in Regulations made under the Act. We will follow as far as reasonably practicable the guidance laid down 
in  

● The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005: Fire Safety Risk 
Assessment: Open Air Events and Venues (ISBN-13: 978 1 85112 823 5). 

● The Purple Guide (2014) published by the Events Industry Forum. 

Specifically, we undertake to: 

● Ensure that sufficient funds and resources are made available to discharge our duties of care; 
● Adhere fully to all Licensing Conditions laid out in agreement with Mid Sussex District Council, the 

licensing authority; 
● Assess known hazards and quantify the risks. Measures to reduce the level of risk will be taken where 

it is not possible to eliminate the risk completely (see Appendix I — Risk Assessment) 
● Provide sufficient training and instruction; 
● Appoint competent contractors; 
● Monitor our contractors to ensure they discharge their duties of care; 
● Ensure adequate welfare provision for employees, contractors, performers and public; 
● Provide an adequate crowd management system, security and stewarding arrangements; 
● Have in place a traffic management system; 
● Have in place a contingency plan and adequate communication links; 
● Seek advice when necessary from independent experts to supplement our knowledge and experience; 
● Provide safe access and egress to and from the site; 
● Have in place an accident reporting and investigation procedure; 
● Ensure reporting of accidents to Mid Sussex District Council if required under the Reporting of 

Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR); 
● Obtain both Employers Liability and Public Liability insurance appropriate to the size and nature of the 

event. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 112



35 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

We recognise that no safety measures are going to be effective unless we receive the full support of all those 
involved in putting on the event, including contractors, concessions and performers. They will be encouraged to 
co-operate with the control measures put in place, report all hazards and incidents, and play their role in 
ensuring their own safety and that of fellow event workers and the public. 

 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 113



36 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX A — EVENT 
OVERVIEW 

Demographic and Capacity 

We expect up to 4,999 persons on site at any one time, which we estimate will consist of 4,599 members of the 
public, and 400 staff, performers, volunteers and therapists/teachers. Our on-site count is readily available 
through the ticketing and wristband system, kept on servers with redundancy built-in in case of failure. 

Based on previous attendance, the event and safety management team expects the majority of attendees to be 
aged between 5 and 60. A large proportion is from Sussex and other Home Counties south of London, though 
many have already indicated intention to visit from much further afield. The audience is highly engaged with 
sustainable living practices, so significant use is expected of public transport, although a strongly regulated 
large area for visitor-driven vehicles is present. 

No form of activity or performance is based around emphasising any form of conflict or territorial behaviour, 
and (as in all previous events) we anticipate an entirely peaceful set of guests and artistes. 

Event Location 

Into The Wild takes place at Chiddinglye Farm, Selsfield Road, West Hoathly, East Grinstead, West Sussex, 
RH19 4QS: grid reference TQ 3511 3278. 

The land is privately owned by Edmund, Earl of Limerick, who gives permission for Into The Wild to use it for 
this event at the times stated in this plan. 

In 2018, Into The Wild held Premises License LI/18/0794 from Mid Sussex District Council in relation to this 
event. A further Premises License Application is underway, and a copy of this license will be held at Event 
Production. 

Conditions for the 2018 licence may be read at this link: 

https://pa.midsussex.gov.uk/online-
applications/licencingApplicationDetails.do?activeTab=activities&keyVal=PA7JDAKT07C00 

Licensing Authority 

Into The Wild’s Premises License is regulated by the licencing authority, which is: 

Mid Sussex District Council 
Oaklands 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 114



37 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Oaklands Road 
Haywards Heath 
West Sussex 
RH16 1SS  
Tel: 01444 458166 
Email: enquiries@midsussex.gov.uk 

Type of Event 

Into The Wild is a medium-scale family-friendly outdoor camping event focussing on wellbeing, crafts, dance, 
yoga, tai chi, meditation, a wide variety of workshops and talks, stalls, live world and folk music, and children's 
activities. 

A key point is that the event is entirely alcohol-free and family orientated. We take reasonable steps to ensure 
alcohol is not brought onto site by: 

1. Emphasising the non-alcohol policy in all communication as a positive reason for attending; 
2. Conducting targeted searches on arrivals; 
3. Obeying the policy at all levels of management; and 
4. Challenging any who have visibly slipped through the net. 

On festival land during festival time, we have never been troubled by an alcohol-related incident in the years to 
date. 

Set-up and Take-down 

Set-up will be from Saturday 17th August 2019 to Friday 23rd August 2019. 

Mid Sussex District Council's SAG team is scheduled to visit at 1pm, Thursday 22nd August. 

Take-down will be from Monday 26th August to Friday 30th August. 

Opening and Running Times 

Public attendance to Parking area from 18:00 Thursday 22 August 2019 to 16:00 Monday 26 August 2019. 

Event activities commencing 10:00 Friday 23rd August and ending 23:59 Sunday 25th August. There will be 
cafés and food stalls trading to the public from 10:00 Friday 23 August. 

Licenseable Activities 

Into The Wild intends to carry out the following licensable activities: 

● The provision of regulated entertainment 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 115

mailto:enquiries@midsussex.gov.uk


38 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● The provision of entertainment facilities 
● The provision of late-night refreshment. 

It is not intended to carry out all licensable activities for the entire duration of each festival day. 

Regulated entertainment will take place on a stage only between 19:00 (Dance Workshop enclosed space: 
10:00, cafe enclosed spaces: 12:00) and 23:59 each day. We specifically programme quieter music for the final 
hour. 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 116



39 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX B — MAPPING 
General Site Layout 

 

An up-to-date working map for the 2019 festival may always be accessed here: 

https://www.google.co.uk/maps/d/u/1/edit?mid=1XNk5fplUm0sQ9VppcyQg0PG19jQ77QQn&ll=51.0774865
0608948%2C-0.07422331676480098&z=17  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 117



40 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX C — 
COMMUNICATION 

A key part of Into The Wild is open and co-operative liaison with stakeholders who might not attend the 
festival e.g. local residents, businesses, the public authorities and emergency services. The festival monitors 
its social media and other forms of communication including a dedicated festival telephone number, to be 
available to respond to significant concerns however they are expressed. 

Pre-Event External Communication 

The website will be kept up to date with definitive public information about the event at: www.in2wild.com 
and www.intothewildgathering.com (both addresses are for the same website). 

Information relating to the promotion of the event will also be relayed by social media, particularly including 
the Facebook pages for this festival. 

A condition of ticket purchase is that an email address is associated with each buyer. Specific information pre-
event is sent to ticket holders, crew and performers by email, plus additionally by phone communication in 
some cases where emails are found to bounce. 

In this communication, we instruct festival attendees about: 

● on-site safety,  
● correct discipline when using the approach roads,  
● arrival procedures,  
● where to obtain welfare support and information on-site,  
● how to raise the alarm in case of emergency,  
● and other details. 

Pre-Event Communication with Caterers 

Stallholders supplying food and beverage have a special responsibility for the health, safety and welfare of all 
attendees. 

Our dedicated Caterers’ Health and Safety Officer is in frequent contact with stallholders to ensure compliance 
with relevant law, and the festival’s policies regarding caterers as detailed in Appendix L. It includes in strong 
terms that only the festival’s own water supply is to be used for all purposes. 

External Communication during the Festival 

A festival contact telephone number and email address will be maintained throughout the festival set-up, run, 
and take-down. The telephone will be situated in the Production Office or will be with Event Producers or 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 118

http://www.in2wild.com/
http://www.in2wild.com/
http://www.intothewildgathering.com/


41 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Event Manager when the office is unmanned. It will be a mobile type, kept fully charged, and regularly 
checked for operation.  

The email address will be info@in2wild.com, to be monitored by Event Producers and Event Manager. 

This information will be placed clearly on the Event Website, and also left with officers of Mid Sussex District 
Council, Sussex Police, and West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service. 

During the event, local residents will be able to contact us, for instance should there be issues regarding noise, 
by using the advertised number and also by using the email contact details. 

Mobile telephone coverage on the EE network is secure in the position planned for the on-site Production 
Office.  

We have also successfully tested and used Wi-Fi coverage provided by a mobile network hot-spot in the 
Production Office. Festival email and social media will be monitored here, and on the smartphones of festival 
organisers including the Festival Manager and the Production Team, throughout Into The Wild. 

In-Event Communication 

Public Communication During Event 

There will be a central festival Information Point staffed each day the public are on site, Friday - Monday. The 
Information Point has radio and telephone communication. 

Important announcements can be made using the PA system in the main venue. 

Stewards can disseminate information by passing through the campsite and live-in vehicle areas verbally 
informing people, for instance with weather warnings. 

On-site printing and laminating facilities will be used whenever desired to produce large, clear, eye-catching 
notices. A protocol is in place to monitor ink and paper levels at the Production Office. Smaller notices can be 
distributed by hand to all accommodation and trading areas. This procedure has been successfully tested. 

Radios 

One hundred (100) Motorola GP radios will be hired with chargers, spare batteries and holsters, from: 

The Radio Company (UK) LLP 
26 Station Road, 
Whyteleafe,  
Surrey  
CR3 0EP  
tel: 01883 623335 
www.theradiocompanyonline.com  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 119

mailto:info@in2wild.com
http://www.theradiocompanyonline.com/


42 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

These will be issued as follows. 

4 x   Event Manager + H&S team 
32 x   Stewards + Ticket Desk  
10 x   Site Manager + Site team 
40 x   SIA Security 
2 x   First Aid 
2 x   Info Point 
2 x   Lost Kids team 
8 x   Spare 

Channel allocation for 16-channel sets will be as follows: 

1. Production Office 
2. Stewards 
3. Wristband Office 
4. First Aid 
5. Site Crew 
6. Traders, Workshops & Layout 
7. Stage Liaison 
8. Children’s Assistance & Welfare 
9. Health and Safety Team 
10. Event Director 
11. Electricians 
12. Cleansing 
13. Noise monitor 
14. Reserved 
15. Emergency 
16. Security 

Channels 15 and 16 have repeaters on top of Chiddinglye Farm, and can cover a much greater area than other 
channels. 

All radios have serial numbers. When a radio is taken out, the person who is to use it will have the set signed-
out to them by Event Production. When radios are returned, Event Production will note the fact. 

Radio Procedure 

All staff must be trained to use radios effectively. 

1. Listen to the channel first, so other conversations are not interrupted. 
2. Pause for one second after pressing the push-to-talk button, to allow electronics across the site to 

respond to your call. 
3. Identify yourself and who you're calling (all radio holders/positions will have an allocated call sign 

descriptive of their role and location) e.g. “Welfare calling Event Production: over” 
4. “Over” signifies the end of a transmission, but not the end of a conversation. 
5. Use “Over and out” when a conversation is clearly finished. 
6. If you have changed frequency for a conversation, remember to change back to your usual channel 

when communication is finished. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 120



43 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

7. Don’t hog channels. Either go to the spare channel (14, or 9 for stewards only), or meet face-to-face. 
Keep transmissions short in any case: most radios stop transmitting after 1 minute. 

8. Use the phrase “PRIORITY, PRIORITY, PRIORITY” if you need to break into another conversation 
to convey important traffic. 

Key staff will ensure they have contact details of other staff stored in their phones as per an official List of 
Useful Numbers. 

If a child or a vulnerable adult is reported missing, the name of the person concerned must never be used over 
the radio. Common code is ‘Moses’ for a lost child. 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 121



44 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX D — SAFEGUARDING 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

LOST CHILDREN POLICY 

We ensure the safe care of any lost children until he/she is reunited with parents or carers. We ensure we deal 
responsibly and compassionately with parents or carers who have lost their children. 

We ensure all workers are familiar with how we do this. 

The collection point for missing/found children is the children’s area, when it is operational. When it is not 
operational, the collection point is the medical area. 

We have two forms (see below, supplied by the NSPCC), to use when taking details of lost or found children. 

● As soon as a child arrives, introduce yourself and welcome and reassure them – they may be upset and 
frightened. 

● Enter their details on a Found Child form, including the time they arrived and the team member taking 
responsibility for them. Make a note of anything a child has with them (e.g. a toy). 

● Look in the Missing Child forms to see if the child’s parent or guardian has been in to report their loss. 
If so, reassure the child that their parents are looking for them and will come to the welfare tent soon. 

● Ask the child who they are with and if they can describe what they look like. Make a note on their 
form. 

● If the child knows a phone number for their parent/guardian or someone at home; if they are wearing a 
wristband with a phone number on it; or if the parent/guardian’s number is logged on a Missing Child 
form, try to call (or text) the number. Be discreet when contacting a parent/guardian/other relative, as 
they may not know that the child is missing. 

● Tell Stewarding immediately on the dedicated Missing Child channel 

● Make sure you give the precise location of where the child is. 

From the moment of alert of a lost child, we: 

● ensure that all other children continue to be supervised appropriately while a search for the child 
concerned is carried out 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 122



45 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● organise the remaining available responsible adults to conduct a search of the surrounding area 
allocating each individual to a specific area; request all those searching report back within ten minutes, 
a time chosen to reflect the complexity of some areas of the site 

● if the child cannot be found after a good search of the immediate surroundings, we contact the child’s 
parents or carers (if they themselves have not reported the loss) to advise them of the concern and 
reassure them that everything is being done to locate the child 

● make a note of the circumstances in which the child has gone missing and where he/she was last seen 
and prepare a detailed physical description of the child, to include their hair and eye colour, 
approximate height and build and clothing he/she was wearing, as this will be required by the police 

● we obtain intelligence from the child’s friends or family, as to who they might also be with, and make 
attempts to locate the person so named (experience has shown this inevitably results in return) 

● make announcements over the stage PA system, and over a dedicated radio channel (see channel list), 
to alert staff to look out for the lost child 

● report the concern to the police if the search is unsuccessful and no later than 20 minutes after the 
initial missing person report if the search is ongoing 

● follow police guidance if further action is recommended and maintain close contact with the police 

● report the incident to Production Office 

● ensure that we inform all adults involved including the parents, searchers and police if at any stage the 
child is located. 

From the moment of a child alerting us to lost parents, we: 

● ensure that all other children continue to be supervised appropriately while a search for the child 
concerned is carried out 

● ask the child if he or she knows a mobile phone number or email for his or her parents or carers, or any 
description of their accommodation or areas, and use this to make initial enquiries 

● simultaneously organise two responsible, DBS checked workers from the children’s area by day, and 
medical staff by night, to remain with the child at the designated point 

● organise the remaining available responsible adults to conduct a search of the surrounding area 
allocating each individual to a specific area; request all those searching report back within ten minutes, 
a time chosen to reflect the complexity of some areas of the site 

● if the parent cannot be found after a good search of the immediate surroundings, we make a note of the 
circumstances that the child can tell us about, and any particular descriptions of his or her parents or 
carers they may remember, as this will be required by the police 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 123



46 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● we obtain intelligence from the child but no-one else, as to who the parents/carers might also be with, 
and make attempts to locate the person so named (experience has shown this inevitably results in 
return) 

● make announcements over the stage PA system, and over a dedicated radio channel (see channel list), 
to alert staff to look out for the named persons 

● report the concern to the police if the search is unsuccessful and no later than 20 minutes after the 
initial missing person report if the search is ongoing 

● follow police guidance if further action is recommended and maintain close contact with the police 

● report the incident to Production Office 

● ensure that we inform all adults involved including the parents, searchers and police if at any stage the 
child is located. 

● thoroughly check the identity of parents or carers who respond, explaining why we are doing so. 

When someone comes to collect the child, monitor the child’s reaction. If you are at all unsure about a 
handover because the child does not seem to recognise the adult, or if a child is reluctant to go with the person, 
or if the adult appears intoxicated or aggressive or incapable of caring for the child, alert the head of Children’s 
Area or Chief Medic immediately. They will assess the situation and contact Event Production if there is any 
concern. 

Before a child is allowed to be taken by an adult, make sure you get the name, address and signature (in some 
circumstances, identification) of the person who collects the child. Parents often want to rush off after being 
reunited with their child, so have the form ready for them to sign. 

When the child is collected, enter the time and the name of the team member handing over the child, on their 
form and make sure the child takes everything they brought in with them. 

Generally, you should not allow a child to be collected by anyone under 18 years old. 

Remember to tell Event Control and any other organisations involved when the child has been reunited with its 
parents. 

If a child is not reunited with its parents/guardian after some time (about 1 hour), Event Production should be 
told. There may be another organisation on site with more suitable space who can take over looking after the 
child. 

All staff must be aware of the following safeguarding issue: 

At no point does any PA message or radio message ever disclose any specific or personal detail about children, 
such as their names. Lost children are never discussed on any radio channel, except with a special alert of the 
form, “Production calling Security. We’re going to talk on Channel 14.” Then, the designated child protection 
channel is used, and that channel only. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 124



47 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

All lost children incidents are logged by the children’s area or by the medical area, as appropriate. Log books 
are shared with the Production Office for its secure digital log.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 125



48 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

 
Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 126



49 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 127



50 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Into The Wild Child Protection Principles 

● Children must be kept safe and free from harm. 
● All staff and volunteers that are expected to be in contact with children must be DBS checked. This is 

only part of a broader range of safeguards we employ. 
● Every children’s activity is to be risk-assessed. We liaise early with the Head of Children’s Area to 

accomplish this and, as is usual, observe on-site that the assessment is correct.  
● Children are never to be alone with individual adult staff at Into The Wild other than their 

parents/carers, unless they are being openly escorted. 
● Children are never to be smacked, shaken or humiliated. 
● Bullying or violence by or involving children will be addressed immediately. 
● Children's wristbands that are blank will be issued, so parents can write their telephone numbers on 

them. 
● We communicate our plans for children with our stewards, first-aid and information and welfare staff. 

Children’s Area Opening Times 

We operate a children’s area between 8.30am and 8pm each day. 

Children’s Area Staffing 

The leader is Phil Rose of LYT Productions, info@lytproductions.co.uk, telephone 07774 868840. 

We believe Mr. Rose is amply qualified to safeguard and programme activities for children. Mr. Rose has been 
working in the production, entertainment, performance and artistic industries for over thirty years. He founded 
LYT Productions in 2006, and is committed to creating inclusive learning environments where young people 
can safely learn practical and transferable skills with the support and mentoring of industry professionals. 

He currently teaches as an Event Management tutor in Brighton, after being Head of Production at Sussex 
Downs College. He has directed and created a diverse range of organisations and projects, including: Every 
Sort of People Festival, LewesLight, Starfish Music, and PATINA “Moving On”. 

Children’s Area Policies 

● All workers are 18 years of age or older 
● Workers with histories of child-related offences are excluded through use of DBS checks and other 

checks 
● We turn away workers who appear unfit for work, whether for medical reasons or otherwise 
● We always have one or more qualified first-aiders among children’s workers 
● All adults are given the stewards’ briefing, which includes first-aid point location and 

emergency/evacuation procedures 
● We tell parents/carers that, in the event of an evacuation, children’s area staff will evacuate their 

children, and that parents should not go first to the children’s area, but leave the site as instructed. 
● All adults are given this policy 
● All accidents are recorded securely, and details securely shared with Event Production 
● All workers know how to report problems and issues of inappropriate behaviour 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 128

mailto:info@lytproductions.co.uk


51 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● All play equipment is safe, properly maintained and conforms to all current legislation regarding safety. 
We closely supervise children using equipment at all times. All materials in use are clean, non-toxic 
and non-allergenic. We take care to check formerly junk items for sharp edges, staples, and cleanliness. 

● Any face-painting must conform to the following requirements: only faces or hands are to be painted; 
parental permission is always obtained; water-based, non-allergenic paints are used. We make available 
information about how to remove paints. 

● We ensure, for under-5s, qualified workers lead all activities, and there is access to a quiet rest area. All 
children of this age-range are registered upon arrival, and the entry point is supervised at all times. 
Children must never leave the event un-noticed. 

● Where mixed ages take part in activities, we take care with layout to ensure smaller children cannot be 
knocked over or hurt by older children. 

● We keep anything that may be a choking hazard away from younger children. 
● Our children’s area has an inclusive policy. We create or modify activities for children with varying 

needs (this is not always possible for every activity), and ensure full engagement where special needs 
are catered for. 

● Entrance and exits are always on the level. 
● Should an outbreak of easily transmitted illness affect the festival as a whole, we will assess the 

potential impact on the safe running of the children’s area. 
 

We enhance child-protection in the following ways: 

● Every child should be under the supervision of more than one worker at all times 
● No child under 8 can leave the play area without a parent or responsible adult 
● Workers are taught to recognise inappropriate touching or handling of children 
● We respectfully and confidentially listen, and take action, on whistleblowers’ reports 
● All workers are clearly told that corporal punishment is illegal. 
● We always discourage dangerous behaviour by children. 
● Supervisors are wary of intruders, and know who to contact immediately if suspicious about an 

individual. 
● No volunteer should care for an unwell child. 
● Photography must follow event policy. 

These rules apply to the Children’s Area: 

● Entry and exit at is supervised and controlled 
● The area is well defined and appropriately fenced 
● Specific signage of areas of potential danger is in place 
● Shade and shelter is provided within the children’s area 
● The site is close to an exit, in case of evacuation 
● Access to toilets and running water is close to the children’s area (see event maps) 
● Rubbish is regularly and safely disposed of, including used nappies 
● No slippery surfaces are contained within any structures 
● No smoking is allowed within the children's area 
● No adult hot drinks are in close proximity to young children 
● Furniture provided is always age-suitable 
● Food and drink provided is suitable for children 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 129



52 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Ride Equipment for Children 

We do not operate rides such as roundabouts, dodgems, etc. There are some swings, in which all equipment is 
accompanied by relevant, up-to-date statutory certificates for the equipment. We ensure age-appropriate 
participation. All equipment is supervised during opening times, and locked-off when unattended. 

Photography of Children 

Photography is an unavoidable part of modern festivals. Into The Wild employs professional photographers for 
the purpose of publicity. 

Of professionals, we ask that the interests of the children who may appear in any image take priority, and that 
images cannot be used to identify and trace children. We also ask that image galleries posted by photographers 
or ourselves cannot be easily downloaded, though this is in the gift of hosting sites if their own rules change. 

Of the public, we remind them of the rules regarding photography in a public place, especially regarding 
observation of activity for which a certain amount of privacy is expected e.g. expressions of stress, 
breastfeeding, etc.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 130



53 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX E — WELFARE 
POLICY 

Welfare includes: 

● Medical Cover 
● Stewarding 
● Formal Security 

Medical Cover 

Medical cover is provided by: 

Kent Event Medical Services 
24 Wainhouse Close, 
Edenbridge, Kent, TN8 6DR 
t: 07537 916468 / 01732 300394 

Staff and equipment are hired on a 24-hour basis for four days to cover from 5pm Thursday, then all Friday, 
Saturday, and Sunday, leaving 5pm Monday. 

Our detailed policy for medical cover is stated in Appendix E — Welfare Policy. This also contains contact 
information for local hospitals. 

The following staff will be in attendance: 

1 x Advanced Ambulance Care Assistant  
1 x Emergency Care Assitant 
1 x Paramedic 
1 x First Responder 
4 x Medics 

The following equipment will be on site: 

1 x Frontline Ambulance, fully stocked including medical gases 
 1 x Event Rapid Response Vehicle, fully stocked 
 1 x Medical Treatment Tent 
 1 x Communications Tent 

First aiders will be based by the Information Point in the centre of the main event fields. 

Outside the 4 x 24 hours of full medical cover, the Appointed Person in charge of medical assistance is Adrian 
Bristow with a two-way radio on a dedicated channel. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 131



54 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

A list of nearby hospitals and other facilities is kept permanently on display at the Production HQ, as well as 
posted at the fire points in the campgrounds. 

Our Medical Provider will supply a full Event Medical Plan, which will be reproduced here by 28 days before 
event start. Their plan will include: 

● Name and roles of the medical provider 
● Named manager - individual with responsibility for coordinating medical provision and normally 

available on-site during the event 
● Event location with sterile access and egress routes 
● Start and finish times of contracted cover 
● Intended receiving hospital(s) for casualties from the event, along with confirmation that they have 

been advised of the event. 
● Site plans showing sterile access routes (blue routes for emergency access) 
● Helicopter landing zone. 
● Queuing – welfare in adverse weather 
● Staff numbers and skill-mix 
● Medical vehicles provided/four-wheel drive capability 
● Arrangements for medical staff – camping, catering, showers, toilets, parking (all provided by Into The 

Wild on-site) 
● Insurance documentation, public & employers liability, medical indemnity, fleet insurance, as well as 

details of other medical defence documentation for specialised staff 
● Communications plan with command and control structure 
● Records policy & GDPR arrangements for information sharing 
● Safeguarding (adult & child) and Deprivation of Liberty policies 
● Infection Control policy 
● Contingency plans for large scale multiple casualty incidents 
● Contingency plans for known hazards 
● Escalation plans for critical incidents and MOU with local services 
● Resilience planning – threat to life or terrorist related incidents 
● Medical service infrastructure and support requirements 
● Map delineating the medical provider’s area of responsibility (agreed with NHS ambulance service) 

 
  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 132



55 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Local Hospitals 

All local health-care facilities appropriate to Into The Wild have been informed by Head of Health and Safety 
that the festival is taking place. 

Accident & Emergency (8.5 miles): 
Princess Royal Hospital 
Lewes Road 
Haywards Heath 
RH16 4EX 
01444 441881 

Accident & Emergency (12.5 miles): 
East Surrey Hospital 
Canada Avenue 
Reigate 
RH1 5RH 
01737 768511 

Minor Injuries Unit, 8am – 7.30pm (5.5 miles): 
Queen Victoria Hospital 
Holtye Road, 
East Grinstead 
RH19 3DZ 
01342 414000 

Major Trauma 

Royal Sussex County Hospital 
Eastern Road 
Brighton 
BN2 5BE 
01273 696955 

Walk-in NHS Treatment 

A walk-in centre at Crawley is aimed at patients who would, with similar concerns, see their GP. 

Urgent Treatment Centre 
Crawley Hospital 
West Green Drive 
Crawley 
West Sussex 
RH11 7DH 
01293 600300 ext 4141 or 4142 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 133



56 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Air Ambulance 

Several potential landing sites exist including the centre of the Healing Field, the contingency area north-west 
of the Production Office, and main thoroughfares of the Festival Field.  

Protection from the Sun 

Experience has shown the festival that the most requested medical-like supply request is for sun-screen. 
Therefore a substantial quantity of effective odour-free sun-screen (minimum SPF=30) will be kept in the 
following locations: 

● Information Tent 
● Event Production Office 
● First Aid location 
● Box Office 

Facilities for People with Access Requirements 

The Equalities Act 2010 sets out the legal framework that reflects the attitude of “Into The Wild” as we 
welcome people with access requirements. 

Guests who would otherwise be unable to attend without a Personal Assistant are entitled to free entry for that 
person. Although there are no strictly defined criteria for this, the following guidelines for eligibility apply: 

Receipt of a purchased ticket, and evidence of one of the following: 

● Front page of DLA / PIP (no specific rate) 
● Front page of Attendance Allowance letter (no specific rate) 
● Evidence you are registered severely sight impaired (blind) 
● Recognised Assistance Dog ID card 
● An “access card” from Credability 

Our eligibility requirements are negotiable. In practice no reasonable requests will be turned down. In 
compliance with the Equality Act 2010, admission at no charge for a Personal Assistant is permitted whatever 
type of ticket is purchased by the principal attendee. 

“Into The Wild” is held in a rural location in an open-air site in farmers’ fields and adjacent wild woodland. 
The ‘Wild’ nature of the site is a characteristic of the festival as a whole (as well as the principal element in its 
title). Therefore, we ask those who would wish to attend to consider beforehand what is meant by ‘Wild’ in the 
context of this festival.  

Several accessible toilets will hired from Compoost. These lavatories are larger than the other toilets, and are 
without steps. We equip such facilities with combination locks, whose code is readily available from security, 
stewards, the production office, and via the festival telephone number. These methods are prominently 
displayed on the door of the facility, and are intended for use by people who would normally use RADAR keys. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 134



57 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Dog Policy 

In general, no festival-goers are permitted to bring dogs to the event.  

Even when permission is granted for a dog to enter (e.g. by walkers briefly transiting the site), such dogs must 
be kept out of sight as far as is practical. It is not permissible to amble around the festival site with them, even 
on a lead. 

By personal application, exceptions may be made in the case of assistance dogs or guide dogs, who may be 
allowed to come to the festival and walk around site on a lead. 

Failure to comply with the rules regarding dogs will result in the owner being required to leave. 

Lost Property 

In the first place, all Lost Property must go to the Information Tent or, if that is unavailable, to the Production 
Office. A Log is kept. 

All Lost Property will be kept on-site during the festival, and reasonable endeavours will be taken to check the 
identity of anyone wishing to claim items of Lost Property as their own. 

After the festival, we will keep valuable items in escrow for thirty days. Into The Wild will determine if an item 
of Lost Property is valuable or not. As a guide, an obviously disposable item will probably not be valuable, but 
a gift of apparently personal importance, a camera or smartphone will be. Items will be returned in person or by 
post, depending on practicality. For each item returned by post we will charge a fee of £10 to cover the postage, 
using the remainder to make a contribution to a charity agreed upon by the event and safety management team. 

Items not recovered in this way at the end of thirty days may be used by the festival itself in its future, or 
offered to charity shops, or disposed of in another way. 

Terms and Conditions 

Terms and Conditions with respect to attendance at the festival are to be found on the Into the Wild website: 
https://www.intothewildgathering.com/faqs-cygy 

Steward and Security Responsibilities 

The stewarding team and security team are both vital parts of Into The Wild’s welfare responsibilities. The 
priority of both teams is the safety of festival guests and workers. Stewards also have personal responsibility 
for the conservation of the site where they operate. 

Stewards have broad attendee-facing responsibilities and have the Chief Steward as their Line Manager; 
Security staff are all SIA-trained, and have the Head of Security as their Line Manager. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 135



58 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Both teams will co-operate fully with instructions given by the Health and Safety Advisor. 

Steward and Security Organisation 

The steward and security teams will be comprised of the following. 

15 SIA licensed security staff including Chief Steward 
2  Steward Managers (full time) 
4  Steward Supervisors  
130 Volunteer Stewards 
6 Lost Kids Team 

Steward Numbers 

Pre-event, Weds 21 Aug – Thu 22 Aug, there will be 30 volunteer stewards, with 10 on duty at any time plus 
the Chief Steward, (Second-In-Command) Steward Manager, and one supervisors. 

For the event itself, Fri 23 Aug – Mon 26 Aug, a further 100 volunteer stewards will arrive Thursday evening. 
There will then be 35 stewards, 2 Steward Managers, and 4 Supervisors on duty at any time from 09:00 till 
23:00, except on Friday at peak arrival times when 40 stewards will be on duty at any one time. Fewer stewards 
will be required overnight. 

The Chief Steward has twelve years’ experience of managing stewards at similar events. 

Steward Operation 

For stewards working pre-event, there will be a general briefing on the morning of Weds 21 Aug followed in 
the afternoon by more specific training for their individual roles. For those working during the event, there will 
be a briefing in the evening of Thurs 22 Aug with further instruction/training at the start of their shifts on 
Friday morning. 

The Chief Steward will be available on the radio from 08:00 – 22:00 plus on call overnight from Weds 21 Aug 
to Mon 26 Aug. Decisions overnight can be delegated to the security team manager. 

A steward shift during the event will be six hours long, including an overlap with the following shift to allow 
plenty of time for pre/post-shift briefings and deployment. 

All stewards on duty will be identifiable by a hi-visibility yellow vest labelled STEWARD. In most cases, they 
will each have their own radio unless operating as part of a pair, requiring only one radio.  

Steward positions are: 

● Traffic management on entrance route 
● Car park 
● Live-in vehicle parking 
● Gate between parking and camping 
● Gate between camping and main event field 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 136



59 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● Main venue during evening performances 
● Response team available for any incidents 
● Operating patrols of main festival, campsite, healing area, woodland activities and parking areas in 

conjunction with SIA staff. 

Steward Briefing 

Details about the Stewards’ Briefing are given in Appendix G — Stewards’ Briefing. This appendix should be 
referred-to during festival operation, as it may be altered to accommodate operational contingencies. 

In addition to the Stewards’ Briefing, we ask our stewards and other staff engaged in welfare to read Appendix 
S — Welfare Guidelines. This appendix, which can be regarded as a stand-alone document, offers general 
education and advice for members of the Into The Wild team. 

Security 

Personnel 

Twenty SIA licensed security guards provide 24-hour cover throughout the event, from 08:00 Friday 23 Aug to 
20:00 Monday 26 Aug. The security team includes two supervisors — one daytime and one overnight, with all 
security staff working contiguous 12-hour shifts. 

SIA security staff will be supplied by Event Safety Alliance who have experience of providing festival security 
for many years. 

Contact: Gawain Boal, 07715630267 
gawainboal@eventsafetyalliance.co.uk  
Event Safety Alliance 
Kings Hill 
Cockmill Lane 
East Pennard 
Shepton Mallet 
BA4 6TR 

Security Objectives 

Security team objectives are as follows. 

● Professional behaviour towards all people on the festival site. 
● Guard against disorder and assault — respond to actions by festival goers that are antisocial, 

undesirable or likely to lead to harm to others. The nature of the event, audience profile and previous 
experience indicates a low risk of such incidents. However, security will be prepared to deal with any 
eventualities. 

● Prevent, detect and deter any crime on site. 
● Screen those entering for drugs, alcohol and antisocial behavior, acknowledging that it is impossible 

physically to examine every person, but necessarily choosing some at random. 
● Respond to any unauthorised entry, ejecting people if necessary, with aid of stewards. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 137

mailto:gawainboal@eventsafetyalliance.co.uk


60 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● Prevent theft, including from vehicles in the Car Park, from traders’ or performers’ facilities, or from 
tents overnight. 

● Enforce the festival's drug and alcohol policy. 
● Enforce the festival's policy on dogs. 
● Look out for, and report to stewards or management, general health and safety issues around site while 

patrolling, e.g. dangerous structures; unsafe or unattended fires; trip and slip hazards; and similar. (We 
acknowledge that Security staff are not Stewards or Build-Out Crew.) 

● Monitor for overcrowding in the main venue. 
● Carry out evictions in line with the event's eviction policy or when necessary detain people using legal 

methods until police arrive. 
● Guide persons in need of help with lost or found children to the appropriate areas (Children’s Area by 

day, Medical Staff by night): see Appendix D — Safeguarding Children 
● From time to time, assist stewards with tasks such as traffic management when necessary. 
● Enforce the noise curfew. 
● To help all site crew, stewards and security personnel be aware of the government’s latest guidance on 

increasing the protection of crowded places from a terrorist attack: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/crowded-places-guidance 

Festival Interaction with Security 

For all festival staff including management, crew, engineers and stewards, the point-of-contact is to be the 
acting head of security at the time. All requests for security involvement must go through this person, unless 
particular urgency or proximity require otherwise. 

Please note: security staff are not stewards, nor are they site crew, nor are they parking attendants. Security 
staff are like a farmer watching the animals in their fields; they may appear to be relaxed and not particularly 
active at a single observation, but their training qualifies them to observe in a professional manner, and the rest 
of the festival family is asked to respect this. 

APPENDIX F — 
CROWD MANAGEMENT 

Ticket Sales 

The event is entirely ticketed. Tickets will be available in advance from the event website:   

https://www.intothewildgathering.com/summer-festival-2019 

Tickets are strictly limited in number to the calculated capacity available. 

Some tickets may also be sold on the gate should there be any available. This is provisional for Sunday 25th 
August only.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 138

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/crowded-places-guidance
https://www.intothewildgathering.com/summer-festival-2019


61 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

We delegate ticket sales and database management, including live scanning and attendance calculation, to a 
local company that has a strong record in electronic systems for large festivals in the UK: “Live It” 
(https://liveit.io/participate/). 

Live It has a scanning system linked to a tried-and-tested on-line ticketing database, to reduce queues and 
provide accurate data on number of attendees and their designations (i.e. guests, youths, under 5s, artists, crew, 
caterers, carer comps, etc.).  

Admission Control 

Wristbands will be worn by every person who is authorised to be on site. They will be available from: 

● The Box Office 
● The Secondary Entrance 
● The Event Manager (Huw Williams) 
● The Production Office upon evidence of a request from the Event Manager 

Stewards and Security will be briefed to challenge, in a polite manner, any person seen on site without a 
wristband. 

A system of colours and printed titles is in use on wristbands, to indicate a wearer’s role, their status, and if 
special provision should be made for their particular requirements. 

The colour and title code will be available in due course. 

Cancellation of Event in Advance 

Should it be necessary to cancel the event in advance this will be communicated to ticket holders via their email 
addresses submitted when purchasing tickets online. Crew and performers will be notified by email. A 
prominent notice will be displayed on the website (http://www.intothewildgathering.com) and prominent 
signage will be displayed at the entrance to the site. 

Event Full (Sold Out) 

If tickets are sold out on or before Wednesday 21 August 2019 — it will be possible to determine this by 
monitoring online ticket sales as advance tickets are only available online and through no other outlets — then 
the Into the Wild website will be updated to inform people that the event is sold out, and that anyone arriving 
without a ticket will be unable to enter. Social media will be used to disseminate the message as well. Signs 
will be erected at the entrance to the site and the main road turn off stating that the event is sold out. Stewards 
will pay extra attention to monitoring for unauthorised entrance.  

Ingress and Egress Monitoring 

At peak ingress, there will also be an hourly monitored and recorded (written records will be kept on site at 
main production office) click-count at the main gate. This is in addition to the on-line database showing the 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 139

https://liveit.io/participate/


62 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

number of tickets scanned at arrival, and is a back-up. Our heads of production will be able to provide the most 
current figure at a moment’s notice. 

Contingency Planning 

Extensive use of Cloud computing, coupled with printed safety copies of data, helps continuity of safety, 
security and communication should any matter interrupt the normal running of Into The Wild.  

The festival regards it as important that matters such as guest and visitor lists, staff lists, special needs 
provisions, accounting information and emergency procedures can be preserved and accessed in the event of 
physical disruption to the festival site or the festival’s associated IT systems. 

Already, the following matters are in hand and active: 

● Data storage — extensive use is made of Cloud systems, mostly through the festival’s main Google 
account info@in2wild.com. This means that data retention is entirely separate from any physical 
equipment or storage, whether on-site or off-site. Google’s 

● Protection against erasure — changes to data in the GApps suite can be undone through the web 
interfaces. 

APPENDIX G —  
STEWARDS’ BRIEFING 

General Instructions 

All stewards must attend a general briefing before working any shifts. This includes the following. 

1. Introduction to event. Including site layout and management contacts. 
See Appendix B — Mapping, and the front of the Event Safety and Management Plan 

2. Role of Health and Safety Officer—instructions to contact if concerns spotted. 
3. The Emergency Response Plan, Appendix J. 
4. Personal Safety. Including steward and security roles, basic H&S on site, working with vehicle traffic, 

reporting issues to management. 
5. Steward Behaviour. Teamwork, being visible, appropriate clothing and footwear, not leaving position, 

familiarity with surroundings, personal care while on duty, location of fire points and nearest radio. 
6. Lost Kids’ Protocol and general safeguarding of young or vulnerable people (see Appendix D — 

Safeguarding Children) 
7. Keep accesses and gangways clear at all times. 
8. Ingress and egress monitoring of numbers, and the need to communicate this hourly to the Production 

Office staff (it is safety requirement). 
9. First aid location and how to contact them. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 140



63 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

10. Fire Safety. Reporting fire hazards, campfire policy, what to do in event of fire, fire lanes and access 
lanes 

11. Drug and Alcohol Policy. 
12. Dogs Policy. 
13. Radio protocols. 
14. Teams and shift patterns. 
15. Maintenance of station. 

Conflict Management 

Stewards are likely to be the first point-of-contact if a conflict is escalating anywhere at Into The Wild. These 
points are offered for consideration. 

Into The Wild has important terms and conditions which all festival-goers have had the opportunity to read. 
They are on the festival website, for example. Applying these terms and conditions with the greatest of tact, 
diplomacy and patience while listening to all concerned parties can often resolve a conflict. 

But the event is in a sufficiently small site for a disharmonious person to cause considerable discomfort to 
other, peaceful, festival guests. If an argument is becoming more heated than calm stewardship can resolve, it is 
appropriate to call for security help. All SIA-registered staff are trained in the techniques of, for example, door 
supervision.  

● Try to deal politely but firmly with people who become aggressive, or harass you. Get back-up from 
(and give support to) colleagues in such situations. 

● Do not get involved in physical contact with someone whose behaviour is dangerous. 
● Call for help if there is any doubt about the outcome of what you are observing. 
● If someone behaves threateningly in an enclosed area, try to evacuate the area with the help of 

colleagues, observing the menace from a distance. Follow them, if directed by the welfare manager, 
and discreetly alert people in the vicinity. 

At this point, all staff can invoke the Crime and Disorder Prevention Policy, as in Appendix M. 
  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 141



64 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX H —  
LICENSING OBJECTIVES 

Activities and Timings 

Into The Wild has applied for a Premises Licence for the area outlined in the map at Appendix B, including the 
following timings: 

1. The exhibition of a film:  
23/08/2019 – 25/08/2019, 2000hrs to 2200hrs 

2. A performance of live music:  
23/08/2019 – 25/08/2019, 1300hrs to 2359hrs 

3. A performance of dance:  
24/08/2019 – 25/08/2019, 1800hrs to 2200hrs 

4. Late night refreshment:  
23/08/2019 – 25/08/2019, 1800hrs to 2359hrs 

5. The performance of a play:  
23/08/2019 – 25/08/2019, 1300hrs to 2200hrs 

6. Any playing of recorded music:  
23/08/2019 – 25/08/2019, 1000hrs to 2200hrs 

The Licensing Objectives 
Into The Wild aims to provide a world-class well-being and arts festival of benefit to many people, while 
minimising disturbance or disruption. 

The Event Management Plan shall form part of the Premises Licence, and the event will be run in strict 
accordance with the plan. No changes will be made to it without prior written consent of the Licensing 
Authority. 

We undertake to provide a safe, enjoyable event that is planned and managed to a high standard. We will listen 
and respond to the needs of local communities, and work in partnership with public authorities to agree 
priorities and set standards. 

We uphold four Licensing Objectives: 

1. The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
2. The Protection of Children from Harm 
3. Public Safety 
4. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 142



65 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Prevention of Public Nuisance 

The site is situated well away from centres of population, and the nearest home is some 0.7km away from the 
musical area of the main festival field. We have undertaken elsewhere in this document to adjust music levels 
to acceptable levels in line with modern standards as practiced elsewhere, and to continue to monitor levels 
during performances. We do not believe crowd noise will be a problem. 

Into The Wild’s policy is always to contact all local residents in writing to inform them of Into The Wild’s 
plans, and to consult nearby householders and residents for comments. This may be delegated through the 
Landowner, Edmund Limerick, in light of the co-operative relationship he already has with many neighbours. 

A well-rehearsed system of traffic management is in place, policed by two experienced groups of people: 
Security from 10pm to 8am, and Stewards from 8am to 10pm, each day. This permits the following: 

● A system of one-way traffic along the festival’s main approach road; 
● Relief of any congestion which may be risked along the public road; 
● Rapid access or egress for any emergency services. 

We have found that an early and co-operative approach to all who live and work nearby considerably limits the 
perception of public nuisance. Heavily discounted tickets are offered without question for residents.  

Protection of Children from Harm 

Alcohol and drugs are not permitted; any evidence of them will prompt security to take action against the 
holder or user. 

No artistic material for performance will be of a type that is restricted from general public performance. Event 
Manager Huw Williams polices this matter. Also, any reports of materials exhibited as art or for sale when 
unsuitable for a general family audience will be acted upon. 

The festival’s clothing and language policy is “if you wouldn’t expect to see or hear it in a pub garden, please 
don’t do it here”. 

Children’s hearing should not be at risk at any point, because levels of musical and other performances are in 
keeping with performances involving acoustic instruments. We do not programme loud acts. However, staff 
and stewards are briefed to note if children are standing, or being carried, close to loudspeakers, and will ask 
those responsible to move away.  

Public Safety 

Into The Wild develops its Event Safety and Management Plan in conjunction with Mid Sussex District 
Council’s Safety Advisory Group, along with its own staff’s training in best practice. A full risk assessment has 
been carried out, and further risk assessments will be developed. They are included as a supplement to this 
document. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 143



66 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

This important part of the Licensing Objectives is discussed fully in Appendix M — Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder. 

No Alcohol 
Into The Wild does not seek a licence to serve alcohol. 

There is to be no alcohol on site, neither brought-in nor for sale. 

It is a licensing requirement that there are no persons selling or consuming alcohol on site throughout the entire 
festival, including set-up and take-down. 

This is a key selling point of the festival, so the policy will be strictly enforced by stewards and security. 

For details of how this is to be achieved, please see separate “Drug and Alcohol Policy”.  

Although the landowner, Edmund Perry, operates a micro-brewery at his premises outside the border of the 
Licensable Area for Into The Wild, we have secured his agreement that all sales of beverages are to be 
suspended between Thursday August 22nd and Monday August 26th. 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 144



67 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX I — 
RISK ASSESSMENT 

Interpretation 

Throughout these tables, we adopt the following values for variables: 

Potential harm: 
1. Negligible (no, or less than minor illness or injury, will result if risk is uncontrolled) 
2. Marginal (minor injury or illness, is risk not controlled) 
3. Critical (named risk, if not mitigated, commonly causes severe injury or illness) 
4. Catastrophic (risk, if not properly eliminated, commonly causes death) 

Probability: 
1. Improbable (so unlikely that occurrence may not be experienced at all) 
2. Remote (unlikely, but possible across the full duration of Into The Wild including set-up and take-

down) 
3. Occasional (likely to occur at some point during the festival) 
4. Probable (likely to occur several times during the festival) 
5. Frequent (likely to occur often during the festival) 

General Risks 
Hazard Who Affected and How Probability Potential 

Harm 
Existing Controls Additional Action 

Manual Handling Workers may get musculoskeletal 
problems, eg back pain from 
handling heavy and/or awkward 
objects. 

5 3 All work involving manual handling assessed on 
an individual task basis. 
Reputable contractors used for erecting main 
marquee and for other specialist tasks to ensure 
safe systems of work. 
Only trained staff involved in manual handling. 
Aids to manual handling (wheelbarrows / trolleys) 
available for staff. 

Ensure new 
volunteers are 
trained in manual 
handling 
techniques. 

General work risks 
during set up & take 
down 

Workers at risk, possibly fatal, 
due to nature of putting up tents 
and similar structures in a field. 

5 4 All staff competent in work undertaken. 
Appropriate PPE worn. 
Tools maintained in good order. 

Ensure all new staff 
adequately trained 
and supervised. 

Working at height Workers and others risk serious, 
possibly fatal, injuries if they fall 
or items are dropped from height. 

4 4 Appropriate exclusion zone, created around work 
area. 
Stages and marquees to be erected by a competent 
person/contractor. 
All work at height assessed on an individual task 
basis. 
If necessary, work platforms in good condition 
and suitable for job in hand to be provided and 
workers are trained in safe usage. 

Ensure all new staff 
are adequately 
supervised and are 
aware of working at 
height procedures. 

Workplace transport Crew and public risk serious, 
possibly fatal, injuries if struck by 
a vehicle. 
 
Potential for vehicles to create 

2 4 
 

Only properly licensed drivers to drive vehicles 
on site. 
All vehicles properly maintained and fit for 
purpose 
5mph speed limit in the event fields including 

Monitor field 
entrances for 
muddy conditions 
Stewards 
implement traffic 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 145



68 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

excessively muddy / slippery 
areas if weather is wet 

during set-up & take down 
Stewards control traffic flows & access track 
through camping area and into main event area. 
High visibility vests available and to be worn 
whenever this would be helpful. 

management 
procedures as 
necessary, 
including possible 
temporary 
suspension of 
movement 
Promote a culture 
of behavioural 
safety around speed 
limits 
 

Pedestrian/Guest 
Vehicle conflict 

Crew and public at risk of 
serious, possibly fatal, injuries if 
struck by a vehicle on site or on 
the road in. 

2 4 Car parking and live-in vehicle areas stewarded, 
including with experienced supervisors. 
Gate from parking to campsite stewarded, 
preventing unauthorised vchicle access and 
stopping flow of pedestrian traffic whenever 
vehicle traffic needs to pass through. 
Entrance to event designed to prevent queueing 
on highway 
5mph speed limit during event 
Off-road vehicle movements in event arenas 
marshalled by a steward 

Stewards 
implement traffic 
management 
procedures as 
necessary 

Slips, Trips and Falls Crew and public risk serious 
injury if they slip or trip, even on 
the level 

4 3 Any floors in marquees and other structures to be 
laid by a competent person. 
Marquee pegs protected 
Potentially hazardous areas fenced off 

Good housekeeping 
– site crew 
encouraged to ‘see 
it and sort it’ 

Tiredness of crew Some crew may wish to work 
longer hours than required, or 
partake in lengthy off-duty 
activity e.g. conversations, 
attending music or workshops, 
walks, etc., therefore affecting 
concentration on-duty 

4 4 Welfare information given beforehand, crew 
observed by team leaders and management during 
set-up, festival and take-down, and stood down 
from duty if fatigue detected or reasonably 
expected. 

Attend therapy area  

Contagious disease Members of the public and crew 
may, unaware, arrive on site 
while becoming unwell 

3 2 Reporting of illness to medics will bring advice to 
“go home” and keep away from the public. 
Records, as always, are kept. 

Develop a culture 
of mutual care 
among all staff. 

Collapse of Structures Crew and public at risk of 
serious, possibly fatal injury if 
fixed structures collapse. 

2 4 Stages and marquees erected by a competent 
person/contractor 
Structures inspected and signed off before start of 
event 

Structures 
monitored to ensure 
stability, especially 
during adverse 
weather conditions 

Fire Safety Crew and public at risk from 
serious, possibly fatal injuries 
from smoke inhalation or burns 

2 4 Following Fire Risk Assessments and appropriate 
action taken 

Stewards monitor 
fire lanes, fire point 
condition & look 
out for other fire 
hazards 

Electrical Danger Crew and public may suffer 
serious and possibly fatal electric 
shock/burns injuries from faulty 
electrical equipment or 
installation. 

2 4 All electrical systems are constructed and 
maintained in a condition suitable for use in the 
open air and protected 
Generator in area away from from public access 
All electrical installations, including any 12v and 
solar systems, are checked and signed off by our 
competent outdoor electrician 

Contractors, 
performers and 
concessions 
reminded that all 
equipment used 
must be fit for 
purpose and PAT 
tested if necessary 
Site H&S team to 
monitor and ensure 
compliance 

Gas Safety Crew and public risk potentially 
fatal injury from fire and 
explosion if gas appliances not 
properly maintained and used. 

1 4 All LPG equipment must have a current test 
certificate 
LPG storage to be in accordance with HSE 
guidelines 

Site H & S team to 
monitor and ensure 
compliance 

Declining water quality 
due to bacteriological 

Crew and public at risk from: 
Bacteria increase 

2 4 Flushing 
Bacteriological sampling 

Water contractor to 
be advised of this 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 146



69 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

contamination Standing water 
Dead legs 
Non-preparation of equipment 
 

Monitoring (residual chlorine levels, 
temperatures) 
Audit 
Installer competency 
Contingency plan, e.g. based on coliform levels, 
E coli, etc 

item, and to supply 
additional checks 
the festival staff can 
make. 

Declining water quality 
due to chemical 
contamination 

Crew and public at risk from: 
non-compliance of materials 
Taste and odour 
Diesel spillages 

1 4 Tamper tagging of equipment 
Security fencing around vessels 
Flushing of pipelines 
Installer/supplier competency (WRAS-approved 
equipment) 
Monitoring (pH, conductivity) 
Correct siting of tanks/pipework 

Water contractor to 
be advised of this 
item, and to supply 
additional checks 
the festival staff can 
make. 

Inadequate water 
supply/lack of power 
for plumbing 
 

Crew and public at risk from: 
running out of water 
Problems retaining water pressure 
Poor-quality water source 

2 3 Accurate and achievable plumbing design 
Power back-up 
Storage and pump 
Planning and assessment 
Contingency planning 

Water contractor to 
be advised of this 
item, and to supply 
additional checks 
the festival staff can 
make. 

Declining water quality 
due to temperature 
increases (above 20oC 
on cold-water systems) 

Crew and public at risk from: 
legionella 
Bacteria growth 
Bio film development 
Dead legs 
Taste and odour issues 
 

1 4 Flushing pipelines to reduce temperature 
Monitoring temperature to ensure its below 20oC 
Position pipelines and storage vessels in the shade 
Storage vessel insulation 

Water contractor to 
be advised of this 
item, and to supply 
additional checks 
the festival staff can 
make. 

Food poisoning Crew and public risk ill health if 
they eat food prepared in 
unhygienic conditions. 

2 4 All caterers provide evidence of local authority 
registration, Insurance documents, details of food 
safety management system, and evidence of 
competence before being formally invited to the 
event. 
Catering outlets inspected by site H&S team 
before being allowed to trade, and throughout the 
event. 

Work with 
responsible 
authorities to 
ensure compliance 
with required 
legislation 

Disasters & 
emergencies 

Crew and public at risk of serious 
injury if not properly managed 
during urgent situations. 

1 3 All key staff and contractors should be aware of 
emergency procedures 
Adequate number of stewards, properly trained 
and supervised, to manage public effectively 
during emergency 

Ensure key staff 
aware of 
emergency plans 

Medical Emergency Workers and others could become 
seriously ill if no emergency first 
aid available. 

2 4 First aid staff will be on duty in accordance with 
the requirements for the event. 
Key staff and Info Tent staff have details of local 
hospitals. 

All personnel aware 
of medics’ location. 
Amply signposted 
on-site 

Adverse weather Crew and public at risk of 
potentially fatal injury during 
adverse weather conditions 
including wind, cold, storms, 
mud, sun, dryness or heat. 

2 4 Relevant staff aware of contingency plans 
Increase frequency of structural checks during 
strong winds / heavy rain 
Prepare to dismantle structures if they are likely 
to become unsafe 
Additional stewarding of high footfall areas if 
conditions are muddy. 
Note safe wind speeds for all structures. 

Check long-range 
weather forecast 
before event, be 
prepared for what is 
to come 
Check weather 
forecast several 
times daily 
Maintain safety of 
all structures 

Lost Children Children and parents can become 
separated 

4 2 Lost Kids’ area staffed with appropriate people, 
properly briefed to look after children that are 
found. 24-hour cover organised with Lost Kids’ 
area and qualified medics.  
Key staff and stewards aware of lost child policy 

Ensure that staff are 
being made aware 
of policy 
Ensure Lost Kids 
Tent's role is 
known to festival 
goers. 

Violence / aggression Physical and mental harm from 
behaviour of non-compliant 
persons on-site 

1 3 Given the audience profile of Into The Wild, this 
is very unlikely. We take into account references 
and reputation of crew before hiring; and the 24-
hour SIA-certified security staff know how to 

Deal calmly with 
all members of the 
public and crew at 
all times. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 147



70 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

mitigate situations. Likewise, all welfare and 
medical staff are trained to defuse troublesome 
situations. We will not hesitate to report problems 
to Sussex Police where required. 

Woodland boggy areas 
adjacent to site 

Crew and public risk injury from 
getting stuck in boggy land 

2 2 Monitor condition of surrounding areas. Cordon off any 
areas that become 
overly water logged 
in event of very wet 
weather. 

Extended pond between 
camping and main 
event area 

Members of the public especially 
children and teenagers attempting 
to enter the water, or falling. 

2 4 Area to be overseen during the day by staff 
running activities. 
Area fenced off so not easily accessible from 
adjoining areas, especially by young 
children. 

Security staff to be 
stationed there 
overnight. 

Hearing Damage Staff and Public may suffer 
permanent or temporary hearing 
damage from long term exposure 
to loud music. 

3 3 Ensure noise levels are kept at reasonable level in 
main marquee during music performances. 
Staff in music venues warned of risks and to 
monitor situation. Public kept more than 4m away 
from loudspeakers. 

Not considered 
high risk at this 
event, but monitor 
and record sound 
levels in main 
marquee as 
necessary 

Noise nuisance Neighbours may be disturbed by 
excessive noise from festival area 

3 1 Keep noisy activities in areas where sound is less 
likely to travel 
Ensure performers and sound engineer staff 
adhere to agreed noise curfew times. 
Recognise noise nuisance link to quality of life, 
and mitigate difficulty with kindness to residents. 

Stewards and 
security to enforce 
noise restrictions, 
including no private 
sound systems  

Event Director 
Unavailable 

Key decisions may be delayed by 
illness or other kinds of 
unavailability 

1 2 A detailed flow-chart of responsibility exists, and 
sufficient access to funds is available from core 
crew to permit emergency ex-budget spending 

Director’s radio is 
checked each time 
he enters 
Production Office, 
and he is asked to 
maintain 24-hour 
phone and radio 
operation. 

Fire Risk Assessments 

 

Hazard Who Affected 
and How 

Probability Potential 
Harm 

Existing Controls Additional Action 

Cooking Fires, 
explosions, 
burns and 
projectile 
hazards 

3 5 Caterers to have carried out a fire risk 
assessment of their activities. 
All catering kitchens/mobile caterers to be 
fitted with appropriate fire fighting 
equipment, including fire extinguishers and 
fire blankets. 
Where deep fat frying is carried out Class F 
wet chemical extinguisher should also be 
provided. 
Kitchen structures should be arranged such 
that there is an adequate fire break between 
them. 
Accumulations of rubbish and packaging to 
be removed from the rear of kitchens on a 
regular basis. 
Means of escape must be kept clear from 
catering kitchens/mobile caterers. 
Petrol generators should not be permitted and 
ideally power should be site supplied. 

Health & Safety Officer to carry out 
regular inspections. 

Fire Fighting Delayed 
attendance of 

2 4 Arrivals processed efficiently to prevent 
build up of any significant queues on entry 

Chief Steward to manage traffic 
accordingly. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 148



71 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

emergency 
services due to 
traffic hold ups 
or congestion 

road. 
Stewards trained and supervised adequately 
for rapid clearance of traffic from routes at 
any times necessary. 
Overhead obstructions must be removed, 
with minimum height clearance of 4.5m. 
Fire lanes of minimum width 4m throughout 
event field, campsite, car park and live-in 
vehicle areas. 

Patrolling stewards to ensure fire lanes 
remain unobstructed. 

Fire Extinguishers Spread of fire 
due to delay in 
or inability to 
extinguish 
small fires. 

3 4 Fire extinguishers to be provided in 
accordance with the Event Management 
Plan. 
Fire points to be placed in camping areas in 
accordance with the Event Management 
Plan. 

Health & Safety Office to regularly 
check fire extinguishers and fire 
points. 

Arson  2 4 Keep combustibles to minimum. No storage 
of combustible or explosive material 
permitted in tent. 
Provide suitable and sufficient fire 
extinguishers and at exit, stewards to be 
aware of location of extinguishers. 
Fabric of tent, drapes, linings and any floor 
covering to be flame retardant to BS5348 
Test 2, BS7157 Annex A, BS7837, BS5287 
Table 1 or BS5867 Part2 Type B as 
appropriate. Certificates to be available for 
inspection. Materials that have been 
chemically treated to achieve their fire 
retardancy may require recertification– 
Health & Safety Officer to check for 
certification. 

 

APPENDIX J —  

EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 

Overview 

This Emergency Response Plan is intended to guide the response to emergency situations should they arise 
during Into The Wild. This document contains the arrangements for command and control, and also the 
evacuation procedures. 

Specific incidents are included in this plan. Other incidents not included may make use of many of the same 
procedures detailed below. It is not possible to list a fully-detailed response for unforseeable incidents, but in 
all cases, members of the Emergency Liaison Team listed below will take first responsibility until any 
necessary external supervision from blue-light services takes command. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 149



72 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Emergency Liaison Team 

● Health and Safety Officer, Adrian Bristow 
● Event Producer, Lisa Scott Gordon 
● Festival Director, Huw Williams 
● Security Manager, Gawain Boal 
● Medical Provision Manager, Karl Capon 
● Welfare/Information Manager, Fiona Morley 
● Head of Vehicle Management, Maurice Lowes 

Stewards and Security will have primary responsibility for preserving the safety of people on site. Site Crew 
will be responsible for structural and site infrastructure issues. 

Overnight Crewing 

Staffing levels at night are lower than in the day. Overnight, the medical team will be responsible for initial 
response to medical emergencies and the overnight security supervisor will be responsible for initial response 
to all other emergencies. Should a situation arise which requires action from other festival managers, then the 
security team will have clear means of contacting them and bringing them on duty. 

Communicating An Incident 

If an incident requires support beyond that immediately available from Into The Wild’s delegated teams, the 
person aware of the incident, in any department, should first inform their Line Manager via radio or face-to-
face, who will go on to inform Event Production via radio. If the Line Manager is unavailable, do not waste 
time finding him or her: contact Event Production on its dedicated channel, or by phone, or face-to-face, 
immediately. 

Event Production will immediately inform Head of Health and Safety, and log the incident. Head of Health and 
Safety will manage the incident, supported by the radio links and other facilities of Event Production. 

Location of Incident 

Using the Gridded Plan (see Appendix B), information about the incident’s location can be conveyed. 

Incident Classification 

Into The Wild operates under one of four levels of alertness. 

Code Green: 

All is progressing normally 

Code Amber: 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 150



73 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

The Head of Health and Safety may initiate Code Amber if initial reports indicate an incident or situation may 
exist within the festival area that could require the activation of any emergency plan. Examples include 
overcrowding in any particular area, a received threat, extreme weather conditions, or an external event such as 
airborne or waterborne noxious or toxic substances, that may impact on the safety within the festival ground. 

We alert the stage area that a Show Stop may be called. 

Radio silence must be kept except for emergency communication. Normal communications resumes when no 
security code applies. Only the Head of Health and Safety or his/her deputy can clear any security state. 

Security must prevent additional persons entering the area of concern, or the whole festival site if necessary. 
Emergency services may still enter and exit. 

Code Red: 

The Head of Health and Safety may issue Code Red if reports leading to Code Amber are confirmed as valid, 
and could require a movement of the public to a place of safety, or the attendance of emergency services. 

Code Red can also be issued on the advice of emergency services or a correctly authorized officer of the 
District Council or the County Council. 

Code Red is also permitted if a threat is verified. 

We will call a Show Stop through the main stage’s PA system; using loudhailers (in the Production Office); 
using the PA in the Into The Wild Cafe, and by loud calling by stewards and security. 

The Code Red warning will be issued to stewards and security with the location of the difficulty.  

The location of the difficulty must be secured in order to prevent any tampering with evidence, should any 
exist.  

Non-traffic stewards will make their way to the site of the difficulty to assist in the evacuation of people, with 
special attention given to those with mobility issues. Security will secure the access way to the site to maintain 
a clear access for emergency vehicles, manning points at the main entrance, the bottom of the car park, and the 
control points at the exit from car park to first camping field. Cars and vehicles will be temporarily prevented 
by security from leaving to keep the access ways clear. Non traffic stewards will assist security in moving 
people away from the site of the problem, and keep access routes clear.  

Code Black: 

Head of Health and Safety may issue Code Black if it is necessary, or requested, that the full site be evacuated, 
or emergency services request or require to take charge of the entire festival site. 

The production office will become incident control. If the problem requires evacuation of the entire site, the 
method will be decided in conference between the emergency services, Head of Health and Safety, Head of 
Security and Head Steward via a separate radio channel. If the problem is extremely urgent and there is a threat 
to safety, and the other management personnel cannot be reached, the decision can be made by the emergency 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 151



74 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

services or the Head of Health and Safety alone, or failing that, head of security and/or head steward. Once 
decided, a Code Black message will be issued to all stewards and security that we need to evacuate the site.  

Emergency Full Evacuation Procedure 

All stewards and security on duty plus all off-duty members of steward, security, H&S and site crew teams that 
can be called on duty, are to sweep the site, informing all festival- goers: 

“We must evacuate the site immediately. Please head calmly towards the Rendezvous Point and follow the 
directions of stewards there.” 

All rendezvous points are signposted. 

Any disabled person who has become separated from their carer must be given the utmost assistance by 
members of the festival team. 

Staff in the children’s area will shepherd and safeguard the children in their care, unless parents or carers return 
at the start of evacuation to claim their children. 

Unless festival guests are specifically returning to their vehicles for the purpose of avoiding an electrical storm, 
the site will be divided into four parts for the evacuation to a safe place. Signs, already made, will indicate each 
rendezvous point. These are also printed on maps in all festival programmes. 

Calculations show the event needs a total evacuation width of 6.23m to permit escape time to be ten minutes. 
All on-site inspections show that each area alone exceeds the exit width required to achieve this. 

Security will staff the following Rendezvous points: 

Rendezvous point A/North East    (See Map) TQ 3561 3279 

The live-in camping area, the main car-park and the holding area will evacuate to the field east of the 
East Entrance at the northern end of the Main Car Park. 

Rendezvous point B/North West  (See Map) TQ 3505 3292 

The festival field, crew/staff camping, the overflow camping area and the production area will evacuate 
to the field south of the West Entrance. 

Rendezvous point C/South  (See Map) TQ 3521 3235 

The family camping area, the healing area, the healing camping area and the spectators at the Main 
Stage will evacuate here, to the unused field south of the family area and east of the healing area. 

Rendezvous point D/West  (See Map) TQ 3482 3266 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 152



75 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

The participants of woodland activity will evacuate here. It is hidden from the main festival site, but 
allows easy access by footpath to Rendezvous Point C/South. 

This will mean that a maximum of 1,500 people will be in any one place, and all on or near public rights of way 
(Points A and B: the access road; Points C and D, the footpath leading out, south to another roadway.) Should 
any access point be unavailable or inaccessible, there is sufficient capacity at other access points to 
accommodate festival attendees. 

Security will man the main points above to keep emergency access routes clear, and prevent any vehicle 
movements other than site vehicles and emergency vehicles. All stewards will assist in the evacuation — 
keeping people calm, and encouraging them to keep moving towards the evacuation rendezvous points.  

The situation will then be assessed and appropriate plans made in conference by the Head of Health and Safety, 
the Chief Steward and Head of Security who will meet at the incident control point. The Chief Steward and 
Head of Security will ensure stewards and security are deployed accordingly. If and when it is deemed safe to 
do so, stewards will direct people to return to the site. 

Other Evacuation Procedures 

Evacuation of a Structure 

Should there be for instance a fire, a partial collapse or should a structure become unstable because of high 
winds or other external forces, then an announcement similar to the following should be made (using the PA 
system if in the main marquee): 

“Your attention please. Your attention please. Please listen carefully. Please listen carefully. We must evacuate 
this tent because of [brief description of reason]. We are evacuating this tent now. Please stay calm, and leave 
immediately by walking to the nearest exit and follow the directions of the stewards.” 

Stewards are to assist, encouraging people to leave, but without putting themselves at risk. Once evacuated the 
vicinity should be kept clear of people. Emergency services may be called if necessary. 

Non-Urgent Evacuation of the Whole Site 

If a decision is made to close the event for any reason, then all attending the event will be informed, including 
being given explanation of the reason why, by means of: 

1. Available PA systems 

2. Stewards and security, plus other crew as available, sweeping the site. 

3. Notices posted at the Info Point, venues and workshop spaces. 

Public spaces will be closed. Stewards are to continue to patrol, to ask people to leave, and assist people 
without compromising other stewarding duties, i.e. all fixed positions will still be manned especially traffic 
positions. Assistance will be provided to those with mobility difficulties. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 153



76 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Off duty security will be woken and called on duty if necessary. 

If people ask for money back then the Event Manager will make a general decision which can then be 
communicated to all who ask. In any case, full refunds are unlikely to be available till after the event. 

Informing People with Hearing Impairment 

Evacuation of any area, or of the festival as a whole, requires the utmost clarity in communication from festival 
staff to guests.  

All staff must take care to ensure guests who have particular requirements in communication (e.g. people with 
hearing impairment) are reached by our messages. 

Staff must look out for people who seem not to be taking notice of information, and consider alternative means 
of telling them to evacuate. 

Face the person concerned and use the word “evacuate” clearly, making sure the person can see your face. 
There’s no need to speak slowly. Use the BSL sign for “evacuate”, which can be taught to you by any of the 
Event Production team. 

Calling Emergency Services 

Decisions on calling emergency services to the event will be the responsibility of the Event Manager, Chief 
Steward, medical team or the overnight security team, whichever is first aware of an incident that might require 
the emergency services. 

We acknowledge members of the public, who are our guests, may at any time of their own free will call the 
emergency services, and we will always assist and counsel guests who do so. However, we will offer them the 
event’s own medical and other support services where appropriate. 

Whoever calls emergency services should ensure the stewards are informed which service has been called, the 
location on site where they are required and some details of the emergency.  

When contacting emergency services, we will remember the METHANE mnemonic for passing information: 

● M: Major incident? 
● E: Exact location 
● T: Type of incident 
● H: Hazards present or suspected 
● A: Access routes that are safe to use 
● N: Number, type and severity of casualties 
● E: Emergency services already present, and those required. 

At any arrival of identified emergency services, the security and stewarding staff must facilitate their rapid 
entry to site and direction to the correct area. It may also be useful for stewards to attend, for instance to cordon 
off an area, depending on the nature of the emergency. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 154



77 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Emergency vehicles may enter and exit the site via Chiddinglye Farm if it would be useful to avoid queues on 
the main route in.  

We operate a “Gold — Silver — Bronze” model of control for major incidents. Although our own Health and 
Safety Officer takes Gold Control immediately on site in an emergency, we understand that, upon arrival or 
when in contact, emergency services will appoint a senior staff member from their teams to take Gold Control 
for Into The Wild. They then take direct charge, and we will afford them facilities, space and communications 
to do so as detailed below. 

Event Manager and Incident Room 

Where significant coordination between festival areas is required to respond to emergency incidents, the Health 
and Safety Officer will be in charge, based at the Production Office. 

At this point, the Production Office becomes a formal Incident Room. Access must be restricted to personnel 
with responsibility for festival and/or emergency management only. The Incident Room will monitor radio 
channels for security, stewards, site crew, health & safety, and medics (see list). Stewards will be posted at the 
incident room to act as runners, and to defer personal callers, if necessary. 

The Health and Safety Officer is the point of contact for all information between involved parties, ensuring that 
people know what is expected of them, and that personnel are deployed appropriately to manage public safety. 
He ensures that the emergency services are adequately briefed in the event of a major incident. It is the duty of 
other festival staff to inform the Health and Safety Officer of anything relevant they know or discover. 

Liaison with Emergency Services 

Sussex Police 

If Into The Wild’s resources cannot cope with a situation that has developed, we will consult with Sussex Police 
using the telephone contact number we have for the Control Room (if no other liaison number is given), and the 
event will be handed over to their control. An “Assumption Of Control” document will be signed. All festival 
resources will be at the police’s disposal. The number is 01273 470101 ext. 543005 

West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service 

In the event of a fire, or need for rescue, the site may be handed over to West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service. 
An “Assumption of Control” document will be signed, and all festival resources given to the disposal of the 
Fire and Rescue Service.  

The NHS 

Our qualified on-site medical personnel are limited in number, and in the equipment they carry. We should alert 
the statutory service if the following are happening, or look likely: 

● need for initial treatment, or rescue, or transport of more casualties than our on-site medical service can 
safely deal with 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 155



78 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● the involvement either directly or indirectly of large numbers of people 

Mid Sussex District Council 

The Local Authority must be contacted for emergency support if we face the threat of large numbers of people 
unable to leave the site but also unable to access accommodation, or supplies, or other necessities. Into The 
Wild will use the contact telephone number provided through our contacts at Mid Sussex District Council. 

Post Incident Medical Debriefing 

After any major incident, we will arrange a medical debriefing with the on-site provider, covering the 
following: 

● staff safety 
● staff welfare and support 
● hot debriefing 
● event documentation 
● equipment restock plan 
● exchanging contact details with NHS operational lead 

Fires 

The principal priorities to be followed by an individual on discovery of any fire are: 
 

1. Call for help and notify Head of Health and Safety. If no reply, notify Security. 
2. If safe and practical, isolate any LPG supply and/or equipment. 
3. Evacuate all people from the affected area. Check especially for people with limited mobility. 
4. Attempt to extinguish the fire if there seems a reasonable chance of this without putting those 

doing so at risk. 
5. If the fire cannot be extinguished, report this immediately. 
6. Clear the vicinity as thoroughly as practicable of any neighbouring combustible objects. 
7. Call medical assistance if needed. 
8. Stewards to cordon off the area as needed. 

On hearing the initial report, the Head of Health and Safety or other appropriate personnel will decide whether 
to make an emergency call to the public services. In doing so, they will use the METHANE protocol, and 
identify themselves as Gold Command until otherwise instructed.  

If emergency services are called then stewards must be informed of which services have been called and to 
what location. 

For fires in larger or public structures, the evacuation of the area is the priority. Attention must also be given to 
reporting and, if safely possible, tackling any secondary files. 

Vehicles should be moved a safe distance away from the fire if no risk in doing so. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 156



79 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Ground Fire 

Prevention of ground fires spreading can be enhanced by strictly policing the fire lanes in all parts of the 
festival site. Fire lane checking is the responsibility of every crew member, and Site Crew will always welcome 
reports of areas to be cleared. 

If an area of ground catches light, the procedure for other fires must be followed. Additionally, if it is safe to do 
so, a wide area downwind of the fire must be cleared of all people to prevent burning elements carried by the 
wind from harming anyone. 

Structural Collapse of a Public Space 

Stewards must cordon off the incident area and keep the public away from the vicinity. Site crew or the 
contractor supplying the structure should oversee the work needed to make the structure safe (whether to get 
the structure into a safely re-erected state or bring it permanently to the ground). 

Major Threat Policy 

Into The Wild acknowledges the very slender possibility that the event could be the target of a terrorist threat or 
incident, which may range from a warning to a multiple and coordinated attack brought about without warning. 

Attacks may be of a number of types, all of which our staff and traders must be aware of, so that signs might be 
reported. 

Please see elsewhere in this document for our precise guidance on responding to several forms of attack. 

Attack types include: 

● Physical e.g. explosives or poison, including toxins in water (CBRN) 
● Cyber (e.g. to the festival website, attempts to block the festival's Facebook account, overload of hoax 

emails) 
● Threat/hoax 
● Communication (jamming) 

Security and event staff, including stewards, will be alert to the signs of potential attacks. Unexpected shielding 
of personal belongings, intentional disabling of fire precautions, unusually large numbers of failed logins to 
festival emails or servers; all are examples of matters that could require reporting and investigation. 

Plans connected with security, including the most detailed site maps, will be for senior festival staff only. Each 
person with a copy of such plans must keep it securely behind password-protected access (e.g. stored within 
email), and any ‘leak’ must be reported to festival producers. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 157



80 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Vehicular Attacks 

We dissuade vehicular attacks by barring powered vehicles from public areas unless escorted with the greatest 
of security and, preferably, driven by personnel cleared by the Festival Manager. 

We enforce wrist-band checks, to prevent unauthorized people mingling with our crowds. 

We barricade external gateways to the festival site whenever practical, to prevent unexpected vehicle ingress. 

We check the identity and authority of every driver who wishes to bring their vehicle onto any camping site or 
the main festival sites. 

We check for suspicious traits in vehicles e.g. number-plates obscured, or obviously newly attached, or clearly 
overloaded. We look for other markers e.g. an unusual smell about the vehicle, or smoke visible within.  

We are alert to seemingly abandoned vehicles on site. 

Severe Threat Procedure 

The majority of threats are hoaxes. Nevertheless, here is the Into The Wild procedure for dealing with a threat. 

If delivered by telephone: 

● Stay calm and listen carefully. 
● Try to keep the caller talking while alerting a staff colleague to call 999. 
● Write down the caller ID number that appears on your phone. Also keep a record of the exact time the 

call was made. 
● Write down as much detail as possible. 
● If a text message containing a threat is received, do not reply to, delete or forward the message. Instead, 

note its number and contact the police via 999. 
● Ensure that all staff who may receive a message know to alert the Event Manager or, in his absence, the 

Head of Security. 

If delivered face-to-face: 

● Try to remember as many distinguishing characteristics of the threat-maker as possible. 

If discovered in a written note: 

● Treat as police evidence, and stop all people from touching the item. 

If received by social media: 

● Screenshot the threat. Do not reply or forward the threat. If the app has an “info” function for each 
item, activate this and store its output. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 158



81 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Delivered by any means: 

● Assess the credibility. If the threat refers to a device, is a device visible in any location mentioned? 
● If the location is imprecise, could any movement of people inadvertently bring them closer to any 

threat? 

 Suspicious Item 

If a suspicious item is found, whether or not associated with an identified threat, the Head of Security must 
initiate a cordon until police arrive.  

The following cordon distances are appropriate, as per national guidelines: 

● Letter-sized item: 100m 
● Suitcase or backpack-sized item: 200m 
● Vehicle-sized item: 400m 

Outbreak of Food Poisoning on Site 

Stewards will be asked to gather from cafés, the medical team, other stewards, site crew and festival guests the 
symptoms that have emerged. Feedback will be passed to H&S. If it is deemed by H&S that these are 
symptoms of food poisoning, H&S will investigate the outbreak and attempt to identify the source.  

At the same time, stewards will be delegated to visit all food outlets. Health and hygiene procedures will be 
checked and reinforced as necessary. The toilet staff will be asked to perform a thorough cleaning of all 
lavatories using suitable disinfectant and PPE. 

If the source is identified, suitable action will be taken. e.g. stopping the selling of a product, changing 
procedures of that food/drink provider, asking certain members of staff to stop working or closing the food 
outlet. 

Mid Sussex District Council's Environmental Health team will be informed. In extreme circumstances, if the 
food poisoning outbreak is severe, a decision may be made to close the event early. 

Windy Weather 

High Winds are defined by Into The Wild as having gusts in excess of 40mph (Beaufort Scale 7). 

The Event Production team must obtain from marquee owners the design wind-speeds of marquees before they 
are put up. 

Structures will be signed off by H&S upon their initial completion to confirm that they are safe and correctly 
erected.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 159



82 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

In high winds, each structure will be regularly checked for integrity e.g. checking guys, pegs, lacing and 
canvas. Stewards must be delegated by H&S for this task, and records will be kept of their reports. These 
records will be in the Festival Log kept in the Production Office. 

Weather forecasts and observations will be monitored by the Event Production team for wind speeds. Should 
wind speeds be approaching or more than 75% of any design wind-speed for a structure on site, the following 
protocol will apply: 

First Action Level — gusts at 75% of design speed 

Event Safety Officer advises Head of Stewards to put stewards responsible for the affected area on stand-by. 
Festival build-out crew must de-rig any elements to reduce risk of collapse, if de-rig is safe to accomplish. 

Second Action Level — gusts at 90% of design speed 

Event Safety Officer advises Head of Stewards to evacuate the immediate area of the structure in question. 
Event Safety Officer will advise safe distance from structure. 

Third Action Level — gusts at 100% of design speed 

Event Safety Officer advises Event Manager to call a Show Stop. 

If personal tents become unusable because of damage due to extreme weather, the Event Manager may decide 
to turn some of the public structures into temporary sleeping dormitories. 

The Event Manager, in consultation with H&S and Site Crew are responsible for taking decisions to close any 
unsafe structures to the public. 

In the event of wind causing widespread problems, advice on closure would be sought from emergency 
services. Although all camping is away from trees, vigilance on all roads will be carried out by stewards. 
Furthermore, the farm on location is fully equipped for wood removal and processing. 

Wet Weather 

The movements of vehicles will be restricted in wet weather. Stewards will cordon off any areas of the site that 
are unsafe because of mud/water logging. The use of tractors will be considered to help people remove their 
vehicles safely from site — the land owner has these available and agrees to their use. Catering outlets will be 
checked to control the ingress of mud into food preparation areas with subsequent possibility of food 
contamination. In extreme circumstances, a decision to close the event early may be made. This protocol has 
been tested in the unusual downpours of the 2018 festival. 

Hot Weather 

The Met Office maintains a system of heat alerts throughout the British summer. The most recent status 
information can be browsed at this location: 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 160



83 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/public/weather/heat-health/#?tab=heatHealth 

The following section is the Heat-Related Health Information Plan as specified by the UK Government’s 
“Heatwave Plan for England” published in 2018. 

The festival will take the following action upon a ‘heat’ warning being issued by the UK Met Office. Note that 
the Met Office ‘heat’ warnings are sent at 9am, not 10am as most other warnings are. The Event Producers 
subscribe by email to the Met Office for all weather warnings. 

Production Management will check the UK’s official “heat-health watch system” announcements to find which 
level is in effect. These will be labelled from 0 to 4. 

Level 0 — This represents a constant condition of preparation and research, and is always in force. 

Level 1 — Level 1 is constantly in effect as a “be prepared” alert throughout the English summer, from June 
1st to 15th September. 

Level 2 — This applies if the Met Office has forecast that there is a 60% chance of temperatures being high 
enough on at least two consecutive days to have significant effects on health. Announcement of this level will 
normally occur two to three days before the event is expected. The temperatures in force in south-east England 
are 30C (86F) by day and 15C (59F) by night. 

At this point, “Into The Wild” will make available to all staff a list of areas regarded as “cool spots”. These 
may be shaded woodland areas, or under-canvas areas where temperatures lower than the average site 
temperature have been noticed. There may also be areas recorded where local wind conditions bring a 
potentially cooling breeze. 

The event should also consider providing extra areas of shade e.g. a large canvas-roofed construction under 
which guests can take shelter from the sun. 

The Information Tent and First Aid areas should consider a water-spray device for acute cases where guests’ 
body temperatures need to be reduced quickly. 

Level 3 — The Met Office has measured temperature levels that meet or exceed the thresholds that Level 2 has 
prepared us for. 

At this point, posters showing lists of “cool spots” are posted in many locations across the “Into The Wild” 
festival site. 

Advice will be distributed to festival-goers by posters in strategic places. 

● Keep out of the sun between 11am and 3pm 
● If you have to go out in the heat, walk in the shade, apply sunscreen and wear a hat and light scarf 
● Avoid extreme physical exertion 
● Wear light, loose-fitting cotton clothes 
● Have plenty of cold drinks, and avoid caffeine and hot drinks 
● Eat cold foods, particularly salads and fruit with a high water content 
● Sprinkle water over the skin or clothing, or keep a damp cloth on the back of your neck 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 161



84 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● Children should not take part in vigorous physical activity 
● Children outdoors should be encouraged to stay in the shade as much as possible 
● Loose, light-coloured clothing should be worn to help children keep cool and hats of a closed 

construction with wide brims should be worn to avoid sunburn 
● Thin clothing or sun-screen should be used to protect skin if children are outdoors for more than 20 

minutes 
● Children must be provided with plenty of cool water and encouraged to drink more than usual when 

conditions are hot. The temperature of water supplied from standard festival water supplies is adequate 
for this. 

All local authorities at this point are advised by government to “review safety of public events”. This will no 
doubt include “Into The Wild” so Event Production must be ready for approaches from authorities, and will 
readily share this plan with them. 

Level 4 — This is a nationally announced emergency. The announcement will generally be made through the 
Cabinet Office and their usual media channels. 

A meeting of “Into The Wild” management including Head of Crew and Head of Stewards will take a decision 
on whether: 

● to continue the festival with warnings; or 
● curtail some festival activities; or 
● close the festival for the safety of the public.  

Management are advised to ask emergency services for information and co-operation. 

Water Crisis 

In the event of low water supply, the level of water supplies will be monitored, and priority given to cafés and 
public tap points. Showers will be closed. The public will be requested to be even more mindful of their water 
usage than has been previously instructed.  

In the event of significant water shortage, additional supplies will be imported by Into The Wild from 
commercial sources which we have already put on stand-by, and whose procedures the Event Manager and 
Event Producers are already familiar with. 

The public water supply company for Chiddinglye Farm is South-East Water. They have an obligation under 
UK law to provide 10 litres of potable water per day for each individual, and will be notified of the numbers 
present at “Into The Wild” should an emergency supply situation develop. 

Dry Weather 

The principal risk is the rapid and uncontrollable spread of fire. 

The Met Office maintains a Fire Severity Index. The most up-to-date information is always available on this 
page: 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 162



85 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/public/weather/fire-severity-index/ 

In consultation with emergency services, if Event Management determines there is an extra risk of fire in the 
car-parking and live-in vehicle areas, the following action will take place. 

1. At the entrances to all car-parking and live-in areas, the ISO 7010 P003 sign warning against danger of 
fire will be posted, with the words “Danger of Fire”. 

2. Four stewards will be on fire-spotting duty in the parking areas. They must individually patrol each 
lane, looking for signs of fire, and follow the protocol named “Fire” if signs of a blaze are detected. 

3. Four groups of fire-fighting equipment must be brought to the Car Parks and Live-In Vehicle areas. 
Three are to be distributed to the main Car Park, and one to the Live-In area. These will consist of: 
 1 x CO2 extinguisher 
 1 x Foam extinguisher 
 1 x Sand Bucket 
 1 x Water Bucket 
 1 x Fire Blanket 

4. All people arriving by car must be shown the following warning by box office staff: 

“Because of the dry fields, we must ask you to be extremely vigilant against fire. There is no 
smoking allowed in the fields where vehicles are parked.  Don’t allow anything hot to touch the 
ground. Keep mirrors and transparent objects, like glasses and drinks bottles, out of the sun at 
all times including inside vehicles and tents. Look around after you’ve parked your vehicle for 
any signs of fire and, if you see anything you can’t immediately and safely tackle, raise the 
alarm at once.” 

Electrical Storm 

Part of the standard weather monitoring activity of “Into The Wild” production is to check for the likelihood of 
electrical storms. 

We have three codes governing stages of alert if there is the risk of an electrical storm at the festival site. 

Lightning Warning — The nearest strokes are between 20 and 40 miles away. If this is detected, Event 
Production will more frequently review the weather conditions, and inform Event Manager. 

Lightning Threat — The nearest strokes are between 10 and 20 miles away. Under these circumstances, Event 
Production will consult with Event Manager to inform Stage Management and Stewards that the procedure for 
“Lightning Present” may begin at any moment. 

Lightning Present — At any lightning stroke closer than 8 miles, the following procedure must begin 
immediately. 

Evacuation to cars is safe because there are no trees or wooded areas on the way to the parking area. 

● Show stop.  
● All structures with raised non-metal poles must be cleared, even if this means waiting outside in the 

rain.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 163

https://www.metoffice.gov.uk/public/weather/fire-severity-index/#?tab=map&fcTime=1561546800&zoom=8&lon=-2.86&lat=51.93


86 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● In areas with a PA system, repeat the following message: 
“The show is stopping because there is a severe threat from lightning approaching us. We have 
stopped the show because you must protect yourself from lightning. If you can return to your car or 
campervan quickly, go there right now. Go back to your vehicle if you can. Do not stand anywhere 
near trees or fences. Do not shelter inside any tent except if it has metal poles to the top, and stay two 
metres away from the metal. If you must remain in the open and the thunderstorm arrives, crouch 
down on your feet. Keep your shoes on. Do not lie down. Do not put your hands on the ground.” 

● Stewards must immediately bring this message to the camp site. 
● Production will use any other means of mass message distribution to convey this message. 
● The public must be moved to a place of safety. In order of safety on the festival site, best first, these 

are: 
1. Inside metal-skinned motor vehicles with windows fully up 
2. Inside a metal-skinned Portakabin-style building 
3. Inside a metal-poled marquee if there is a constant metal-pole path from the highest point to the 

ground. People must not be anywhere near any of the metal poles inside the marquee. 
4. Outside all structures, as close to the ground as possible, in the following posture: wearing 

shoes, crouching with feet together, with hands resting on knees and not touching the ground. 
Do not sit. Do not lie on the ground. 

When there have been no lightning strokes within eight miles for twenty minutes, the “Lightning Present” alert 
may reduced to “Lightning Threat”, and the show may resume. 

Chemical, Biological, Radiological or Nuclear Contamination 

It is extremely unlikely that any such attack will occur. Nevertheless, during Into The Wild in 2017, a gas cloud 
of unknown composition and origin caused the hospitalization of approximately 150 people at a location 30 
miles south of the festival site. Emergency services put into place full procedures which, on that occasion, were 
rapidly scaled down once the effects of the cloud were more fully known. 

Should the event become aware of a possible incident involving exposure to CBRN materials, our duties place 
the protection of the public as a first priority. 

The aim in the early stages of reaction to CBRN contamination is to limit the spread of any potential 
contamination if the threat is internal to the site, and prevent all public access, while doing our best not to 
disturb what may be evidence. 

Without exposing themselves to possible danger, security staff already aware of the problem must remove all 
public from the area of the possible contamination. 

Duty Head of Security and Event Organiser must be informed at any hour, and summoned to Production Office 
for a briefing. 

If in our best opinion we determine that such an attack has taken place, we must remove all people from the 
area without permitting return, and immediately contact the government’s GDS (Government Decontamination 
Service) Duty Officer on 0300 1000 316. We will also immediately contact police by dialling 999. 

All facilities of the Production Office will be offered to incoming officers from the public and emergency 
services, and we will proceed as for any major incident by placing our staff including security staff under the 
control of the emergency services for the duration of the incident.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 164



87 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Assumption Of Control Form 

EVENT: INTO THE WILD - AUGUST 2019 FESTIVAL 

AT: CHIDDINGLYE FARM, Selsfield Road, West Hoathly, East Grinstead, West Sussex,  

RH19 4QS — TQ 3511 3278 

DATE: ___________________________ 

TRANSFER OF AUTHORITY FROM EVENT MANAGEMENT TO: 

 Senior Police Officer / Fire & Rescue Officer ______________________________ 

At ________ on ___________ a major incident has arisen, namely 

______________________________________________________________________ 

As the most senior Police / Fire and Rescue Service Officer, I assume control. 

Signed ______________________________  (officer) 

Name ______________________________ (officer) 

Position / Rank _______________________  (officer) 

Senior Officer of Service: _______________ (officer) 

Acknowledged by: ______________________________ (Into The Wild) 

Signed: _______________________________________ (Into The Wild) 

Position: ______________________________________ (Into The Wild)  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 165



88 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX K — WATER SUPPLY 

Introduction 

Into The Wild commits to supplying wholesome water from a network of pipes fed from the water mains via a 
pillow. This is, in the meaning of the appropriate law, an extension of the public supply network. We achieve 
this through our supplier, which also has contingency plans ready should there be any failure of the supply to 
provide water to the required standards. 

We work with a respected water company to originate, distribute and test the water, which has supplied water 
by temporary installation to many large festivals, and which supplied another festival managed by Into The 
Wild in May 2019 without incident.  

The company’s contact details are as follows:  

On-site contact:  

Phil Myers, phil@liquiline.co.uk, tel: 07825 147595 

Main address:  
 
Liquiline Limited 
Ash Tree House,  
Tarrant Hinton,  
Blandford,  
Dorset  DT11 8JA 
Telephone: 01258 830324 

After the festival’s own commitment, this appendix contains Liquiline’s dedicated plan for Into The Wild as 
submitted on June 25th 2019. It is subject to modification, but includes a diagram of the pipe layout, and the 
positions of important features. 

Into The Wild Water Commitment 

As the law requires, all publicly available water will be potable, and tested and maintained in accordance with 
BS 8551:2015, the Private Water Supplies Regulations 2016, and the Water Supply (Water Quality) 
Regulations 2000 as amended. 

Liquiline commits to testing the water, as required by the Water Supply (Water Quality) Regulations 2000 as 
amended and audited in accordance with BS8550 “Guide for auditing of water quality sampling”. 

Standpipes fed through a hired pump from a temporary water pillow (capacity: 100,000l) are situated in many 
parts of the site, both near campers and near traders. The pillows meet Regulation 31 of the Water Supply 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 166



89 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

(Water Quality) Regulations 2000 as amended, and have a Water Regulations Advisory Scheme approval 
certification. Maintenance and disinfection logs are available from our supplier. 

We also require of Liquiline that approved double-check valves be installed, together with isolation valves, for 
making connections. 

Our supplier is aware that the backflow of contaminated water into the water-supply network poses a health 
hazard concern. The supplier uses anti-backflow devices and double check valves wherever backflow poses a 
risk of contamination to the water supply. Backflow devices must be WRAS compliant and suitable for the 
purpose.  

Into The Wild will check that Liquiline takes care that all equipment, pipework and potable water-holding 
vessels is chlorinated using procedures outlined in BS 8551:2015. We will ensure that our contractor holds 
certification for the chlorination logs and a satisfactory sample certificate from such procedures for ALL 
equipment and vessels used within the private temporary water network.  

During set-up, we will observe that microbiological testing to confirm chlorination takes place. We will allow 
sufficient time for this to happen. Chlorination certification and bacteriological analysis will be undertaken by a 
United Kingdom Accreditation Service (UKAS) accredited laboratory. Liquiline has created in advance a 
contingency plan, in case of failure.  

Liquiline documents all maintenance of equipment and vessels, together with any remedial action taken to 
overcome potential problem areas. 

Our supplier also monitors the wholesomeness of the water supply. This involves the monitoring of a number 
of physical water-quality parameters (as described in BS 8551:2015) at areas within the network that provide a 
true representation of the whole water supply. 

After the network has been installed, Into The Wild will undertake and record a risk assessment of the network 
as in place. To this end, Liquiline has supplied an initial risk assessment, which is contained in their document, 
below. 

A water distribution network map is part of this document. 

It shows: 

● piping infrastructure 
● pumps 
● storage pillows 
● taps on standpipes (all are potential monitoring points) 

Contingency 

Our supplier also commits to having on standby sufficient water supply, whether through tankers, bowsers or 
bottles, should there ever be a problem with the installed water network. If this is ever required, Into The Wild 
will receive from the contractor: 

● the quantity of water delivered via bowser/tanker 
● tanker/bowser disinfection logs 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 167



90 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● tanker/bowser filling logs from hydrants 
● technician-training competency certificates. 

Contractor’s Water Plan 

Below, we reproduce the plan for water at Into The Wild as given to us by Liquiline, our contractor, current as 
of June 25th 2019. This may change, and will be updated here. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 168



91 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 169



92 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 170



93 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 171



94 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 172



95 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 173



96 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 174



97 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 175



98 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 176



99 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 177



100 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 178



101 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 179



102 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 180



103 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 181



104 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 182



105 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 183



106 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 184



107 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 185



108 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 186



109 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 187



110 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 188



111 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 189



112 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 190



113 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 191



114 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 192



115 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 193



116 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 194



117 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 195



118 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 196



119 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 197



120 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 198



121 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 199



122 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 200



123 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 201



124 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 202



125 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 203



126 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

 

Commitments from Caterers 

Caterers must ensure their own water storage tanks are fit-for-purpose, with a tightly-fitting lid, clean, Water 
Regulations Advisory Scheme-compliant, disinfected and audited. 

Systems MUST be cleaned and flushed through with food-safe chlorine-based sterilants upon arrival on site. 

Chlorinated water must NOT go to general waste water but be disposed of safely at a designated disposal point. 

Ice for caterers must be made from wholesome potable water, handled and stored under conditions that protect 
it from contamination. 

Banned Supplies 

Other water pipes are on-site, which are part of the landowner’s own distribution system. These are absolutely 
out-of-bounds to all festival attendees. Each will be blocked by Heras fencing, and supplied with laminated A3 
printed signs warning that it is never to be used. 

Security shall check this Heras fencing on their usual patrols, and report any possible defects to Site Crew. 

Areas of natural water on site, although fenced off and completely out-of-bounds, will be sampled, and the 
samples sent away to be tested for harmful chemicals or bacteria.  

We are well aware that all naturally-occuring water on this site is likely to have an unacceptable level of 
contamination which will change nearly hourly, depending on the temperature, sunlight and exposure to animal 
waste. Signage prohibiting festival attendees from using this water will include a warning of the contaminates 
present. 

All traders and individuals will be instructed beforehand that no privately obtained water supplies from the site 
may be used for any purpose. An active watch will be kept by the Health and Safety Team together with our 
Stewards and Senior Management for any trader or individual using privately obtained water supplies on site. 
Traders will face immediate closures, and individuals will be advised appropriately. 
  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 204



127 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX L — FOOD SAFETY 
General 

The safety and wellbeing of all festival attendees is the prime concern of Into The Wild’s management, and our 
food safety policy enforces this from long before the festival begins. 

Into The Wild has contracted a specialist Environmental Health Officer, Nick Saxon. Mr. Saxon is also 
employed as a food safety inspector and auditor with Lambeth Borough Council, and is professionally 
responsible for auditing and recording food safety and compliance with current food hygiene legislation across 
his borough. 

A strict policy of compliance with Local Authority regulations regarding food safety is required of all caterers, 
no matter what level of service they are offering festival attendees. 

There will be no exceptions whatsoever to this rule. The safety of festival attendees is paramount at all times. 

Our policy is necessarily lengthy. Whilst this has been delegated to our specialist on-site food safety manager, 
it is necessary for all senior staff, especially the Head of Health and Safety, the Festival Director, and the 
Production Managers, to know these rules, to recognise and report any breaches that may occur. 

Before Set-Up 
● Each catering operation must give us a contact name, who is the centre of contact for that business. The 

person concerned has a duty to ensure operation is safe; and that all their employees are trained. One 
person must take responsibility for this. We cannot allow a caterer on site without a named, 
responsible, contact. 

● Each food business must be registered with its local Environmental Health Department. This 
requirement also includes businesses that operate from temporary structures such as vans or tents. For 
the purpose of registration, the Local Authority is the LA of its home base rather than our site. Then, 
we must obtain from each operator, to pass to Mid Sussex District Council, the name of the local 
authority. A business without such certification cannot enter the site. 

● Before being permitted on site, each trader must have produced, for us, a written food safety 
management system (FSMS). We require that this system is based on the principle of Hazard 
Assessment: Critical Control Points (HACCPs). 

● We specify that all food businesses must carry information about 14 specified allergens which may 
occur in their products. These are: 

○ Cereals containing gluten, namely: wheat (such as spelt and khorasan wheat), rye, barley, oats 
○ Crustaceans for example prawns, crabs, lobster, crayfish 
○ Eggs 
○ Fish 
○ Peanuts 
○ Soybeans 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 205



128 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

○ Milk (including lactose) 
○ Nuts; namely almonds, hazelnuts, walnuts, cashews, pecan nuts, Brazil nuts, pistachio nuts, 

macadamia (or Queensland) nuts 
○ Celery (including celeriac) 
○ Mustard 
○ Sesame 
○ Sulphur dioxide/sulphites, where added and at a level above 10mg/kg or 10mg/L in the 

finished product. This can be used as a preservative in dried fruit 
○ Lupin, which includes lupin seeds and flour and can be found in types of bread, pastries and 

pasta 
○ Molluscs like, mussels, whelks, oysters, snails and squid 

● We note in our emails to festival attendees that this information is available from caterers. 
● We must remind businesses of their accident reporting obligations under the RIDDOR 2013. 

On-Site 
● We take responsibility to ensure caterers are sited to avoid risk of contamination from animals, pests 

and other sources e.g. plant growth. 
● No trader shall be sited next to lavatories, or formal waste disposal areas. 
● We will check that all catering premises are  designed, constructed, cleaned and maintained in good 

repair and condition so as to avoid risk of contamination from animals, pests and other sources. We 
will not site caterers adjacent to hedges, or where items from trees may drop into the kitchen or serving 
areas. 

● We will require and check that premises must be fully covered to top and sides including prep, gear and 
storage areas. 

● If tents and marquees are not pest-proof, they must be cleaned prior to production/each trading period. 
● We will look for evidence compliance with BS5438 (flame-retardant) in all coverings and walls. 
● We will check for appropriate lighting so that food and drink preparation can be safely carried out, and 

premises checked for cleanliness, at night. 
● We will check measures to limit the transfer of concentration of dirt e.g. mud into food prep areas. We 

suggest matting or a change of footwear upon entrance to food preparation areas. We will require that 
any floor coverings in these areas can be cleaned. 

Rules for Food Areas 
● all work areas, including all surfaces and structures, must be maintained in a good condition, kept clean 

and free from accumulations of waste 
● all equipment must be kept clean and maintained in good working order 
● adequate facilities must be provided for the cleaning and disinfecting of work tools and equipment that 

come into contact with food. This means the provision of sinks or other readily emptied containers, 
with a hot and cold-water supply, detergents and disinfectants. 

● readily identifiable waste-water containers must be in use. Food waste mustn’t be flushed into these. 
● cleaning materials, such as mops and cloths, should not be cleaned in a food sink 
● the use of disposable or semi-disposable cloths is recommended, but if re-usable cloths are used, we 

will ask that they are washed at 82°C or above 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 206



129 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● when using cleaning cloths, care must be taken to prevent the spread of contamination from one surface 
to another. We will ask to see colour-coded cloths, correctly used, which will assist in reducing the risk 
of contamination 

● we will ask to see, or hear, a cleaning plan for each area that is systematic and detailed. The plan 
should describe the method and frequency for each cleaning task 

● Work surfaces must be sound, easy-to-clean and, if necessary, easy to disinfect. Approved surfaces 
include: stainless steel, food-grade plasticised surfaces, and ceramics. Wood is not an approved surface. 

● In each caterer, we will check that cleaning schedules are displayed. 
● COSHH — stallholders must have assessed risks. All precautions must be followed. 
● Adequate provision for storage, disposal and removal of waste and by-products must be readily 

available where food is present. 
● Containers for food waste must be in CLOSABLE containers unless traders can demonstrate other 

types of containers are appropriate. 
● Ice for caterers must be made from wholesome potable water, handled and stored under conditions that 

protect it from contamination. 
● Containers used for transporting food must be used only for food, and nothing else. Should a 

container’s use be changed to convey food, there must be effective cleaning between loads. 
● Provision of supplies must be made in advance by traders to get supplies to the event if any on-site 

supplies might run low, or require daily fresh replenishing. Traders must note that the movement of 
powered vehicles in pedestrian areas is generally forbidden. 

Temperature Control 
● Temperature monitoring for all storage and transport areas for food must be available if appropriate. 
● For caterers, we expect them to be able to demonstrate regular monitoring and compliance with 

required temperatures e.g. below 8C for chilled food, and ideally 1C to 5C, and below -18C for frozen 
food.  

● Water supply MUST be below 20C. It will be necessary to flush the system if temperatures rise above 
this. 

● Hot water for food prep and dish-washing MUST be NO LOWER THAN 57.5C, to control risk of 
legionella growth.  

Staff Training 
● We seek evidence that caterers have trained all staff who handle food to “level 2 food safety”. They 

must also have a sound understanding of water hygiene and handling. 

Miscellaneous Safety Rules 
● We want caterers to prevent non-staff from entering kitchen areas. 
● Protective clothing must be changed regularly. 
● Handwashing is vital to food safety, and a sink must be used. Anti-bacterial gels are not adequate 

replacements for hand-washing among caterers. For drying, we recommended single-use towels. 
● We expect caterers to bring suitable first-aid for their staff. A suitably-equipped first-aid box is a 

minimum level. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 207



130 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Fire Safety in Catering Areas 
● Where LPG is used, we must see a gas safety check. 
● Firefighting for caterers is presently recommended to be: 

○ where oil/fat frying or a griddle is used - fire blanket; 6ltr wet chemical extinguishers 
○ where waste bins are provided/used 6ltr water fire extinguishers 
○ where generators and/or electrical equipment are used 2ltr CO2 fire extinguishers; however, 

this may need to be increased to take into account the number and types of equipment being 
used 

○ where barbecues are used 6ltr water fire extinguishers 
○ for motorised units additional dry-powder extinguishers should be available for engine fires 

within the cab if it is separated from the cooking area 
○ Part of the set-up process must be to site a designated fire point for the extinguishers in each 

catering area. 
○ Each extinguisher and fire blanket must show proof that it has been serviced in the last year. 

Into The Wild has strict environmental health checks by a newly appointed professional officer in place, before 
arrival, during set-up, and during the festival, to ensure compliance with all applicable laws and best practices. 

Caterers Scheduled 

Please know that this is a fluid document to which all authorised parties have access. As we approach the 
festival, the ratings and council registration for all the below listed suppliers will be updated or excised, as the 
situation warrants. Nick Saxon (Catering Health and Safety Officer) has made us completely aware that without 
proper certifications they will not be allowed to come on site, much less set up. The caterers will be apprised of 
same in the Google Forms document each one is sent. All info is then translated into a spreadsheet. We are 
happy to share the link to this fluid spreadsheet with SAG authorities.   

Fu-Fabulous Food 

This is the crew cafe. 

Hannah Milsom & Sophie Davies 
16a Nevill Road 
Uckfield 
East Sussex 
TN22 1PF 
+44 7766837317 (Sophie) 
+44 7446298698 (Hannah) 
sophie@fufabulous-food.com 
hannah@fufabulous-food.com 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 208

mailto:sophie@fufabulous-food.com
mailto:hannah@fufabulous-food.com


131 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Into the Wild Café 

Registered as Playful Hearts, trading as Red Moon Roots: providing vegan and vegetarian cooked meals. 

Justus Mazeika 07895 392141 
redmoonroots@gmail.com 
Unit D  
Omega works 
167 Hermitage Road 
London N4 1LZ  

Bread for Life Pizzeria 

Selling both vegetarian (no vegan, cheese on all) and meat pizzas, as well as gluten free.. 

Michael Hanson 07814819973 
michaelthepizzaman@gmail.com 
Eastgate  
Lewes 
BN7 2LP  
 

The Peckish Peacock 

Selling chips, cold drinks and halloumi & soya burgers. 
Tom Olesker 07939302767 
thepeckishpeacock@gmail.com 
Flat 3  
9 Chichester Terrace 
Brighton 
East Sussex 

The Bhangra Bus Café 

Self-contained converted bus serving vegan and vegetarian curries.  

07710 503 363 
Info@bhangrabus.co.uk 
http://www.bhangrabus.co.uk/ 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

Lunched out Lizards Chai Tent 

Serving chai teas, cakes, pastries. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 209

mailto:redmoonroots@gmail.com
mailto:michaelthepizzaman@gmail.com
mailto:thepeckishpeacock@gmail.com
mailto:Info@bhangrabus.co.uk
http://www.bhangrabus.co.uk/


132 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Jim Cousins - 07970277635 
thelizardstage.co.uk 
lunched_out_lizards@hotmail.com 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

 

Oscar’s Kitchen 

Serving wild game burgers, hot & cold drinks. They will also set up a side stall serving locally grown green tea 
and hand-made scones. 

Leah Athol-Murray 07710 279784 
Sam Murray 07803 254084 
leahatholmurray@aol.com 
www.oscarskitchen.com 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

Vudu Food 

New Orleans-style soul food with a British twist. 

vudufood@gmail.com 
Katy Marriot - 07840580721 
https://vudufood.com 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

Outer Regions Cafe 

Chai teas and snacks, catering specifically to stage performers and offering late night/early morning hot meals 
to security crew when crew cafe is shut. 

Steve (Chief) May - 07743958149 
outerregions@hotmail.com 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

Carlito’s Burritos  

Serving Mexican-style vegan and vegetarian food. 

Carlos Riestra - carlosriestra@icloud.com 
www.carlito-burrito.co.uk 
Tel. +447411697968 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 210

http://thelizardstage.co.uk/
mailto:lunched_out_lizards@hotmail.com
mailto:leahatholmurray@aol.com
http://www.oscarskitchen.com/
http://www.oscarskitchen.com/
mailto:vudufood@gmail.com
https://vudufood.com/
mailto:outerregions@hotmail.com
mailto:carlosriestra@icloud.com
http://www.carlito-burrito.co.uk/


133 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Easy Jose Coffee Roasters 

Serving coffee, espresso & Pastries 

James Higgs - james@easyjosecoffee.co.uk 
 General Manager 
Tel: 01225 684509 
Mob: 07958 175871 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

Whirled Espresso 

Coffee, Espresso & Pastries. 

Janee Swan - janeeswan@gmail.com 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

Thai Angle Cafe 

Vegetarian and seafood Thai food.  

Nic Eadie - hello@thaiangle.co.uk 
(Correspondence/premises address to follow) 

We will likely invite one or two more cafes to attend, and we will inform Mid Sussex Environmental Health as 
soon as they are confirmed.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 211

mailto:james@easyjosecoffee.co.uk
mailto:janeeswan@gmail.com
mailto:hello@thaiangle.co.uk


134 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX M —  
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND 

DISORDER 
General 

Prevention of crime and disorder is one of the fundamental licensing objectives of Into The Wild. 

The profile of Into The Wild guests is not known for any violent tendencies. We have zero record of any such 
situation occurring at previous festivals. 

Our crime prevention strategy begins long before the festival itself. We have an electronic ticketing system 
which is universally applied to all arriving on site. A single database contains details of all who attend, whether 
management, staff, crew, volunteers, traders, performers or guests. 

Each identity is associated with an e-ticket, which can be considered as a database entry containing contact 
information, ticketing type, and other relevant data.  

On arrival, each e-ticket (whether presented in paper form, bar-code, or by disclosing identity documents) is 
translated into a wristband. A colour-coding system designates the role of the bearer. 

We enforce a policy of ejecting, or correcting the status, of any person found without a correctly numbered 
wristband. 

E-tickets are sold only through the Into The Wild website, and all data feeds into a common database. 

We will report fake sellers to the Sussex Police Action Fraud team. 

In advance, we communicate to all ticket-holders the nature of their responsibilities, and our policies, including 
the no-alcohol rules.  

We instruct security staff what to look out for, including descriptions. 

Security staff have areas for the safe storage of prohibited items that, in themselves, are not illegal to possess. 

Festival-goers are referred to https://festivalsave.com/information/crime,  the “Festival Safe” website, for 
general advice before arrival. 

In assisting Sussex Police to profile our guests and artistes, though this is not a music festival, we make 
available a list of all known stallholders and performers. The purpose of Into The Wild is wellbeing, the 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 212

https://festivalsave.com/information/crime


135 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

encouragement of peace, and harmonious living, so we do not anticipate that any performers or stallholders will 
wish to cause any form of criminal dissent within our guests. 

If Sussex Police wish to share information with us, we will treat this with the utmost confidence, and keep it 
password-protected on systems that require two-factor authentication for access. Police will be told which 
named individuals have access to that data. 

Our own security team leader is listed in the Key Personnel section of this document. We have satisfied 
ourselves that they are very experienced at providing formal security for Into The Wild and other similar 
events; they have a good understanding and practical experience of how to deal with the victims of crime; and 
will preserve the scene and carefully handle witnesses should any criminal activity become known to them. 

Should a threat be received, we activate our policy to deal with it, as detailed in Appendix J. 

Drug and Alcohol Policy 

Into the Wild is specifically alcohol free and upholds the law regarding illegal drugs. Alcohol and illegal drugs 
are not tolerated at the event. Failing to respect this must result in persons found, on the balance of 
probabilities, in possession of banned substances being required to leave by the security team. 

A nearby micro-brewery, operated by the landowner, is closed from Thursday 22nd August to Monday 26th 
August inclusive. 

In the case of illegal drugs of Class B or C being found in a quantity small enough for personal use, they are to 
be confiscated and kept securely by Security in their own secure storage area until the Head of Security is able 
to destroy them using appropriate methods, preferably the same day. 

If illegal drugs in greater quantities are found, or any Class A drugs, police must be informed via the 999 
system as a potential offence connected to drug dealing or Class A possession may have been witnessed. SIA-
security trained staff may wish to detain the suspect if their own safety is not compromised. 

Search Policy 

The festival reserves the right to search persons, luggage or vehicles as a condition of entry at any point during 
the event. Those declining to be searched will be required to leave. 

Searching of vehicles and persons arriving is carried out according to two criteria: 

1. Randomly, approximately one in every twenty vehicles or persons is stopped, and asked a set of 
questions by appointed and trained members of the stewarding or security team. 

2. Any person or vehicle that stewarding or security staff has a suspicion about will be stopped and a set 
of questions asked. 

These are the questions we will use to challenge guests: 

● Do you have any alcohol with you? 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 213



136 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● Do you have any controlled substances, including herbal highs, with you? 
● May we look inside your vehicle / inside your pockets, please? 

Should any of these questions result in unsatisfactory answers, the person arriving will be first given an 
opportunity to put things right, either by handing over substances we do not permit, or leaving. 

If the person concerned refuses to do this, or co-operate, the eviction policy applies (“Breaching the event terms 
and conditions”). 

Eviction Policy 

Reasons for eviction include, but are not limited to: 

● Unauthorised entry 
● Unacceptable, disruptive or anti-social behaviour 
● Breaching the event terms and conditions 
● Illegal activity 
● Any other behaviour which may leave the Event Manager liable to prosecution or is not conducive to 

maintaining a safe and harmonious event 

The decision as to whether to evict or warn persons will be at the discretion of the Chief Steward although 
he/she may consult with the Event Manager and Security in unusual cases – such as eviction of traders. 

All persons presented for eviction by security will have their details recorded — if they are willing to provide 
them — along with date, time and reason for eviction. We are careful to do this because we are aware that such 
persons could be vulnerable or ill, including mentally ill.  

All persons being evicted will have the option of making a telephone call, using a phone provided by the 
festival if they do not have a phone themselves. 

Those evicted will not be allowed to collect belongings which they have on site. They will need to plan for 
friends or relatives on site to do this for them. At the discretion of the Chief Steward, they may be allowed back 
onto the site to retrieve them on the Monday after the festival finishes. 

All evictees will be evicted from site by either: 

● Returning to their vehicles and driving off site if the Chief Steward considers it safe for them to do so; 
or 

● Being transported by security to any location they name, but no further than Lewes; or 
● Being escorted off site to make their own arrangements for onward transportation. 

 

Dealing with Criminal Behaviour 
In dealing with potentially criminal situations, we brief all staff to intervene only in the following manner: 

● Be honest about why we are intervening; 
● Be unbiased, consistent and fair; 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 214



137 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

● Explain clearly the rationale for the rules of the festival, and any decision that is made; 
● Maintain objectivity in managing the situation; 
● Show respect for individuals throughout the conversation, remaining calm. 

Should a sexual offence be alleged, we adopt a victim-led approach. 

● Inform the Chief Steward immediately. In turn, the supervisor will inform the Head of Medics. The 
Head of Medics should inform Event Production as soon as practicable, depending on the 
circumstances - see below. 

● A team member of the same sex should stay with the person (unless it is a same-sex assault allegation) 
● With the victim's consent, information about the situation should be passed on face-to-face, factually 

and sensitively. 
● The person's clothing should not be disturbed, removed or cleaned. 
● The person should not wash or clean themselves. 
● The site of the incident should be identified and not disturbed. 
● The welfare team can give the victim a blanket and comfort them. Unfortunately giving someone a 

drink may destroy evidence, although this may be necessary, if it is in the victim’s best interest. 
● If the victim agrees, try to contact their friends at the event or enable them to make a phone call to 

someone off site. 
● Listen to what the victim says has happened and make a confidential note of what they say, as soon as 

appropriate. 
● Do not discuss the matter with anyone outside the team, except to give factual information to the 

medics, steward supervisor or police, if they are involved. 
● If the person does not want to speak to anyone outside the welfare team, this wish should be respected. 

You can (gently and without any pressure) point out that by speaking to the police/security etc., it may 
help to identify an offender or prevent others suffering the same experience. 

● In some situations where the victim does not want to speak to anyone, it may be more appropriate for 
the welfare service to inform the event organiser after the person has left. In this case, a description of 
the incident as reported to the welfare team should be provided as well as where and when the incident 
happened, but no personal details. 

The only exceptions to breaking confidentiality are if someone is in serious danger of harm – for example, an 
identifiable child who is being abused – or in the case of intelligence about drug dealing, terrorism or money 
laundering. In those circumstances alone, there is an obligation to act upon the information and inform the 
police or other authorities. 

If a member of the public wishes to report a crime, we have established a pro-forma to ensure relevant 
information is gathered quickly.  

If we become aware of wide-spread criminal activity we will make announcements via the main stage PA and 
the PA system in the Into The Wild Cafe. If matters continue or are acute, written notices will be distributed, 
using a method we have already tested. 

 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 215



138 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX N — MOVEMENT 
Safety Policy 

Into The Wild regards seriously its requirement to manage traffic, so that pedestrians and vehicles are separate. 
Staff and steward training clearly points out this necessity. 

Lanes for vehicle movement are, in most places, marked out using printed, laminated A3 signs and hazard tape.  

There is a strict 5 MPH speed limit for all vehicles throughout the site. This is frequently marked by standard 
speed limit signs, and is policed by stewards and security. 

Formally-marked Fire Lanes are in place throughout all festival areas. We have a well-practiced system of 
policing these lanes, and a system of pre-printed and audible warnings, followed by removal of offending 
vehicles, should any vehicle be found left in a fire lane. 

A well-rehearsed system of traffic management for the main entrance road is in place, policed by two 
experienced groups of people: Security from 10pm to 8am, and Stewards from 8am to 10pm, each day. This 
permits the following: 

● A system of one-way traffic along the festival’s main approach road; 
● Relief of any congestion which may be risked along the public road; 
● Rapid clearance of the road, to allow access or egress for any emergency services. 

Emergency Entry 

Any emergency vehicle, whether or not advised in advance to traffic management or security, must be given 
absolute priority for access. The main entrance road is wide enough for vehicles to be cleared by use of the one-
way management system, or driven to the side, to get a standard fire tender through. 

A separate entrance, details withheld from the public, exists for emergency vehicles, if there is any likelihood 
of a delay on the main festival approach. 

This is situated at TQ 3462 3286, which is a junction with Ardingly Road. The public will not be told about this 
road before they arrive. 

The road is named West Drive, which connects directly with the Ardingly Road, next to West Lodge, a 
property owned by the landowner, avoiding any possible delays if traffic is queuing on the primary entrance to 
the festival.  

The site will have LED lighting on emergency and fire access routes and any areas that we deem unsafe or have 
any potential hazard. The main site is at high level and drainage is not expected to be a problem. The 2018 
festival tested this thoroughly. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 216



139 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Public and Staff Entrances and Exits 

The entrance to the event will be from Selsfield Road onto Chiddingly Drive. We will encourage traffic to 
come from the B2028, therefore avoiding the village of West Hoathly. 

The main entrance is at Grid Reference TQ 3558 3283. 

Control Points 

The Box Office and Wristband Check is a primary, constantly-manned control point. Its staff will either be 
ticketing staff, or SIA-trained security personnel, in contact with the Event Manager and other production staff 
by radio and by mobile telephone. 

A Production Office is situated in a small paddock adjacent to the main festival field and camping area, from 
which staff can observe the event, and be quickly contacted face-to-face by staff and the public. 

The Secondary Entrance for certain supplies and festival staff is also a constantly-manned control point with 
either SIA-trained security personnel or trained stewards. They will also have radio and telephone contact with 
the Event Manager and other production staff. This is also a direct entrance to two fields that will be used for 
quiet and family camping. 

Should an emergency arise, the Production Office will become the Control Centre. 

Preventing Unauthorised Entry 

Because the event is alcohol-free, we do not expect there to be any significant numbers seeking unauthorized 
entry. We have observed that this has been the case previously. Nevertheless, the following checkpoints are in 
place to deal with this hazard, and both are manned by stewards:  

● the ticket office itself at the gateway between the car-park and the main site; 
● and the entrance to the main event field from the camp site area.  

Stewards will observe wristband checks at these points. 

Given the nature of the audience and event, together with our experience of many past events with similar 
programmes of performance, it will not be necessary to have a stage barrier. Stewards, the Security Team and a 
highly experienced Stage Crew will deal with any potential difficulties here, and can call for immediate help 
via radio channels if it ever becomes necessary. 

Arrival Management 

The first field that traffic enters is on the left of Chiddingly Drive (see map) used solely as a holding area for 
queuing vehicles to prevent tailbacks onto the road. The ticket office is situated at the top of the next field (see 
Map) for processing arrivals. To ensure safety, correct separation to allow fire lanes, and easy access for guests 
and security, all incoming drivers are required to park their vehicles in an orderly fashion by trained stewards in 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 217



140 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

or near the car parks. Their hand signals are used to direct drivers. Then, occupants are to be directed on foot to 
the ticket office and wristband collection point.  

Trolleys are available for hire to aid non-motorized transport of camping equipment and supplies by guests, as 
in previous festivals.  

Trolleys will be available to hire for campers to transport their camping equipment. 

A car parking diagram will be given to stewards and security with responsibility for the car parking area. 

Cars will be parked by the stewards in double rows in the car park with a 5m lane between each double row. No 
camping will be permitted in the car park. The car park area is a large flat field with plenty of space. There will 
be stewards at the entrance to the field and within the field itself to manage parking. Pedestrian access from the 
car park to the main campsite will be through a gate midway between the two fields. 

Live-in Vehicles 

Live-in vehicles will park to the north of the first camping field, and the same field as the car park. They will be 
in double rows with a 6 metre lane separating the rows. Cars and tents will be kept separate from live-in 
vehicles. The live-in vehicle area will be managed by appropriately trained stewards with a supervisor. 

Main Arena 

Entrance by vehicles to site beyond the car park will be restricted once the event is open to the public. Only 
crew service vehicles, those making deliveries or others with essential reason to enter the main site will be 
admitted. Vehicles will not enter the main event arena during the event. There will be a service lane 
inaccessible to pedestrians and marked off in addition to the track that runs through the site already, and this 
will enable such as deliveries of fresh food to caterers or equipment for performers. 

Wet Weather 

The land owner has vehicles suitable for towing out any cars or live-ins that become stuck due to wet weather. 

Additionally, all non-essential off-road vehicle movement will be limited at times should the ground be wet. 

Crew Vehicles 

Ten gators will be hired to facilitate movement of stewards, security and other crew and equipment around the 
site. These can be used on wet grass access lanes in conditions where use of heavier vehicles would turn the 
surface to mud. Only crew known to the festival, and with appropriate driving licences, will be permitted to 
drive them and at a maximum speed of 5 mph. 

They will be hired from SHB Hire Ltd: 01794 511458 www.shb.co.uk 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 218

http://www.shb.co.uk/


141 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

On-site Vehicular Movement Rules 

Into The Wild has a general “no movement of vehicles in public areas” policy during the public opening times, 
and all members of staff are made aware of this. Likewise, requests from members of the public to move their 
vehicles, during the festival, in areas reserved for attendees on foot are refused as a matter of course. 

Festival necessities such as transportation of large musical instruments to and from the main stage mean that 
vehicle movement at a very slow speed can be accomplished safety, provided the following are always 
observed: 

● In general, transportation will be carried out by the festival’s own vehicles, namely its Gators, driven 
by approved drivers only. Equipment and people will transfer to a Gator outside the festival area, and 
will be transported in these vehicles to their destinations. 

● Any other vehicles must be cleared by security 
● All vehicles must be of a design that will not become stuck in any part of the ground 
● All vehicles must be driven only on an agreed route to the festival areas, and only on the designated 

perimeter fire lane while in the festival area 
● All vehicles must carry a unique access pass issued on-site by Event Production (example pass image 

will be supplied here) 
● All vehicles must be banked by at least one steward in a high visibility jacket 
● The identity of any driver must be checked and approved by the Event Manager, to avoid threats from 

drivers whose purpose is merely to disrupt. 

All vehicles and/or drivers must be insured to satisfy the requirements of the Road Traffic Acts. No driver 
without insurance suitable for public roads can drive on site. Consequently, this also means all drivers must 
hold a full UK driving licence, and it must be of a type suitable for the vehicle they are driving. 

Vehicles during Set-Up and Take-Down 

All vehicles needing to be driven on site during set-up and take-down must adhere to the site speed limit, 5mph. 
This is widely signposted. Vehicles must use headlights at all times when moving. There is no requirement to 
use flashing hazard indicators. 

When a vehicle is no longer required on site, it must be removed to its designated parking area away from the 
main festival arena or healing arena.  

Unusual Access 

The soil drains well and, in inspections, we have found a good quality track through all the fields in use. 
Temporary tracking should not be required. However, if there is a danger of torrential rain or long spells of 
precipitation, then we will book in advance whatever is advised by our site manager and the landowner who is 
very experienced in the traversal of his land. This system was successfully tested during the record-breaking 
downpours at the 2018 Into The Wild festival. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 219



142 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Public Footpath Protocol 

A public footpath traverses the land from TQ 35200 32895 in an almost exactly north-south direction to TQ 
35164 32094, where it joins the High Weald Landscape Trail. In collaboration with the Landowner, Into The 
Wild will place signage at each end of the footpath reminding walkers of their obligations on footpaths, 
including the requirement to keep dogs under control at all times. An alternative route is to enter the land’s 
northerly boundary at TQ 35919 32772, east of the festival site. Walkers can then go south, to join the existing 
High Weald Landscape Trail at TQ 35738 32370. 

Footpath users will have no wristbands. Festival staff will be on alert to check any person seen without a 
wristband, it is practical and safe to assign stewards to the entrance points where the footpath crosses the 
festival boundary, and brief walkers on their duty to stay close to the mapped public footpath. Because Into The 
Wild is an alcohol-free festival that does not encourage escapism or rowdy behaviour of any sort, we believe 
that the numbers of people who would seek to cause disruption by entering along a staffed public footpath 
would be zero or minimal, and easily controlled. 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 220



143 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX O —  
ACCIDENT REPORTING 

Accidents At Work 

Into The Wild is committed to working with all public authorities should any information be sought about 
accidents. 

Any work-related accident that falls within the boundaries of reportable accidents under the UK’s “RIDDOR” 
regulations must be reported. This is in addition to its recording in the Accident Book at Event Production, and 
the log kept by the First Aid team. 

According to the regulations, Into The Wild is obliged to report the following accidents: 

The death of any person 

All deaths to workers and non-workers, with the exception of suicides, must be reported if they arise from a 
work-related accident, including an act of physical violence to a worker. 

Specified injuries to workers 

● fractures, other than to fingers, thumbs and toes; 
● amputations; 
● any injury likely to lead to permanent loss of sight or reduction in sight; 
● any crush injury to the head or torso causing damage to the brain or internal organs; 
● serious burns (including scalding) which: 

○ covers more than 10% of the body; 
○ causes significant damage to the eyes, respiratory system or other vital organs; 

● any scalping requiring hospital treatment; 
● any loss of consciousness caused by head injury or asphyxia; 
● any other injury arising from working in an enclosed space which: 

○ leads to hypothermia or heat-induced illness; 
○ requires resuscitation or admittance to hospital for more than 24 hours. 

Over-seven-day incapacitation of a worker 

Accidents must be reported where they result in an employee or self-employed person being away from work, 
or unable to perform their normal work duties, for more than seven consecutive days as the result of their 
injury. This seven day period does not include the day of the accident, but does include weekends and rest days. 
The report must be made within 15 days of the accident.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 221



144 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Over-three-day incapacitation 

Accidents must be recorded, but not reported where they result in a worker being incapacitated for more than 
three consecutive days. The Accident Book is sufficient for this purpose. 

Non fatal accidents to non-workers (eg members of the public) 

Accidents to members of the public or others who are not at work must be reported if they result in an injury 
and the person is taken directly from the scene of the accident to hospital for treatment to that injury. 
Examinations and diagnostic tests do not constitute ‘treatment’ in such circumstances. 

There is no need to report incidents where people are taken to hospital purely as a precaution when no injury is 
apparent. 

How To Report 

Accident and injury reporting is carried out on-line. The following link goes directly to the HSE form: 

https://extranet.hse.gov.uk/lfserver/external/F2508IE  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 222



145 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX P — NOISE POLICY 
The Programme 

The event is not primarily a music festival. However, a programme of acts suitable for a family audience, with 
children included, will run on a main stage which is enclosed inside a large tent. These performers have a 
strong emphasis on melody and lyrics, and will be amplified where necessary to sufficient levels for the 
audience in the large tent to hear them comfortably.  

The main tent features performances of live music, containing folk and world music. Its location is clearly 
marked on all maps. Performances here will be from around 19:00 on Friday, Saturday and Sunday. All music 
performances will end by midnight on Friday, Saturday, and Sunday. 

We undertake to programme quieter music in the final hour, that is between 11pm and 12am. 

There will also be 2 smaller stages for items including talks, a children’s cabaret, cinema, workshops, acoustic 
music and poetry at Into the Wild Cafe and Fabulous Food. These will be finished by midnight, and will have a 
very limited amplification, sufficient for the audience to hear within the premises.  Recorded music is not 
permitted after 2200, as per the Licensing Application. 

No amplified sound or percussive music is permitted beyond midnight. All staff and volunteers are aware of 
this policy, and will report any instances to stewards and/or security. 

There will be some dance and drumming workshops (involving individual hand-played instruments, not pop-
music drum kits) during the day.  

Liaison meetings are taking place with the Licensing Authority, Mid Sussex District Council, and with nearby 
residents, particularly any who are very close to the site. Into The Wild is very aware of the importance of 
keeping noise levels reasonable, particularly in later hours. No public gathering, no matter how peaceful, is ever 
completely silent, but guidelines and legal requirements have arisen in the UK over time to help set acceptable 
noise measurements off-site. We are using these acceptable levels, set by democratically elected local 
authorities, as a basis: but we augment them with our own levels set by negotiation with residents. 

Noise Abatement Team 

Into The Wild employs a noise control and monitoring officer, John Boarder. Mr. Boarder is instructed to obtain 
readings of ambient noise before set-up begins, and monitor noise at crucial points during the festival, with full 
authority to compel the audio controllers at the stages to reduce levels, either by lowering the volume, or 
lowering specified frequency bands. Mr. Boarder will be assisted by one of the Event Producers, who is also a 
qualified and very experienced sound recording engineer and university teacher of the same, specialising in 
large-scale performances. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 223



146 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Measuring Equipment 

Pre-festival measuring equipment, to determine ambient noise (specifically, L90, A-weighted and C-weighted) 
consists of an IEC 60651 noise meter, which can integrate measurements over long periods. 

During the festival, noise measurements will be carried out using a one-third octave analysing noise meter in 
accordance with BS EN 61672 Class 1, such as a Bruel & Kjaer 2260 Sound Analyser. 

We are establishing a set of Noise Monitoring Points, which are to be detailed by grid reference and description 
in this ESMP, in accordance with our own estimates, and in agreement with Mid Sussex District Council. 

Preparation 

Before set-up is completed, Into The Wild shall create: 

● An inventory of all amplified sound equipment to be used on site (we anticipate this will be three: Main 
Stage, Into The Wild Cafe, and Zutopia Cafe); 

● Contact details for all responsible for the amplified sound equipment; 
● Information about sound power outputs from the equipment on site. 

Noise Limits 

A map of likely noise-sensitive premises has been drawn up in association with the landowner. These premises 
will form the focus of formal noise testing. The nearest residences to the stage are at a distance of 500m and 
680m, both in the opposite direction from the way the stage faces. 

Into the Wild intends to reach the noise criteria generally accepted at UK venues agreed with their respective 
licensing authorities, and the Noise Council’s Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts 
(1995). The recommended limit for events held between 0900 and 2300 for a venue used for four or more days 
per annum is that the Music Noise Level measured at the edge of a residential property must not exceed the 
background noise level by more than 15dBA over a 15 minute period. Because Chiddinglye Farm hosts 
weddings and other events during the year, we believe it fits into the “four or more” events per annum category.  

Measurements are to be taken 1m from the facade of any noise sensitive premises. 

The code also states that events continuing after 2300 should be inaudible within noise-sensitive premises with 
windows open for ventilation. The code’s notes say that an acceptable form of control is to allow music to be 
“just audible” outside noise-sensitive premises. 

Additionally, we are able to measure and control sound output in one-third octave bands. Although noise levels 
for these bands are currently without formal recommendations for the UK, we commit to conducting C-
weighted tests during the festival’s operation, and adjust the frequency bands at the stage sound control position 
appropriately.  

We use other Local Authority guidance for these levels: at 1m from the facade of noise sensitive premises, the 
Sound Pressure Level (C-weighted) in the 63Hz and 125Hz third-octave bands must not exceed 71dB 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 224



147 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Pre-event Tests 

A meeting with Mid Sussex District Council is arranged, to formally review noise complaints received. The 
landowner is well-known by many neighbours. He is being reminded of the procedure for immediately 
contacting festival production, should a concern be raised directly with him.  

Residents in areas we know to be susceptible to noise from Into The Wild will be informed in advance of the 
dates and times of these tests. 

In a site visit, whose date will be notified to Environmental Health, we will complete ambient noise level 
measurements using A- and C- weighting, though we will generally consider the A-weighted measurement 
more relevant to our needs. Measurement will be integrated over a minimum 15-minute period in each location. 
This will give us the measure of L90 in each place. 

System Design 

The loudspeaker rig should be a “line array” which is known to provide improved sound coverage within the 
intended area, and reduce overspill outside it. 

Third-octave graphic equalisers are standard on stage equipment we hire. However, the all-digital system that 
has been suggested for Into The Wild in 2019 also contains digital parametric equalisers which give greater 
control over sound levels in designated frequency bands compared to traditional third-octave devices. The 
system also permit easy automatic limiting of sound levels in general, using a compressor/limiter function. 

During The Festival 

Because we have dedicated staff for noise monitoring, their only task during rehearsals and performances, and 
for some time after, will be to tour the agreed measuring points, and any other places that seem appropriate, to 
take readings. 

We also undertake to begin noise measurements of sound from the festival stage as soon as the equipment is set 
up and working. Recorded music of a similar nature to that which will be performed will be used. We use 
recorded music, rather than a noise-type signal, because the levels created by noise, no matter how carefully 
shaped, are not only misleading for measurements that use meters, but also mislead members of the public who 
will find it easier, upon detecting music, to offer genuine comments and reactions that will help us keep the 
noise within agreed limits. In other words, members of the public who are irritated by music are far more likely 
to express dissatisfaction if they hear music that has a formal structure than if they hear shaped noise. 

The readings will include A-weighted measurements, and also measurements in the frequency bands that cause 
the most irritation, namely those centred at 125Hz and 63Hz. Whilst these frequency bands do not contribute 
much to A-weighted measurements, we will be able to use these measurements to instruct the sound controller 
to lower those frequency bands if their prominence is excessive or likely to cause irritation. This is in addition 
to the requirement for general noise to be limited as above. 

We use other Local Authority guidance for these levels: at 1m from the facade of noise sensitive premises, the 
Sound Pressure Level (C-weighted) in the 63Hz and 125Hz third-octave bands must not exceed 71dB 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 225



148 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

The communication on a dedicated radio channel between the dedicated noise monitoring member of staff and 
the sound position will be such that levels can be lowered if necessary, and lower frequency bands adjusted if 
necessary, in real time, and quickly. 

In this way, almost as soon as the amplification is switched on, it will become part of the noise reduction 
process. 

In addition to the pre-planned schedule of noise monitoring, we will move to answer concerns if they are 
received from the public or the Local Authority during performances. In particular, our noise control employee 
will be able to attend locations as requested, and work with residents and the sound control position to achieve 
the best compromise. 

We have discussed tactics to help lower stress levels if a member of the public, despite noise being within all 
recommended boundaries, still feels aggrieved about sound. 

During the sound rig, a further test at least two hours before the first main stage performance will be carried out 
to demonstrate to sound control personnel on their own equipment the settings they must use to keep off-site 
sound levels within agreed limits. 

We will have a dedicated phone number for any noise issues, if they arise. This will be posted on the website 
and available at the ticket office, plus distributed to any local residents who might be affected. We will share 
this with Environmental health also.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 226



149 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX Q —  
SANITARY PROVISION 

Toilets 

Sixty composting toilets, plus 2 accessible toilets  will be hired from: 

ComPoost Solutions,  
Gilcombe Farm,  
Bruton,  
Somerset,  
BA10 0QE 

They have several years’ experience of providing toilets at festivals and will be responsible for all aspects at 
this event, including cleaning, lighting, topping up with toilet roll, and disposing of all waste off-site in 
appropriate facilities afterwards. 

Hand washing facilities will be provided by Compoost at all toilets. Two larger toilets without steps will be 
provided for use by those with disabilities. 

ComPoost Solutions have agreed to provide a Waste Management Plan, which will be included at this point in 
the Event Safety and Management Plan for Into The Wild. 

Into The Wild has agreed that a person delegated by the Head Steward will check lavatories and showers on a 
regular basis, and motivate the lavatory hire company to keep supplies plentiful, and clean problem areas. 

Showers 

Twelve portable, heated shower units will be hired from: 

Elliot, 
Aylesford,  
Kent  
ME20 7TW  
08000 546429 
www.elliottuk.com 

Waste management for showers is managed by the Into The Wild waste management crew. 

Showers will be available for set-up and take-down crew, with additional hygiene facilities. (Exact nature to be 
confirmed).  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 227

http://www.elliottuk.com/


150 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX R —  
FIRE SAFETY POLICY 

Fire Points and Fire Extinguishers 

Fire safety equipment will be hired from Site Rescue of The Training Centre, New Princess Street, Leeds LS11 
9BA tel: 0845 094 2757 who have advised on requirements. 

There will be forty Fire Points throughout the living areas and main festival arena. Each Fire Point has a tripod-
like structure containing as a minimum: 

1 x Sand Bucket 
1 x Water Bucket 
1 x Fire bell 
1 x Notice giving instructions on Fire Procedure 

The campsite fire points are stocked with buckets of sand, a fire bell and several stacked buckets for any 
formation of water line as might be required. Each fire point will contain signage committed to emergency info 
and instructions. 

Additionally, at the ticket office, a group of Fire Extinguishers and Fire Blankets is to be kept: 

8 x Foam extinguishers 
8 x Fire Blankets 

The catering area has five fire points, and the stage area two fire points, each containing: 

1 x CO2 extinguisher 
1 x Foam extinguisher 
1 x Sand Bucket 
1 x Water Bucket 
1 x Fire Blanket 

The Information Tent and Children’s Area, between them, will have extra fire-fighting facilities: 

3 x Foam extinguishers 

Sand buckets must be placed outside each caterer for the disposal of burning material or cigarettes. 

Hire List: 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 228



151 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

40 x Water buckets 
40 x Sand buckets 
18 x Foam extinguishers 
7 x CO2 extinguishers 
15 x Fire blankets 
49 x Fire bells 
50 x “Fire Point” notices, to be secured by build-out crew as a priority. 

Food vendors will be expected to bring their own fire safety equipment, but we can provide extra equipment for 
them if necessary (please see Appendix L). 

We will check vendors’ fire equipment against the following requirements: each stall must carry one 2kg dry 
powder extinguisher and one fire blanket. Any unit where deep fat is used for frying must additionally carry 
one 9 litre wet chemical extinguisher and proof of training in its use.

All Fire Points are marked on the detailed Site Map, and crew and security are briefed about their necessity and 
maintenance. 

West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service from East Grinstead will be invited to attend during festival set-up, and 
their advice heeded. Inspection is provisionally booked for 1pm on Thursday 22nd August. 

Camp Fires 

At all times, all festival staff including volunteers will be aware of the “no camp fires” rule. Upon discovery, 
appropriate fire-fighting equipment must be brought to the location of the open camp fire by staff, and used if 
the person responsible for the fire has not already put it out. Staff will check for complete safety before leaving 
the area. 

Fireworks 

No fireworks or sparklers are permitted. Security will confiscate these if they are found. 

Fire Pit 

There will be one central fire pit. This will be stewarded while lit and extinguished at other times. Individual 
camp fires are not be permitted under any circumstances.  An extinguishing team will be dispatched to deal 
with any that are detected/reported. 

Fire Safety Checks 

On each event day, three checks will be carried out to ensure that exits and entrances to and from enclosed 
areas allow safe passage: at 8am, at 3pm and at 8pm. 

At a minimum, these checks will include: 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 229



152 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

1. The pedestrian access from the camping area to the main festival field 
2. The accesses toward Rendezvous Point A from the Festival Field 
3. The accesses toward Rendezvous Point B from the Camping Areas. 
4. The accesses toward Rendezvous Point C from the Festival Field and Workshop Area 
5. The accesses toward Rendezvous Point D from the Camping Areas and Festival Field  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 230



153 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX S —  
WELFARE GUIDELINES 

Introduction 

Into The Wild regards all members of its crew as having a key role in both safety and welfare. Both are aspects 
of respecting our attendees. Using data from the Events Industry Forum, we offer these notes for reading at 
leisure. They are also included in the Event Safety and Management Plan for reference. 

Outline 

These guidelines are prepared for everyone helping as a member of the welfare/information team. The aim is to 
provide a safe, accessible, confidential and effective service to assist and support those attendees, whether 
guests, performers, teachers, therapists or crew, who need help. 

Some points made in these guidelines are very basic, but our service depends on every member of the team 
following them. 

You may have attended an event before as a welfare team member and know some or all of this information, 
but please read the guidelines again. If you are unsure of anything, don’t hesitate to ask. 

Safety First 

It is your duty to ensure that you do not put yourself or anyone else at risk, and that you co-operate with the 
Head of Health and Safety in complying with health and safety legislation e.g. the Health & Safety at Work Act 
1974 and others. 

The Chief Steward is responsible for co-ordinating the welfare and information services on behalf of the event 
organiser and it is important that you work closely with her and follow her instructions. 

Lifting 

One of the most common tasks we all share is the need to move things around from place to place. This often 
involves lifting. We want you to lift and carry items only when necessary, and to do it so you don’t injure 
yourself.  

The following information is provided by the Health and Safety Executive. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 231



154 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

 

 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 232



155 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

 

Teamwork 

You are working as part of a team and the other team members will be relying on you. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 233



156 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

If you are unable to attend the event at the last minute, please phone the welfare manager as soon as possible so 
that arrangements can be made for someone else to step in. This can be difficult at short-notice. 

Be Prepared 

It is impossible to predict how busy you will be in your role as a steward assisting with Into The Wild’s 
information and welfare provision. Come prepared to be either working very hard, with many problems to sort 
out, or to be very quiet with few people needing your services. In general, each shift is usually busy, don’t 
leave if there is a lull and you are on duty as you could come back to find a crisis has developed. 

Someone’s well-being may depend on the welfare service, so be alert. 

Make sure you get sufficient rest and enough to eat, before and during the event, so you can be effective. If you 
have spent time away from site, we require that you do not arrive under the influence of alcohol. This will 
result in your dismissal. 

What to bring 

Bring evidence of your e-ticket and car pass, (if supplied), the letter confirming you are a team member, and 
some identification.  When you have exchanged this for a wristband, please don’t remove your wristband 
during the festival’s operation. 

If you can, it’s a good idea to bring a pair of wellies (even if it isn’t raining when you set off), a spare pair of 
shoes and plenty of warm clothes (see list of items to bring) as well as regular summer festival gear. 
Occasionally, heavy rains arrive, and you will be glad to have protection from mud. 

If you bring children, make sure someone else will care for them while you are working as your duties on shift 
mean your work-space is not a suitable environment for them. 

If you are on medication, remember to bring enough for the whole event. 

While you are working, you can use your mobile phone for quick calls/texts, but do not spend too much time 
talking or texting. Never use it when you are helping an attendee. It’s a bad look, when a member of the public 
wants your help. 

On arrival 

You will be told where the site is, and how to find the main entrance. You will be making a rendezvous with 
your team leader, which may be in the Stewards’ Area of the Production Area, or the black Information Tent. 
Try not to arrive on site in the dark, as it might be difficult to find where you need to meet your team leader. If 
camping, it is harder to put up your tent in the dark. 

If you’re arriving by car, you will follow the procedure for public arrival under the direction of stewards or 
security. Do not drive around the site unnecessarily — it is dangerous, with many pedestrians about.  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 234



157 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

The site speed limit is a strict 5 MPH. 

If arriving by public transport, or being dropped off, be prepared for about a ten minutes walk to your 
rendezvous point. 

Please let your team leader know you have arrived. 

It’s very important that you know the layout of the site. It is extensive, but our maps will give you an easy 
overview. The Production Office can print maps if you would like one. 

When you have settled in, walk around the site in daylight to familiarize yourself with the layout, as it will look 
quite different at night. Knowing the layout of the site is important. 

Liaison 

Remember you are working in a position of public scrutiny and that anyone can interact with you at any time 
(e.g. environmental health officers, media, event organiser etc.) Your behaviour will reflect on the team and the 
festival as a whole. 

Do not speak to representatives of the media — unless you are asked to do so by the Event Director or 
producers. Please forward media enquiries to the Production Office. 

If representatives from an official public body (e.g. Mid Sussex District Council, Sussex Police, West Sussex 
Fire and Rescue Service, Environmental Health Officers, SECAmb, etc.) arrive, please make sure they are 
welcome and offer them every assistance, while referring them to the Production Office. 

Things to remember: 

● Priority should always be given to working with the public, although be prepared to help look after any 
fixed workspace where you might be (e.g. tidy up etc. when time permits). 

● Be on time to start your shifts. 
● Leave the workspace for a break at the end of your shift, unless you are specifically asked to stay by 

your team leader. 
● Stay where you are expected to be, or communicate clearly if you might need to leave, and say where 

you are going. 
● When you come on duty, ask about what has to be done and any particular problems to look out for. 
● The ability to pace your energy is vital; otherwise you become too tired to be able to assist effectively. 

It is extremely important that you maintain your energy levels until the end of the event to ensure that 
the service runs smoothly and also that you travel home safely. This means taking regular meals, rest 
and being responsible about your time between shifts. 

Helping people 

It is important to be friendly and approachable when dealing with the public. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 235



158 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

You must remain impartial, non-judgemental and treat everyone with equal respect, even if you disagree with 
what they have done. While you may have strongly held beliefs (religious, political, social, dietary etc.), being 
a steward or crew member at Into The Wild is not the place to air them. 

People ask for your assistance for a wide variety of needs, from basic information to acute distress. You never 
know what a person wants when they come to you, and the first impression they have can be crucial. 
Remember, we are a well-being festival and some of our guests may be taking their very first steps on their 
own road to well-being. 

Things to remember: 

● Always acknowledge and make contact in some way with people who approach you, and never turn 
your back on anyone. 

● Be receptive and let people approach you to explain what help they are seeking. If you think someone 
is reluctant to approach, but seems to want assistance, be prepared to gently and sensitively offer help. 

● Remember that someone could have a disability that makes communication more difficult. For 
example, a person may lip read, so don’t look down when talking to people. 

● Refer to the Into The Wild programme, or the information boards at the black Information Tent, if you 
need to know something. 

● Ask colleagues if you are unsure about something. 
● Don’t give information that is inaccurate, unclear or wrong — it is much better to say you don’t know. 

You can ask the person to come back later if you think you can find out the information they need. 
● You must call for medical assistance if you are even slightly concerned about the physical condition of 

someone in the workspace. There is a dedicated radio channel for this. Please use it. 
● Please do not give people medical advice, or even recommend ‘alternative’ remedies. The qualified 

medical team are without a doubt the best people to help anyone with a medical condition, and they are 
appropriately insured. You are not. 

● If you need to move someone in the workspace, ask their permission first and always get help from a 
colleague. Seek advice from the Health and Safety Officer on techniques for moving people. 

● You must not smoke on duty at all, including vaping. 
● Please do not use social media to share details of your on-duty experience while you are on-duty. At all 

times, remember your own duty of confidentiality. 
● If someone uses provocative or offensive behaviour or language, endeavour to challenge this but do not 

put yourself or anyone else in danger by intervening if the person concerned is not rational. In such a 
situation, ask for assistance and support anyone present who might be affected. 

● If, for any reason, you feel you are having problems with a particular person or the work in general, tell 
your team leader — they are there to support you. 

Remember, you are there to aid, care and support people in need of immediate help — you cannot sort out 
long-term problems. Try to refer people on to other organisations if they need further assistance, but do not 
‘pass the buck’ if we are able to help.  

It is sometimes necessary to support people who have received very distressing news at the event. It is possible 
to allow access to a Production Office telephone for people to make an emergency call. You may also need to 
offer someone comfort and support in private, and possibly make arrangements for them to leave the site. The 
Chief Steward or the Head of Health and Safety will be responsible for initiating this action. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 236



159 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Giving First Aid 

Our First Aid Team is always available on its own dedicated radio channel. Please contact them if you feel you 
have a situation that may need their presence. Describe accurate where you are, using the grid system on the 
site map. 

We cannot give you First Aid training, but here are some guidelines. 

● If a casualty is unconscious, immediately check their breathing and heartbeat. 
● If they are breathing, put them in the recovery position. 
● If they are not breathing, attempt mouth-to-mouth resuscitation. 
● Do not move the casualty unless their location is dangerous. It is unlikely that you will have to do this, 

as medical help should be available close-by. 
● If someone experiences a suspected epileptic seizure, call for immediate medical support. If they start 

to come round, it is not recommended that they are offered water, as this can be a choking hazard. 

Fire 

● If a small fire starts where you are, and there is no immediate danger, it may be possible to extinguish it 
using an appropriate extinguisher, heavy blanket or sand. 

● If the fire starts to spread, evacuate everyone from where you are immediately, and follow instructions 
in Appendix J. 

● Do not let the fire block your escape. 
● Never pour water, or other liquids or use a water fire extinguisher on a fire where you think there may 

be live electricity. 
● Always report a fire incident to the welfare manager. 

Festival End 

Make sure you are energetic enough to get home safely at the end of the event, particularly if you are driving. It 
can feel very different when you leave Into The Wild after spending several days with us, and after working 
strange hours. Catch up on a bit of missed sleep before you leave, especially if you have to drive. 

We are all responsible for tidying up when it is all over, so be prepared to give a hand at the end. 

It is also helpful to have your feedback after the event, particularly on ways the service can be improved and 
teams are organised. If you have any suggestions for amending these Guidelines in order to support team 
members better, please let us know. 

  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 237



160 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX T —  
WRISTBAND SYSTEM 

Colour Codes 

Upon arrival, E-tickets are converted to wristbands which must be worn at all times. Each wristband’s colour 
designates its holder’s status. 

The following represents a draft wristband colour-code which Into The Wild is (30 June 2019) refining for use 
on-site. 

 

GOLD Leading staff (management, officers, safety, sound) 

GREEN Standard weekend adult guest 

LIGHT GREEN Day Ticket for Sunday only 

WHITE Child (carer’s phone number to be written) 

PURPLE Performer (music, poetry, theatre, etc.) 

BROWN Crew / maintenance / utilities 

ORANGE Steward 

YELLOW Volunteer 

RED VIP Visitor (e.g. local authority, services) 

LIGHT BLUE Stallholder / therapist / teacher 

DARK BLUE Caterer 

 
  

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 238



161 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

APPENDIX U — 
U.A.V. (DRONES) 

Policy 

Photographers and the general public are completely prohibited from using Unmanned Aerial Vehicles 
(drones). Civil Aviation Authority rules, especially those regarding flying near organised open-air 
assemblies of over a thousand people, mean drone-flying at Into The Wild is outlawed. 

It is the policy of Into The Wild not to permit any unmanned aircraft or drones of any sort to fly over, be 
launched or land at the event and any other land under the control of this event. 

Additionally, unmanned aerial vehicles are on the official prohibited item list for Into The Wild. 

Festival-goers will see this policy in their ‘welcome’ emails. Also, signs to this effect will be placed at the 
entrance to the festival, and at strategic points within. 

If a drone or radio control system is discovered among an attendee’s items, we must refuse entry and note 
details of the item and the person concerned. We do not confiscate the item, as it is not illegal to possess such a 
thing. 

If a UAV is sighted 

All security staff and stewards will receive information about the appearance and sound of drones, and will be 
instructed to be vigilant for them. Any sighting must be reported to security and Event Control, with 
information such as location, direction of travel, speed, size, height, and any description. 

Should a drone be overhead, staff must look for evidence of a ‘pilot’ nearby. Stewards and/or security staff 
should verbally ask the pilot to cease flying immediately by bringing the unit to a safe landing within sight, if 
possible outside the Into The Wild site boundary. 

Any landing zone must be cleared for 30m around. 

If a UAV pilot is identified 

1. Instruct ‘no launch’ 
2. If flying, do not interfere with the pilot 
3. Observe the UAV while staying in contact with the pilot 
4. Allow the public to film 
5. Call a Show Stop if areas of assembly are threatened 
6. If people are threatened, request police attendance. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 239



162 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Instruct the pilot not to launch the vehicle. 

If a pilot is in charge of an unauthorised vehicle that has launched, we must not interfere physically with the 
person concerned, because it is an offence to interfere with a pilot in control of an aircraft. However, the 
offence must be reported to Event Control, security and stewards, and the individual kept under observation. 

The drone itself must be constantly observed. It may be necessary to clear people from areas where it is flying, 
or call a show stop on the stage. If members of the public are filming the incident, do not tell them to stop: their 
footage will be valuable evidence. 

As soon as drone activity is identified, consideration should be given to the event programme and if any actions 
are needed, such as allowing the programme to go ahead unhindered; delaying or postponing it; and whether to 
inform the public of the incident. 

If the situation is deemed as posing a risk to life or property, then the incident command must be passed to 
police.  

In such an event, police will then take control of the event and decide any further action to be taken regarding 
spectator safety. This could involve halting the event programme; full or partial venue evacuation; or simply 
the expulsion of the pilot from the site. 

If an accident occurs involving a drone, staff must take immediate action to preserve the integrity of the scene 
and Event Management should provide all assistance to aid this process. The Event Organiser should work 
closely with the police to minimise disruption and work towards a swift incident resolution. 

Roles of Safety, Security and Medical Personnel 

Where an air accident is witnessed, whether within or outside the venue, it must be reported immediately to 
First Aid and Event Production with as much detail as possible. 

If safe to do so and possible, the gathering of evidence of through videos and photographs or written and verbal 
descriptions is encouraged. This should be passed to First Aid and Event Production management as soon as 
possible. 

No crash debris must be approached or moved unless under instruction of the Emergency Services or First Aid 
and Event Production. This is unlikely to happen unless non-action would result in further injury to people or 
performers. 

If instructed by First Aid and Event Production, event staff may be asked to assist with an emergency guest 
evacuation following the guidelines set down in Appendix J — Evacuation Procedures. 

Where appropriate, medical personnel may be asked to be in attendance to triage and administer first aid. 

If necessary, staff in the locality may need to provide local reassurance to spectators but should only do so in 
consultation with First Aid and Event Production. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 240



163 

 

 
Into The Wild Event Safety and Management Plan version 22, 3 July 2019 

Staff should continue to maintain their existing duties, if possible, unless otherwise instructed by First Aid and 
Event Production. 

Event Production – Roles and Responsibility 

Once First Aid and Event Production is made aware of an air accident by a drone then the police, security and 
other agencies and key event personnel, must be informed immediately. 

The precise time and location of the air accident, the nature of the incident and details of any damage and 
injuries must be recorded. 

Where there is any injury or immediate risk of harm to people, medical emergency response must be sought. 

Management of the crash site should be undertaken initially by safety stewards, including the creation of a 
sterile cordoned off area around the site (at least 30 metres). The crash site may be defined as a crime scene by 
the Police, or the Health and Safety Executive (HSE), or the CAA. 

Event Production should take full control of the communication on site, where appropriate in consultation with 
the police and Health and Safety Officer. 

If a pilot is identified on the venue site then SIA security and/or the Police should be requested to be in 
immediate attendance to intercept the pilot. If the Pilot is identified outside the venue site, then the Police must 
be requested to be in immediate attendance to intercept the pilot. 

Event Production need to also consider — in consultation with the police, Head of Health and Safety, and 
others — whether to delay, postpone or cancel the programme as well as whether a part or full evacuation 
should be implemented. 

Liquor Licensing Committee - 30 July 2019 241



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Application for a Premises Licence - Licensing Act 2003.
	Committee Report Into the Wild.pdf
	Into wild map.pdf
	Application.pdf
	2019-licensable-area.pdf
	Mr Wright Rep.pdf
	Mrs Osman - Rep.pdf
	Mr Duke Rep.pdf
	Into The Wild 2019 - MAIN ESMP.pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	Statutory Conditions

	EVENT SAFETY POLICY
	Health and Safety Team
	Health and Safety Advisor Policy
	Contractor Safety Policy
	Daily Briefing
	Festival Logbook
	Types of Log Books
	Security of Log Book Data
	Accident Reporting

	EMERGENCY PLAN

	CHAIN OF COMMAND
	KEY EMERGENCY CONTACTS
	KEY CONTACTS
	CAPACITY AND DEMOGRAPHIC
	LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES
	SAFEGUARDING OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
	COMMUNICATIONS PLAN
	WATER SUPPLY
	CROWD MANAGEMENT
	VENUE AND SITE DESIGN
	MANAGEMENT OF MOVEMENT
	HEALTH AND SAFETY
	SANITATION
	FIRE SAFETY
	Active Weather Awareness
	Medical and First-Aid Management
	Food Hygiene

	INCIDENT AND EMERGENCY PLANNING
	WELFARE AND INFORMATION
	PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
	THE ENVIRONMENT
	Impact Assessment
	Main Areas
	Site of Special Scientific Interest


	STRUCTURES
	Tents and Stages

	ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION AND LIGHTING
	Safety
	Generation
	Inspection
	Public Lighting
	Barriers and Fencing

	FOOD AND DRINK
	Water

	AMUSEMENTS, ATTRACTIONS, RIDES AND PROMOTIONAL DISPLAYS
	SOUND: NOISE AND VIBRATION
	SPECIAL EFFECTS, FIREWORKS AND PYROTECHNICS
	TRANSPORT MANAGEMENT
	Overview

	CAMPING
	Fire Safety Policy
	Clearance of Animals Policy
	Waste Management

	WELFARE AND INFORMATION
	PERFORMERS
	TV AND MEDIA
	UNMANNED AERIAL VEHICLES
	PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE
	DECLARATION
	APPENDIX A — EVENT OVERVIEW
	Demographic and Capacity
	Event Location
	Licensing Authority
	Type of Event
	Set-up and Take-down
	Opening and Running Times
	Licenseable Activities

	APPENDIX B — MAPPING
	General Site Layout

	APPENDIX C — COMMUNICATION
	Pre-Event External Communication
	Pre-Event Communication with Caterers
	External Communication during the Festival
	In-Event Communication
	Public Communication During Event
	Radios
	Radio Procedure


	APPENDIX D — SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
	LOST CHILDREN POLICY
	Into The Wild Child Protection Principles
	Children’s Area Opening Times
	Children’s Area Staffing
	Children’s Area Policies
	Ride Equipment for Children
	Photography of Children

	APPENDIX E — WELFARE POLICY
	Medical Cover
	Local Hospitals
	Major Trauma
	Walk-in NHS Treatment
	Air Ambulance
	Protection from the Sun

	Facilities for People with Access Requirements
	Dog Policy
	Lost Property
	Terms and Conditions
	Steward and Security Responsibilities
	Steward and Security Organisation
	Steward Numbers
	Steward Operation
	Steward Briefing

	Security
	Personnel
	Security Objectives
	Festival Interaction with Security


	APPENDIX F — CROWD MANAGEMENT
	Ticket Sales
	Admission Control
	Cancellation of Event in Advance
	Event Full (Sold Out)
	Ingress and Egress Monitoring
	Contingency Planning

	APPENDIX G —  STEWARDS’ BRIEFING
	General Instructions
	Conflict Management

	APPENDIX H —  LICENSING OBJECTIVES
	Activities and Timings

	The Licensing Objectives
	Prevention of Public Nuisance
	Protection of Children from Harm
	Public Safety
	Prevention of Crime and Disorder

	No Alcohol
	APPENDIX I — RISK ASSESSMENT
	Interpretation
	General Risks
	Fire Risk Assessments

	APPENDIX J —  EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
	Overview
	Emergency Liaison Team
	Overnight Crewing

	Communicating An Incident
	Location of Incident
	Incident Classification
	Emergency Full Evacuation Procedure
	Other Evacuation Procedures
	Evacuation of a Structure
	Non-Urgent Evacuation of the Whole Site
	Informing People with Hearing Impairment

	Calling Emergency Services
	Event Manager and Incident Room
	Liaison with Emergency Services
	Sussex Police
	West Sussex Fire and Rescue Service
	The NHS
	Mid Sussex District Council

	Post Incident Medical Debriefing
	Fires
	Ground Fire
	Structural Collapse of a Public Space
	Major Threat Policy
	Vehicular Attacks
	Severe Threat Procedure

	Suspicious Item
	Outbreak of Food Poisoning on Site
	Windy Weather
	Wet Weather
	Hot Weather
	Water Crisis
	Dry Weather
	Electrical Storm
	Chemical, Biological, Radiological or Nuclear Contamination
	Assumption Of Control Form

	APPENDIX K — WATER SUPPLY
	Introduction
	Into The Wild Water Commitment
	Contingency
	Contractor’s Water Plan
	Commitments from Caterers
	Banned Supplies

	APPENDIX L — FOOD SAFETY
	General
	Before Set-Up
	On-Site
	Rules for Food Areas
	Temperature Control
	Staff Training
	Miscellaneous Safety Rules
	Fire Safety in Catering Areas
	Caterers Scheduled
	Fu-Fabulous Food
	Into the Wild Café
	Bread for Life Pizzeria
	The Peckish Peacock
	The Bhangra Bus Café
	Lunched out Lizards Chai Tent
	Oscar’s Kitchen
	Vudu Food
	Outer Regions Cafe
	Carlito’s Burritos
	Easy Jose Coffee Roasters
	Whirled Espresso
	Thai Angle Cafe


	APPENDIX M —  PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
	General
	Drug and Alcohol Policy
	Search Policy
	Eviction Policy
	Dealing with Criminal Behaviour

	APPENDIX N — MOVEMENT
	Safety Policy
	Emergency Entry
	Public and Staff Entrances and Exits
	Control Points
	Preventing Unauthorised Entry
	Arrival Management
	Live-in Vehicles
	Main Arena
	Wet Weather
	Crew Vehicles
	On-site Vehicular Movement Rules
	Vehicles during Set-Up and Take-Down
	Unusual Access
	Public Footpath Protocol

	APPENDIX O —  ACCIDENT REPORTING
	Accidents At Work
	How To Report


	APPENDIX P — NOISE POLICY
	The Programme
	Noise Abatement Team
	Measuring Equipment
	Preparation
	Noise Limits
	Pre-event Tests
	System Design
	During The Festival

	APPENDIX Q —  SANITARY PROVISION
	Toilets
	Showers

	APPENDIX R —  FIRE SAFETY POLICY
	Fire Points and Fire Extinguishers
	Camp Fires
	Fireworks
	Fire Pit
	Fire Safety Checks

	APPENDIX S —  WELFARE GUIDELINES
	Introduction
	Outline
	Safety First
	Lifting
	Teamwork
	Be Prepared
	What to bring
	On arrival
	Liaison
	Things to remember:
	Helping people
	Things to remember:
	Giving First Aid
	Fire
	Festival End

	APPENDIX T —  WRISTBAND SYSTEM
	Colour Codes

	APPENDIX U — U.A.V. (DRONES)
	Policy
	If a UAV is sighted
	If a UAV pilot is identified
	Roles of Safety, Security and Medical Personnel
	Event Production – Roles and Responsibility


	Events Safety and Management Plan v22 3 July 2019




